
emawn
Text Box
(page 3)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 4-43)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 44-78)



emawn
Text Box
(pages 79-159)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 160- 162)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 163-166)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 167-214)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 216-218)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 219-232)

dkalinick
Text Box
(page 215)





Consent Agenda Cover Page

a. Meeting Minutes: December 18, 2023 
Draft meeting minutes from the Select Board meeting on December 18,2023 have been 
presented for review and approval.  

Administrafive Recommendafion:
We recommend that the Select Board approve the meefing minutes.  

b. Fee Waiver Request: Department of Public Works 
The Director of the Department of Public Works is requesting a $100 application fee 
waiver for a joint hearing held by the Planning Board and Tree Warden for the proposed 
tree work along Millstone Road associated with the Millstone Road Improvement 
project.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend that the Select Board approve the fee waiver request.  

c. Grant Application: Herring River Watershed Buildout Analysis (DEP Natural Resource 
Nitrogen Sensitive Area Grant)
Brewster is requesting grant funds to finance the initial phase of land use and nitrogen 
loading assessments needed to develop a targeted watershed management plan for 
Brewster’s portion of the Herring River watershed. Financing is also requested for the 
development of De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemption applications for the areas in 
Brewster located in the Bass River and the Swan Pond River watersheds. 

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend that the Select Board approve the grant application request.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 1 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

MINUTES OF THE SELECT BOARD MEETING              REGULAR SESSION 
DATE:  December 18, 2023 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  2198 Main Street, Room A 

Participants: Selectperson Chaffee, Selectperson Hoffmann, Selectperson Whitney, Selectperson Bingham, 
Town Manager Peter Lombardi, Project Manager Conor Kenny, Lindsay Erreca (AT&T), Mike Gradone 
(Recreation Director), Bay Property Planning Committee and Recreation Commission Members: Amanda 
Bebrin, Katie Jacobus, Kary Fryzel, Caroline McCarley, Tom Wingard, Roland Bassett, Jay Packet (Director of 
Golf Operations), Brook Clenchy (Nauset Schools Superintendent), Nauset Regional School Committee 
members: Tom Fitzgibbons, Rick Draper 
Remote Participants: Selectperson Chatelain, Selectperson Bingham, Clare O’Connor Rice (BPPC), Chris Ellis 
and Marie Enochty (Recreation Commission), Ryan Burch (Natural Resources Director) 
Absent: BPPC Members: Pat Hughes, Peter Johnson, John Phillips 

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement  
Vice Chair Chaffee called the meeting to order at 5:40pm, declared a quorum and read both the meeting 
participation and recording statement.   

Executive Session 
To consider the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property if the chair declares that an open 
meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the public body- 3057 Main Street & 
400 W.H. Besse Cartway 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to enter executive session.  Selectperson Whitney seconded the motion. A 
roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, 
Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The vote was 5-Yes, 0-No.  

The Board returned from executive session at 6:00pm.   

Public Announcements and Comment 
Chair Chaffee stated that Selectperson Bingham has left the meeting, but the Select Board still has a 
quorum.  

Select Board Announcements and Liaison Reports 
Selectperson Hoffmann thanked the Brewster Garden Club, who together with the help from the Brewster 
Men’s Club hung swag and wreaths around Town.   

Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Lombardi acknowledged the members of the Martin Luther King Action Team, including Police Chief 
Eldredge, who met to discuss the impacts of policing on minorities in our communities. Members are being 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 2 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

recognized by the Barnstable County Human Rights Commission with the Rosenthal Community Champion 
Award.   

At the Sea Camps third community forum there were over 250 residents in attendance. There was good 
feedback and conversation in the breakout groups. The comment period was through December 10, and we 
received over 100 comments submitted. The consulting team will be sharing the key takeaways from the 
forum and the comment period to the planning committees in early January.  All meeting materials, video, 
and the presentation are available on the Town website.  The Town is planning to host the fourth and final 
forum on Thursday Feb 15th at 6pm, details to follow. 

The State has been working to assemble funding for both canal bridges and has applied for over $1B for 
federal funding. The State has committed $700M for the Sagamore Bridge and has been awarded over 
$370M in Federal Grant funding for the project. 

The Department of Environmental Protection issued their new Title 5 and Nitrogen Sensitive Watershed 
regulations in July, at the time the requirement was to take effect this January, however they have pushed 
this out another 6 months. Mr. Lombardi shared that the Town has submitted our watershed permit Notice 
of Intent for the Herring River watershed and the exemption application for the Bass River Watershed and is 
planning on doing the same for the Swan Pond watershed. For Brewster residents the new Title 5 
regulations, including transitioning to IA Technologies within 5 years, is on hold.   

Special Town Meeting approved $100K in November to develop a Pond Management Plan and conduct a 
pond pilot study, the Natural Resources Advisory Commission will lead this initiative. More information is 
available in the packet materials.   

Discuss and Vote on AT&T Cell Tower Lease Amendment (1657 Main Street)  
Conor Kenny stated that AT&T is requesting to install a new diesel generator at 1657 Main Street. The 
equipment modification request includes a new generator that would need to be constructed outside the 
existing leased area, which requires an amendment to the lease. Mr. Kenny shared that Town counsel has 
reviewed the draft least amendment with no concerns, the Fire Department expressed some concerns that 
AT&T have agreed to and revised their plan. The rent for AT&T will increase by $250 per month.  Linsday 
Erreca, AT&T representative, noted that they are proposing to install an emergency backup generator to 
support AT&T’s wireless facility.  AT&T will be adding an additional 250 sq ft plus buffering that is accounted 
for in the additional monthly rent.  She shared that AT&T is willing to provide landscaping around the 
generator at the Town’s request.  

Selectperson Hoffmann recommends that the Select Board approves the lease amendment and the 
associated generator work with the condition that AT&T secures the necessary permits from the building 
department and modifies their plans to incorporate the Fire Departments requests.  Selectperson Whitney 
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken.  Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, 
Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 3 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Meeting Minutes: July 21 and December 4, 2023 
b. Appointments: Amanda Bebrin (Bay Property Planning Committee) and Corey Gill (Zoning Board of 

Appeals) 
c. Facility Use Applications: Brewster Conservation Trust 
d. Letter of Support to Brewster Cemetery Association for Community Preservation Act Funding 
e. Request to Declare Surplus Items for Sale: Captains Golf Course 
f. Town Landing and Public Beach Access Request: Point of Rocks 
g. Fee Waiver Request: Brewster Historical Society 

Selectperson Hoffmann provided an amendment to the minutes for July 21, 2023, on page 5.   

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the amendments as printed in the 
packet. Selectperson Whitney second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson 
Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

Discuss and Vote on Friends of Brewster Dog Park Request to Purchase & Install Two Gazebos at Brewster 
Dog Park 
Mr. Lombardi shared that the Friends of Brewster Dog Park have expressed interest in a fundraising 
campaign to fund two medium size gazebos, one in each of the dog park areas.  These gazebos measure 
12x16 with a minimum clearance of at least 7ft underneath.  These are wood structures with a metal roof 
and the proposal is to install them over existing benches in each of the designated areas. To cover the 
bench area, the gazebos would also need to cover the paved walking paths.  A local construction company, 
Mazzeo Construction has volunteered time and service.  Selectperson Chaffee confirmed that the 
Department of Public Works has reviewed the request and conducted a site visit.   

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the request from the Friends of Brewster Dog Park to purchase 
and install two gazebos at the Brewster Dog Park. Selectperson Whitney second. A roll call vote was taken. 
Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The 
Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

Debrief on Summer 2023 Brewster Community Pool & Discuss Recommendations for Summer 2024- Joint 
Meeting with Bay Property Planning Committee & Recreation Commission (Select Board FY24-25 Strategic 
Plan Goal SC-1) 
Bay Property Planning Committee Chair Amanda Bebrin called the meeting to order at 6:25pm, declared a 
quorum and completed a roll call. Recreation Commission Chair Roland Bassett declared that a quorum was 
not present for tonight’s meeting and announced members who were in attendance.  

Mr. Lombardi stated that the Town set realistic expectations on opening a community pool and tried our 
best to keep things simple in the first year to be able to build on success.  Throughout the season we 
gathered data and acknowledged the complications and constraints that the Town was faced with. The 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 4 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Town had a fantastic season with great programming for our residents. Previously data was shared about 
year one, looking at lessons learned and receiving feedback for improvements.  

Recreation Director, Mike Gradone provided a recap of the 2023 Season and provided the following 
recommendations for 2024: 

 Pool Opening and Closing dates: June 15, 2024 – August 18, 2024 (extending the season by at least 
one week).  The Town is unable to keep the season longer due to staffing constraints as most 
lifeguards leave in mid-August.  

 Hours of Operation: 7 days a week from 6am – 6pm (continue with closure on Wednesday mornings 
for chlorine treatment).  

 New offer of private pool rentals on Friday and Saturday evenings from 6pm – 8pm.  

 Eligibility to continue for Brewster residents only and include: 
o Allow non-resident Town/School employees to purchase passes (similar benefit currently in 

place for beach, shellfish, and Recycling center permits) 

 Programing will be similar to the 2023 season, with the following additions: 
o Start lap swim one hour earlier 
o Expand swim lesson classes and options to almost double for 2024 and remove pool 

membership requirement for swim lesson participants 
o Add more water aerobics classes  

Mr. Lombardi reviewed that Town Meeting last fall approved a new revolving fund to manage pool 
revenues and expenses with $200K for startup costs and $250K for the pool parking lot.  The 2023 expenses 
included: 

 Estimated operating expenses was $125K, actual operating expenses was $100,676 (does not include 
gatekeepers who have been funded through American Rescue Plan Act funds which will not continue 
forever and will eventually come online).   

 A part-time administrative assistant was hired at the Recreation Department, the peak season costs 
are incorporated in the actual expenses.  Ultimately will be a cost that the Town will have to account 
for.  

 Year 1 start-up expenses were estimated at $75K, actual expenses were $69,351.  

 Balance of $29,972 in start-up funds which has now been allocated to cover offseason capital. 

 Of the $250K for the parking lot project, less than $70K was used due to Department of Public Works 
in house services, $150K of the funds have been reappropriated to the Millstone Road Improvement 
project. We have a balance of $32,258.  

Mr. Lombardi then reviewed the 2023 pool revenues which came in at a little over $113K in total revenues, 
with the largest percentage of pool memberships purchased were family memberships.  The remainder 
were evenly split over the other four categories (individuals, individuals +1, seniors, and seniors +1). We 
sold over 350 guest passes, we originally worried about hitting the 100-swimmer threshold, but quickly 
realized we would have capacity to allow for more guests.  We allowed residents to purchase up to 20 guest 
passes and didn’t run into any issues.  The Town held four drop-in days, these were not as well attended as 
anticipated, as we sold about 180 passes.  The Town will have a little over $100K in the pool revolving fund 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 5 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

for next year.  Mr. Lombardi stated that for the 2024 season, the Town recommends keeping the same fee 
structure and increasing the maximum number of guests passes to 25 per membership.  Registration for 
next year will be through the MyRec online platform managed by the Recreation Department. We suggest a 
$250 fee for private pool rentals for a two-hour period.  

In closing Mr. Lombardi thanked those involved in making the 2023 season a success, the Town received 
consistent positive feedback from residents about the facility, programs, and staff.   

Members of the Bay Property Planning Committee had the opportunity to share their feedback: 

 Member Fryzel inquired about private party rentals and the limitations and responsibilities. Mr. 
Gradone responded that the details are still being worked out, but the fee will cover the operating 
expenses.  

 Member Jacobus is in favor of rentals for potential revenue and asked about lifeguard training if that 
would also bring in additional revenue.  Mr. Gradone shared that eventually there could be a 
regional program that might bring in revenue from other Towns, but as of now the training is for 
Brewster staff.  

Recreation Commission member Chris Ellis asked to consider early morning open swim time for families 
with young children who are up early, and member Enochty asked to consider swim lessons for children 
with special needs.  

Bay Property Planning Committee member Fryzel motioned to adjourn; member Jacobus seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken.  Member Jacobus- yes, member Fryzel- yes, member Chaffee-yes, 
member Whitney-yes, member McCarley-yes, member O’Conor Rice-yes, Wingard-yes, Chair Bebrin-yes.  
The vote was 8-Yes, 0-No.  

Discuss and Vote on Proposed 2024 Captains Golf Course Rates and Additional Non-Resident 
Memberships 
Golf Director Jay Packett presented the Captains Golf Course 2024 daily fee schedule which includes the 
daily greens fees for non-residents and cart fees. In reviewing the 5-year financial forecast plan, it was 
decided to propose a flat 5% increase for green fees. And 8% for cart fees. Included in the packet is a 
spreadsheet of the 2023 rates and the proposed 2024 rates.   

Mr. Lombardi noted that the 5-year financial forecast was presented to the Golf Commission to help inform 
their decisions in recommendations for 2024 rates. This helps in looking ahead at looming capital, to make 
sure decisions around rate increase would not have a significant compounding effect in future years. Mr. 
Lombardi shared that for this year they are recommending a 5% increase, 6% the following year and then 
7% in future years. The Golf Commission anticipates that they will have at least 5% annual rate increases for 
memberships and green fees each year going forward to make sure the enterprise fund is self-sustaining 
and that we are able to make the major capital investments to the irrigation and maintenance facility.  It 
was noted that the rate increases are consistent with other course rates across the cape.   

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 6 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Mr. Packett shared that through today for calendar year 2023, there have been 91,301 rounds, in which 
44,598 were guests. There is almost a 50/50 mix, which is what the Golf Commission looks for.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to accept the proposed 2024 Captains Golf Course rates. Selectperson 
Whitney second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, 
Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

Mr. Packett noted that the recommendation is to add an additional 25 non-resident memberships for the 
2024 calendar year. Adding that in 2022 a moratorium was put in place allowing non-residents to join the 
Captains Golf Course because of the boom after Covid. This year when it came to tee time access, there 
were very few times when people got shut out completely, though their tee time may have not been their 
desired time, they still had the ability to play. Mr. Packett doesn’t feel that 25 new members would have a 
negative effect.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved that the Select Board approves the proposed 2024 additional non-resident 
memberships as presented. Selectperson Whitney second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson 
Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-yes. The Board vote 
was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

Update on Request to Amend Regional School Agreement & Status of Tuition agreements for 
Provincetown & Truro- Tom Fitzgibbons & Rick Draper, Nauset Regional School Committee 
Mr. Lombardi reviewed that the Select Board had previously conveyed interest in reviewing the Regional 
Agreement that had not been revised in 20 years. The Select Boards in all three other Towns also expressed 
interest and support in re-opening the agreement.  In early Fall, the School Committee had engaged with 
their legal counsel to start to look at the regional agreement and potentially make some changes.  Parallel 
with this, was Brewster’s interest in either seeking to have Truro and Provincetown join the district or 
negotiate new tuition agreements so that their contributions would incorporate the costs of the High School 
project.   

Rick Drapper noted that Brewster had requested specially to adjust how enrollment is currently calculated 
and change to a rolling average.  In review with their counsel, the Nauset Regional School Committee was 
advised that to change this requires an amendment to the entire agreement.  It was also discovered that 
the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) regulations and Mass. General Law changes 
have affected items in the agreement that needed to be addressed.  Mr. Drapper shared that a 
subcommittee has been formed with one member from each of the district Towns who has reviewed the 
agreement piece by piece including counsel’s recommendations and questions.  There is a meeting 
scheduled for January in which the committee will review the rough draft of the agreement.  
Representation on the School Committee Board is specified by Mass General Law and is based on the 
population of each Town.  Mr. Drapper reviewed that Brewster has four committee members each with one 
vote, Orleans has three members each with .8 votes, Eastham has two members each with 1.1 votes and 
Wellfleet has one member with 1.4 votes, this is ten members with ten total votes. Mr. Drapper noted that 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 7 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

the subcommittee will be recommending adding a member from Wellfleet with each member having .7 
votes.  

Mr. Drapper reviewed that the recommended draft agreement will be presented to the School Committee, 
if approved it will be sent to DESE for review and then to each Town’s Select Board and then ultimately to 
Town Meetings. If approved at all of the Town Meetings, it will be sent to the Commissioner for signature.  
Mr. Drapper noted that once approved by the School Committee they plan on holding information meetings 
for the public to understand how the school district works. Realistically the agreement would be in effect 
for the 2025-2026 school year.  

Selectperson Chatelain requested that the School Committee think about public outreach and conducting a 
campaign to educate the public before the agreement is approved. Mr. Lombari expressed his concern with 
the School Committee not soliciting feedback from the Towns who initiated the request for review of the 
regional agreement.  Select Boards vote to place items on warrants for Town Meeting approval, Mr. 
Lombardi thinks it would be helpful to have their feedback before DESEs review and things move forward in 
a regulatory way.  

Mr. Drapper responded that the School Committee is concerned with how stringent DESE can be and they 
want to present something that will be approved knowing that changes can be made to the agreement in 
the future.  

There was discussion on the methodology used to calculate each member Towns capital and operating 
annual assessments. Mr. Drapper shared that there are two ways to calculate the methods, the Statute 
Method and the Alternative Method, however the Alternative method is not compliant with DESE and must 
be voted on each year when approving the budget. The School Committee will present the Alternative 
method and if voted down will use the Statutory Method. Mr. Drapper noted that this information will be 
included in the agreement, he also stated that the School Committee is recommending that the agreement 
be reviewed every five years. It was clarified that the School Committee would present the Alternative 
method, if Towns decided to vote against the budget using this method, it would revert to the Statutory 
Method. Ms. Hoffmann also expressed that public outreach will be important throughout the process.  

Superintendent, Brooke Clenchy, noted that legal counsel has been involved in establishing a process that 
can be utilized in the future when deciding tuition agreements with Truro and Provincetown. Through 
regular meetings with the three district superintendents the key focus has been to be fair and equitable. 
Ms. Clenchy stated that the new contract needed a “course correction” and that both Truro and 
Provincetown are 100% responsible for their special education costs and transportation costs, which is 
different than choice students. The goal is to have a 5-year agreement with the option to renegotiate in 
years 4 and 5.  Both districts declined to join the regional school district at this time.  

Ms. Clenchy noted that since the two districts pay for their own special education and transportation costs, 
it is impossible to compare any of the per pupil averages.  Significant points for the new contract include: 

 A five-year duration 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 8 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

 The base number will be $23,108 

 The increase for year 2 and 3 is 3% per year 

 The opportunity to renegotiate in year 4 and an increase in year 5 

Selectperson Chaffee acknowledged that both Truro and Provincetown have a great deal of pride in their 
identity, Brewster does too and as a member of the region we pay for the debt, noting the unfairness that 
has been communicated about the tuition agreement. Selectperson Chaffee noted that in the process 
described to create the latest agreement, there didn’t seem to be an opportunity for our community 
leaders, finance committee leaders, Select Board members or public to have any visibility in the process or 
to participate.  Ms. Clenchy responded that legal counsel noted the responsibility of the administration to 
work with the School Committee to complete this agreement.  

Ms. Clenchy will be providing the Select Board more information about not applying the portion of increases 
to offset debt, as this has not been conveyed to Town Manager’s in previous meetings.  It would be helpful 
to understand where in the statute that there is a prohibition against tuition agreements paying for capital 
or debt.  

There was discussion about the base number, Mr. Fitzgibbons shared that the clearest way to begin was to 
use a DESE number. The 2021- 2022 costs per pupil was $23,341, then added 7.8% as that was the increase 
on the budget. The base of $25,161 is the amount of money that would cover the operating expenses, 
ultimately what was negotiated was $26,500 as the base. Considering Special Education and transportation, 
the negotiation settled at $23K. Mr. Fitzgibbons added that this is a very robust contract, with a 12% 
increase over last year with a correction included and two years of inordinate expense.   

Selectperson Chatelain expressed his thoughts on the base number noting that it is important that our per 
pupil costs is higher than the DESE number. He also asked why the district is confident in a 3% increase in 
the out years and requested the same for budget increases for Brewster without Special Education and 
transportation.   

Discuss and Vote on Potential Changes to Non-Commercial Shellfish Rules & Regulations 
Last month the Select Board discussed the best way to approach our Senior Shellfish permits, ultimately the 
Board decided to legacy the residents who had previously purchased lifetime permits at no cost going 
forward.  These permits will need to be renewed annually at no cost; all new Senior Shellfish permits will 
have a $15 cost annually. The Natural Resources Department has developed some recommended changes 
to the non-commercial shellfish regulations to try to clarify different distinctions. 

Ryan Burch noted the popularity of the program and how the department talked with staff and assistant 
wardens to review the different scenarios that they have faced including:  

 Multiple generations in the same household, can there be a Senior permit and Family permit in the 
same household? 

 If one spouse qualifies for a Senior permit and the other partner is younger, can they have a Senior 
permit and a family permit? 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 9 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

 Can someone in the same household as a Senior permit holder use their permit to harvest shellfish? 

 Is the senior shellfish permit solely for the person named on the permit? 

 Does a Senior shellfish Permit holder have to be engaged in the harvest actively or can someone else 
in the household harvest if the Senior permit holder is present, say in the parking lot)? 

The goal was to simplify the permits and redefine the Family Shellfish permit and add a definition of a 
Senior Shellfish permit. The recommendations are: 

 Family Shellfish Permit (add-on to existing definition): Each family permit may name up to four 
people on the permit that meet the qualification defined above.  The named permit holder must be 
actively engaged in shellfish harvest activities and present at the location of the harvest activities.  If 
additional names need to be added, proof of legally domiciled residence in the Town of Brewster is 
required. Only one Family Shellfish permit may be issued per residential address.  

 Senior Shellfish Permit (add-on to existing): This permit is for the sole use of the qualified person 
named on the permit.  This permit cannot be used by spouses, children, or grandchildren even if 
domiciled in the same residence.  The permit holder must be actively engaged in shellfish harvest 
activities and present at the location of the harvest activities.  Only one Senior Shellfish permit may 
be issued per residential address.  

 Household Permits (new regulation): In the case where multiple generations occupy the same 
residential address, there may be one Senior Shellfish Permit and one Family Shellfish Permit issued 
to the same residential address. In the case where one spouse qualifies for a senior shellfish permit 
and one does not, the second spouse may purchase a Family Shellfish permit or assist the senior 
holder in fishing.  

Selectperson Hoffmann clarified that any family member that is listed on the Family Shellfish permit may 
use the permit. She continued that Senior Shellfish permit holders want the ability to bring someone with 
them as long as they are present and actively taking part in shellfish harvest but can only take their limit as 
outlined on the permit. Mr. Burch responded that this is correct and will look at clarifying the regulations. 
He also clarified that the Senior shellfish permit holder needs to be actively engaged in the harvesting of 
shellfish.  This is consistent with how other Towns regulate their permits.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved that the Select Board accept the changes to the non-commercial shellfish 
rules and regulations with the amendments discussed. Selectperson Whitney second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-
yes. The Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

FYIs 
None 

Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Chair 
None

Questions from the Media 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 12.18.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov       ` Page 10 of 10 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

None

Next Meetings 
January 8, January 10, January 22 and January 23, 2024

Adjournment 
Selectperson Whitney moved to adjourn at 8:29pm. Selectperson Hoffmann second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chatelain-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chaffee-
yes. The Board vote was 4-Yes, 0-No. 

Respectfully submitted by Erika Mawn,  
Executive Assistant 

Approved: __________________ Signed: _________________________________________ 
      Date                       Selectperson Hoffmann, Clerk of the Select Board

Accompanying Documents in Packet: Agenda, TM Report, Consent Agenda items, Brewster Dog Park Gazebo Request, Brewster 
Community Pool Information, 2024 Captains Golf Course Rates and Memberships, Non-Commercial Shellfish Rules & Regulations, 
Regional School Agreement & Tuition Agreement Information, AT&T Cell Tower Information, FYIs   

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Archived: Friday, December 22, 2023 1:42:32 PM
From: Griffin Ryder 
Sent: Thursday, December 21, 2023 2:18:26 PM
To: Erika Mawn 
Cc: James Jones Conor Kenny 
Subject: Millstone Road Improvement Project => Planning Board Application Fee Waiver Request 
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None

Hi Erika-
 
The DPW respectfully requests that the Select Board grant an application fee waiver ($100 fee) for the Planning Board to hold
a joint hearing with the Tree Warden on proposed tree work along Millstone Road (a designated scenic road) associated with
the Millstone Road Improvement project pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 87, Section 3 and Chapter 40,
Section 15C.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information.
 
Thanks!
 
Griffin
 
Griffin Ryder, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
Town of Brewster 
508.896.3212 
gryder@brewster-ma.gov 
 

mailto:gryder@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:emawn@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:jjones@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:ckenny@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:gryder@brewster-ma.gov


 

 
 
 

 

 

Maura T. Healey 

Governor 

 

Kimberley Driscoll 

Lieutenant Governor 

 

Rebecca L. Tepper 

Secretary 

 

Bonnie Heiple 

Commissioner 

 
 

This information is available in alternate format. Please contact Melixza Esenyie at 617-626-1282. 

TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 

 

2023-2024 Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area Grant Program 
Notice of Grant Opportunity 

 
 
1. GRANT OPPORTUNITY SUMMARY: 

 
A. Proposals Sought: The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP or the 

Department) seeks proposals from Massachusetts municipalities or other government entities that meet 
the definition of “Local Government Unit,” as defined in 314 CMR 21.02, and have a watershed that has 
been designated as a Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area under 310 CMR 15.000, Title 5. The 
purpose of this grant program is to assist municipalities in a variety of activities, identified below, which 
facilitate completion of a Watershed Management Plan (WMP) for the purpose of completing a 
Watershed Permit application or De Minimis Load application, each of which address solutions to 
cultural eutrophication caused by nitrogen pollution from wastewater and other sources. Only planning 
activities that contribute to or come from a Watershed Management Plan, Watershed Permit 
application, or De Minimis Load application (as defined in 314 CMR 21.00) will be considered for 
funding. Through this grant program, MassDEP seeks to facilitate and advance Local Government Units’ 
application for a Watershed Permit or De Minimis Load application under 314 CMR 21.00 by offering 
funding for Eligible Projects to Eligible Entities as further defined below. Interested entities should refer 
to the regulations here:  
https://www.mass.gov/regulations/314-CMR-2100-watershed-permit-regulations  

The funding for this Grant Program is available only for work conducted during the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts State Fiscal Year 2024 (July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024). However, the work proposed to be 
funded may be part of a larger, ongoing project that exceeds Massachusetts State Fiscal Year 2024.     

 
B. Overview and Goals: A primary source of nitrogen contamination of coastal estuaries in Cape Cod is 

nitrogen loading from on-site septic systems. MassDEP, in conjunction with local Boards of Health, 
regulates these systems through its “Title 5” regulations, 310 CMR 15.000. On July 7, 2023, MassDEP 
promulgated revisions to these regulations. These regulations established new Natural Resource 
Nitrogen Sensitive Areas (NRNSAs) to more effectively address nitrogen impacted estuaries in the 
Commonwealth so that the waterbodies will meet state Surface Water Quality Standards for that 
particular pollutant, as found and outlined in 314 CMR 4.00. Currently, 31 watersheds of Cape Cod have 
been designated as NRNSAs under Title 5. 



   
 

2 
 

 
The regulations also establish new requirements for these NRNSAs. These requirements are designed to 
more effectively address specific problems related to the impairment of coastal estuaries arising from 
high densities of septic systems.  More specifically, the Title 5 revisions require that any system serving 
new construction incorporate Best Available Nitrogen Reducing Technology by July 8, 2024 (as extended 
by DEP), unless the local government unit submits a Notice of Intent, a Watershed Permit application or 
a De Minimis Load application to stay this requirement. For existing systems, there is a 2-year Notice of 
Intent period, after which if no NOI, Watershed Permit or De Minimis application is filed, any existing 
facility with a Title 5 system must incorporate Best Available Nitrogen Reducing Technology within five 
(5) years of the end of the Notice of Intent period. While the enhanced treatment requirements for 
septic systems will result in significant reductions in nitrogen pollution, they may not be the most 
effective and efficient way to restore the impacted estuaries and achieve established water quality 
goals.   
 
Therefore, MassDEP promulgated a second, concurrent regulatory revision formally establish ing a 
“watershed permit process” under 314 CMR 21.00: Watershed Permit Regulations.  A Watershed Permit 
provides a 20-year timeframe to implement a more comprehensive solution to address nitrogen loading 
to the watershed. As noted above, if Local Government Units obtain a Watershed Permit that covers an 
NRNSA (i.e., an area that would be subject to the updated Title 5 regulations), the above Title 5 NRNSA 
requirements will not become effective for that area. The watershed permit process requires Local 
Government Units to complete a Watershed Permit application as described by 314 CMR 21.03 or De 
Minimis Load application as described in 314 CMR 21.12. A Watershed Management Plan (WMP) is a 
required component of the Watershed Permit application and may be part of a De Minimis Load 
application. Other components of a watershed permit application may include a Comprehensive 
Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), a Comprehensive Water Resource Management Plan 
(CWRMP), or a Targeted Watershed Management Plan (TWMP). 
 
Through this grant program, MassDEP seeks to facilitate and advance Local Government Units’ 
applications for Watershed Permits or De Minimis Load Exemption under 314 CMR 21.00 by offering 
funding for Eligible Projects to Eligible Entities as further defined below. 

 
C. Environmental Justice: MassDEP is committed to advancing equity, diversity, and environmental justice 

(EJ)1 through its public investments. The agency seeks to prioritize the direction of these resources to 
benefit EJ communities and to address environmental inequities. To that end, MassDEP grant and 
funding programs include criteria and evaluation parameters that emphasize equity, diversity, and 
environmental justice, consistent with each program’s statutory authority and source of funding. 
Preference will be given to projects that provide direct benefit to environmental justice populations. 
Information on which communities are classified as environmental justice populations can be found at 
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/environmental-justice-populations-in-massachusetts. 
 

 
1 “Environmental justice is based on the principle that all people have a right to be protected from environmental hazards 
and to live in and enjoy a clean and healthful environment regardless of race, color, national origin, income, or English 

language proficiency. Environmental justice is the equal protection and meaningful involvement of all people and 
communities with respect to the development, implementation, and enforcement of energy, climate change, and 
environmental laws, regulations, and policies and the equitable distribution of energy and environmental benefits and 
burdens.” See Environmental Justice Policy of the Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs (updated June 24, 

2021): https://www.mass.gov/doc/environmental-justice-policy6242021-update/download. 



   
 

3 
 

D. Eligible Entities: Eligible Entities are regional or local government units that: (a) meet the regulatory 
definition of "Local Government Unit" as defined in 314 CMR 21.02; and (b) are seeking a Watershed 
Permit to address nitrogen pollution in one (1) of the 31 Cape Cod watersheds designated as an NRNSA 
under Title 5. The NRNSA Address Lookup Map can be found at https://mass-
eoeea.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=96035fe034044e2596b49168b0e35d8e   

 
Local Government Unit - Any town, city, district, county, commission, agency, authority, board 
or other instrumentality of the commonwealth or of any of its political subdivisions, including 
any Local Government Unit (314 CMR 21.02). 
 

E. Eligible Projects: Eligible projects will assist Local Government Units in completing Watershed 
Management Plans for the purpose of applying for a Watershed Permit, each of which address solutions 
to cultural eutrophication caused by nitrogen pollution from wastewater and other sources. Proposed 
projects must be in one (1) of the 31 Cape Cod watersheds designated as an NRNSA to be eligible. 
Interested applicants can use the MassDEP Designated Natural Resource Area Nitrogen Sensitive Area 
Address Lookup Map to determine if their project is eligible. The NRNSA Address Lookup Map can be 
found at https://mass-
eoeea.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=96035fe034044e2596b49168b0e35d8e . 
 
Only planning activities that contribute to, or come from, a Watershed Management Plan (WMP), a 
Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP), a Comprehensive Water Resource 
Management Plan (CWRMP), a Targeted Watershed Plan (TWMP), Watershed Permit application or De 
Minimis Load application (as defined in 314 CMR 21.00) will be considered for funding. Preference will 
be given to Eligible Projects that provide a benefit to the Local Government Unit’s environmental justice 
populations, if present and applicable.  
 
Watershed Management Plan or WMP – A plan that:  
(a) is consistent with a 208 Plan, if such plan exists, as determined by the designated areawide planning 
agency under § 208 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1288;  
(b) includes or is supplemented with the information and documentation specified in 314 CMR 21.03(2), 
unless the Department determines otherwise;  
(c) is based on one or more Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plans (CWMPs), Comprehensive 
Water Resource Management Plans (CWRMPs), or Targeted Watershed Management Plans (TWMPs), as 
defined in 314 CMR 21.02, which may serve as the WMP if all requirements of this definition are met; 
and  
(d) provides a schedule and description of actions to achieve Necessary Nitrogen Load Reductions. 
Unless otherwise determined by the Department, the WMP may address pollutants other than nitrogen  
(314 CMR 21.02). 
 
Watershed Permit – A permit issued by the Department pursuant to 314 CMR 21.00 for one or more 
watersheds with a term of no longer than 20 years, including the Pleasant Bay Watershed Permit 
(Permit No. 001-0) that was issued August 3, 2018, by the Department prior to the promulgation of 314 
CMR 21.00 (314 CMR 21.02). 
 
Both existing and proposed projects are eligible for this grant program, and funding will support work 
activities for the planning phase of Watershed Management Plans or a Watershed Permit, so long as the 
work funded by this program is conducted during FY2024 (i.e., July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024). All 
applications must include a feasible timeline for completion of the proposed work (i.e., Illustrating that 



   
 

4 
 

the work being proposed for funding can be completed on or before the June 30, 2024, deadline).  For 
proposed projects including work conducted before submission of the Grant Application, but on or after 
July 1, 2023, the Applicant must provide documentation, such as invoices, in the Grant Application.  

Only planning activities that contribute to, or come from, either a Watershed Management Plan or a 
Watershed Permit (as defined in 314 CMR 21.00) will be considered for funding. Examples of Eligible 
Projects include, but are not limited to: 

• Planning activities necessary to complete a watershed permit application as explained 
by 314 CMR 21.03(2) or De Minimis Load application as explained by 314 CMR 21.12. 
This includes, but is not limited to: 

o Completing a Watershed Management Plan, CWMP, TWMP, or Scientific 
Evaluation; 

o Assessment of nitrogen loads; or 
o Modeling of nitrogen reduction scenarios. 

• Planning activities required by approved watershed permit. This may include, but is not 
limited to: 

o Data analysis of ambient water quality monitoring results; or 
o Permeable reactive barrier design. 

• Review of ambient water quality monitoring, modeling, and/or other measures for the 
purpose of demonstrating de minimis load within a watershed or sub-watershed. 

 
Construction or implementation projects will not be considered for funding. Examples of projects that 
are not eligible for funding include, but are not limited to:  

• Construction or implementation projects, including but not limited to: 
o Construction of approved sewering; 
o Upgrades to existing wastewater treatment facilities and/or septic systems; or 
o Installation of a permeable reactive barrier. 

• Continued operation or maintenance of wastewater treatment facilities or upgraded 
septic systems. 

Ownership of all equipment or resources purchased pursuant to a grant award shall remain the property 
of the grantee. 

 
F. Application Deadline:  Applications are due electronically by 5:00 P.M., E.S.T. on Friday, January 5, 2024.  

 
G. Page Limit:  Grant Applications, including the budget sheet but excluding the cover sheet, must not 

exceed fifteen single-sided (15) pages in length.  The cover sheet (Attachment A) is at the end of this 
document is also available online at https://www.mass.gov/info-details/grants-financial-assistance-
watersheds-water-quality#natural-resource-nitrogen-sensitive-area-grant-program-  
 

H. Funding Availability:  MassDEP anticipates that up to $300,000 in total funding may be available for 
projects through this program.  Grant Awards may range from $20,000 to $300,000 per applicant, 
although MassDEP reserves the right, in its discretion, to grant smaller awards to proposals of 
exceptional merit. If there are remaining unspent capital funds available from other Department 
projects during the period between the announcement of this grant opportunity and the announcement 



   
 

5 
 

of the grant awards, the Department reserves the right to allocate supplemental funds to this grant 
solicitation and/or initiate additional funding rounds.   
 

Applicants may seek funding for Eligible Projects that will exceed the length of the grant award period 
(i.e., past June 30, 2024); however, only work that is proposed to be completed on or before June 30, 
2024, is eligible for funding. In addition, work conducted after July 1, 2023, but before the date of the 
execution of the grant contract award, may also be eligible for funding. All funding for awards issued 
through this program are subject to the availability of appropriations or funding from other Department 
sources. 
 

I. Match and Other Funding Obligations:  Applicants are not required to provide matching funds. 
However, applicants are encouraged to identify other known sources of funding for a proposed project 
on the Application Form, from both secured and anticipated sources, which may make the Application 
more competitive during review and evaluation by MassDEP. 

 
In addition, Applicants are advised that grant awards involving capital funds are required to be disbursed 
on a cost reimbursement basis, meaning that grantees will be reimbursed for funds already expended. 
To receive reimbursement for funds expended, grantees must submit a written request for payment, 
along with any other required documentation. Grantees are strongly encouraged to submit written 
requests for payment, and any corresponding supporting documentation, on or before June 30, 2024, as 
well. Please see section 1.L. for more information on required documents. 
 

J. Bidders’ Conference:  A Bidders’ Conference using Microsoft Teams will be held on Tuesday, December 
19, 2023, at 10:00 AM to field questions from Grant Applicants. To obtain the meeting link information 
or the Teams link please contact Caroline Adamson via email at Caroline.P.Adamson@mass.gov with “FY 
2024 NRNSA Grant Bidders’ Conference Details” in the email subject line. 

 
K. Total Anticipated Duration of Grant(s): The contract duration will be through June 30, 2024.  MassDEP 

reserves the right to extend the contract duration solely for the purposes of performance completion 
consistent with the terms of the Grant Award contract. 
 

L. Required Documentation: Upon completion of the proposed work, and with submission of the final 
request for reimbursement, all Grant Awardees shall submit a one (1)-page Final Report summarizing 
their project tasks, including links or copies to the work product completed during the contract period.  
 
MassDEP reserves the right to request additional materials, information, or other documentary evidence 
demonstrating completion of work and/or compliance with program requirements. MassDEP also 
reserves the right to withhold funding until receipt of satisfactory materials, information, or other 
documentary evidence demonstrating completion of work and/or compliance with program 
requirements.    
 

M. Applicable Procurement Law: Grants: MGL c. 7A, § 7; St. 1986 c. 206, § 17; 815 CMR 2.00. 
  



   
 

6 
 

2. INSTRUCTIONS FOR APPLICATION SUBMISSION: 
 

A. Evaluation Criteria (general):  In order to be considered for a grant award, Applicants must submit a 
completed application that: includes all required supporting materials; consent to program terms and 
conditions; provides an affirmative commitment to completing the proposed work by June 30, 2024; and 
meets program eligibility requirements.  A MassDEP review committee will evaluate proposed projects 
based upon the criteria listed below.  The review committee reserves the right to reject any or all 
proposals. 
 
Evaluation Criteria Components: The review committee will evaluate and score the grant applications 
from Eligible Entities (as previously defined in Section 1.D. of this Grant Opportunity) based upon the 
following criteria: 

 
Project Description (20 points) 

• How well does the Applicant describe the proposed or existing project and the work to be 
covered by this funding?   

• How well does the Applicant articulate how the proposed project will help the Eligible Entity 
achieve/meet the goals of the Grant Program and Title 5 requirements?  

• If some or all of the proposed project includes a request for reimbursement for eligible costs 
incurred after July 1, 2023, and before submission of the Application, has the Applicant 
included a description of the project that is partially or fully completed? 

• Are all elements of the proposal eligible under the listed criteria for this grant program and do 
not include construction/implementation and/or continued operational/ maintenance costs? 

Meet Regulatory Requirements (15 points) 
• Does the Applicant demonstrate how the proposed project intends to contribute to the 

development of a Watershed Management Plan, Watershed Permit application, or De Minimis 
Load application under 314 CMR 21.00, De Minimis Load application and/or Title 5? 

Financial Need (5 points) 

• How well does the applicant demonstrate the Eligible Entity’s need for financial assistance to 
support the Proposed or Existing Project?   

Project Budget and Timeline (10 points) 
• How well does the Applicant estimate and describe the project’s costs within the application?  

Pricing details, such as quotes, may also be attached as supporting information.   

• If some or all of the proposed or existing project includes a request for reimbursement for 
eligible costs incurred after July 1, 2023, and before submission of the Application, has the 
Applicant attached all documentation supporting the request for reimbursement for these 
project costs? Attachments do not count towards the 15-page limit.   

• Does the Applicant demonstrate a realistic understanding of project costs by providing a 
budget with detailed and credible cost estimates or an invoice of actual costs?   

• Does the Applicant identify and describe any match or other funding sources that will support 
the project?  

• How well does the Applicant demonstrate a realistic understanding of the timeline for the 
proposed work?  

Qualifications of Organization and Project Manager (10 points)  

• How well does the Applicant describe the qualifications of the Eligible Entity and its project 
manager to carry out the proposed project?  

Project Benefit (25 points) 



   
 

7 
 

• MassDEP will evaluate the proposed project’s contribution to a Watershed Management Plan 
and/or pursuit of a Watershed Permit application or De Minimis Load application.  Specifically, 
the Department will look at how the proposed project furthers the goal of the Local 
Government Unit in comprehensively addressing nitrogen impacts in the watershed.  

Environmental Justice (15 points) 

• How does the proposal describe direct benefits to environmental justice (EJ) populations? 
(Information on which communities are classified as EJ communities can be found at 
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/environmental-justice-communities-in-massachusetts).  

• How well does the project specifically benefit EJ populations? 

• How are EJ populations, EJ communities, or EJ organizations involved in the proposed project?  
 

 
B. Application Completion and Submission Instructions:  All Applicants must include the attached 

application form (Attachment A) in their application and submit the packet electronically, as a Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF file, by 5:00 p.m. E.S.T., on Friday, January 5, 2024. 
 
Applications shall be submitted to Caroline Adamson via email at: Caroline.P.Adamson@mass.gov. 
Please include the Applicant name AND “NRNSA Grant Program” in the subject line. Attachment A, 
Section 1 and 2 are at the end of this document or available for download at: 
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/grants-financial-assistance-watersheds-water-quality#natural-
resource-nitrogen-sensitive-area-grant-program-. 
 
Applications received after the deadline will be automatically rejected.  MassDEP reserves the right to 
reject any and all proposals or request additional information, if needed. 
 

C. Additional Required Documentation:  
 
If selected for a Grant Award, the Applicant will be required to submit the following forms to complete 
the Grant Award contracting process. Forms with an asterisk (*) need not be submitted, if they have 
been completed previously and are already on file with the Commonwealth: 

 

• Commonwealth Standard Contract Form, filled out and signed by the applicant. The Standard 

Contract Form is listed under Contracts on this website: 

www.macomptroller.org/forms  

• Commonwealth Terms and Conditions.  www.macomptroller.org/forms 

These Terms and Conditions are incorporated by reference into the Standard Contract Form, and 

do not need to be executed separately. 

• Commonwealth W‐9 tax information form filled out and signed by the applicant with DUNS 

number and Federal Tax ID(*). www.macomptroller.org/forms 

• Completed Contractor Authorized Signatory Listing Form.  

www.macomptroller.org/forms 

• Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) form(*). 

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/tips-for-completing-the-electronic-funds-transfer-eft-form 

• Scope of Work 



   
 

8 
 

Applicants are encouraged to review these forms prior to submission of an application.  



   
 

9 
 

3. ESTIMATED CALENDAR FOR GRANT APPLICATION/AWARD: 
 

Event Date Time  

Notice of Grant Opportunity (posted on COMMBUYS 

and MassDEP website)  

Tuesday, December 12, 2023 
 

Bid Release Date (Posting Date) on MassDEP website  Tuesday, December 12, 2023  

Bidders’ Conference:  

 Via Teams. To obtain dial-in information or the Teams 

link please contact Caroline Adamson via email at 

Caroline.P.Adamson@mass.gov with ‘FY 2024 NRNSA 

Grant Bidder's Conference Details’ in the email subject 

line.  

Tuesday, December 19, 2023 

10 

A.M.  

Deadline for Submission of Questions to MassDEP, 

either at Bidders’ Conference or prior to deadline, via 

email to: Caroline.P.Adamson@mass.gov 

Wednesday, December 20, 2023 

3 P.M.  

Official Answers for Q&A published on MassDEP 

website  

Friday, December 22, 2023 
5 P.M.  

GRANT APPLICATION DEADLINE; ELECTRONIC 

SUBMISSION TO: Caroline.P.Adamson@mass.gov 

Friday, January 5, 2024 
5 P.M.  

Notification of Grant Award(s) (Estimated) (POSTED ON 

COMMBUYS AND MASSDEP WEBSITE)  

Friday, March 8, 2024 
  

Estimated Contract Start Date Friday, March 29, 2024  

 



   
 

10 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area  
2023-2024 Grant Program Application 

 
Sections 1 and 2 of this Application Form are available for download at: www.mass.gov/info-details/grants-
financial-assistance-watersheds-water-quality#natural-resource-nitrogen-sensitive-area-grant-program-   
 
Overview: The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP or the Department) seeks 
proposals from Massachusetts municipalities or other government entities that meet the definition of “Local 
Government Unit,” as defined in 314 CMR 21.02, and have a watershed that has been designated as a Natural 
Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area under 310 CMR 15.000, Title 5. The purpose of this grant program is to assist 
municipalities in a variety of activities which facilitate completion of a Watershed Management Plan (WMP) for 
the purpose of completing a Watershed Permit application or De Minimis Load application, each of which 
address solutions to cultural eutrophication caused by nitrogen pollution from wastewater and other sources . 
Only planning activities that contribute to or come from a Watershed Management Plan, Watershed Permit 
application, or De Minimis Load application (as defined in 314 CMR 21.00) will be considered for funding.  For 
more information, please see the Notice of Grant Opportunity. 

Section 1:  Applicant Information  

Applicant Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Project Title: ____________________________________________________________________    

Short description of the work (<5 sentences) 

Requested Funds: _________________________ Matching Funds (optional): ____________________ 

Name of person completing form: _____________________ Title: ___________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________  

Phone: _____________________  Email: ____________________________________ 

By checking this box □ the applicant confirms that they are authorized to submit this grant application on 

behalf of the specified Permittee listed above. 

Section 2:  Ability to Perform Proposed project 
 
A. Ability to Use Funds:  If awarded an NRNSA Grant, the awardee must be able to enter into a contract with 

MassDEP within 15-30 days of Grant Award.  

By checking this box □ the Applicant acknowledges and agrees that its entity is able to enter into the 

contract and perform the project and meet all requirements of this state grant.   

 

 



   
 

11 
 

Section 3:  Application Structure  

Please include the following sections in your application: 

Project Description:  Describe the Eligible Project and the proposed work to be covered by this funding. Include 
proposed project tasks, desired outcome(s) for the project, and how the Eligible Entity will be helped to meet 
the goals of the grant program and Title 5 requirements by the project.  If all or some of the Eligible Project 
includes a request for reimbursement for eligible costs incurred after July 1, 2023, and before submission of the 
Application, please include a description of the project partially or fully completed.  
 
Meet Regulatory Requirements: Describe how the proposed project intends to contribute to the development 
of a Wastewater Management Plan and/or application for a Watershed Permit or De Minimis Load under 314 
CMR 21.00? 
 
Financial Need: Describe the need for financial assistance to implement the proposed project, including other 
anticipated or secured funding sources that will support portions of the project (if applicable).  
 
Project Budget and Timeline: Describe the anticipated cost associated with the Eligible Project. Demonstrate a 
realistic understanding of project costs by providing a budget with detailed and credible cost estimates. For any 
in-kind or monetary match, explain how extensive it is and how it will be made available to the project. If all or 
some of the Eligible Project includes a request for reimbursement for eligible costs incurred after July 1, 2023, 
and before submission of the Application, please attach documentation supporting these project costs. Include a 
timeline for the proposed work (and/or work that is in the process of completion).  Please explain in detail how 
the proposed work can be feasibly completed by June 30, 2024, or earlier. 
 
Qualifications of Organization and Project Manager: Describe the qualifications of the Eligible Entity and its 
project manager relevant to carrying out the proposed project. 
 
Project Benefit: Describe how the proposed project contributes to a Watershed Management Plan and/or 
pursuit of a Watershed Permit application or De Minimis Load application. Include information specific to how 
the Proposed Project furthers the goal of the Local Government Unit in comprehensively addressing nitrogen 
impacts in the watershed.  
 
Environmental Justice: If applicable, describe in detail how environmental justice populations will benefit 
directly from the proposed project, and whether EJ populations, EJ communities, or EJ organizations will be 
involved in the proposed project.  
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area 
2023-2024 Grant Program Application 

Section 1 and 2 of application Form available for download at https://www.mass.gov/info-details/grants-
financial-assistance-watersheds-water-quality#natural-resource-nitrogen-sensitive-area-grant-program- 

Overview: The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP or the Department) seeks 
proposals from Massachusetts municipalities or other government entities that meet the definition of “Local 
Government Unit,” as defined in 314 CMR 21.02, and have a watershed that has been designated as a Natural 
Resource Nitrogen Sensitive Area under 310 CMR 15.000, Title 5. The purpose of this grant program is to assist 
municipalities in a variety of activities which facilitate completion of a Watershed Management Plan (WMP) for 
the purpose of completing a Watershed Permit application or De Minimis Load application, each of which 
address solutions to cultural eutrophication caused by nitrogen pollution from wastewater and other sources. 
Only planning activities that contribute to or come from a Watershed Management Plan, Watershed Permit 
application, or De Minimis Load application (as defined in 314 CMR 21.00) will be considered for funding. For 
more information, please see the Notice of Grant Opportunity.  

Section 1:  Applicant Information 

Applicant Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Project Title: ____________________________________________________________________    

Short description of the work (<5 sentences) 

Requested Funds: __$77,053.0_____________ Matching Funds (optional): ____________________ 

Name of person completing form: _____________________  Title: ___________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________

Phone: _____________________ Email: ____________________________________ 

By checking this box □ the applicant confirms that they are authorized to submit this grant application on

behalf of the specified Permittee listed above. 

Section 2:  Ability to Perform Proposed project 

A. Ability to Use Funds:  If awarded an NRNSA Grant, the awardee must be able to enter into a contract with
MassDEP within 15-30 days of Grant Award.

By checking this box □ the Applicant acknowledges and agrees that its entity is able to enter into the

contract and perform the project and meet all requirements of this state grant.

 

Town of Brewster
Grant Request for Herring River, Bass River and Swan Pond River Watersheds

The Town requests funding for three NRNSA projects.  One is to begin the Herring River
Targeted Watershed Management Plan.  The second is to fund the Bass River De Minimis
Watershed Permit Exemption Application for the Bass River Watershed.  The third is to 
fund the exemption application for the Swan Pond Watershed.  These projects are needed
to fulfill the Town's requirements under the new Title 5 and watershed permit regulations.

$6,830.00

Peter Lombardi Town Manager

Town of Brewster 2198 Main Street, Brewster, MA 02631

508-896-3701 x 1128 plombardi@brewster-ma.gov



1 

Town of Brewster                       
2198 Main Street                

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

 
 

Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensi�ve Area Grant Applica�on 
Herring River Watershed Targeted Watershed Plan Development  

Swan Pond River and Bass River Watershed De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on 
Applica�ons 

Town of Brewster, MA 
 
Project Descrip�on 
 
Por�ons of the Town of Brewster are located within four watersheds designated by the 
Massachusets Department of Environmental Protec�on (MassDEP) as Natural Resource 
Nitrogen Sensi�ve Areas.  The four areas include the Pleasant Bay, Herring River, Bass River, and 
Swan Pond River watersheds (Figure 1).  Brewster is one of the four towns that worked with 
MassDEP to develop the Pleasant Bay watershed permit, the first watershed permit issued in 
Massachusets.  In developing and implemen�ng this permit, the town has gained experience 
with the requirements established by Mass DEP in the new Watershed Permit Regula�ons (314 
CMR 21.00).  This experience has set the Town up to begin work to develop appropriate 
planning and permi�ng strategies for the three other watersheds located in Brewster.  The 
Town’s goal is to properly manage the nitrogen loads in these watersheds to suspend the sep�c 
system upgrade requirements established in the recent updates for Nitrogen Sensi�ve Areas in 
the State Environmental Code Title 5 (310 CMR 15.00). 
 
The Town’s Integrated Water Resource Management Plan (IWRMP, HW, Inc., 2013) recognizes 
that the Town needs to manage any water quality issues associated with these watersheds, 
along with the need to protect drinking water quality and protect and restore freshwater ponds.  
 
Brewster is reques�ng grant funds to finance the ini�al phase of land use and nitrogen loading 
assessments needed to develop a targeted watershed management plan for Brewster’s por�on 
of the Herring River watershed  Financing is also requested for the development of De Minimis 
Watershed Permit Exemp�on applica�ons for the areas in Brewsters located in the Bass River 
and the Swan Pond River watersheds.  These projects are summarized below.   
 
Herring River Watershed Targeted Watershed Management Planning 
 
Brewster’s por�on of the Herring River watershed is in the southern por�on of Town.  This area 
is at the upgradient end of the watershed and the nitrogen loads from most of the land areas 
flow into one or more ponds or wetlands before impac�ng the Herring River.  Therefore, a 
significant por�on of the Town’s nitrogen load is atenuated by 50% or more before it reaches 

Office of the: 
Select Board  

Town Manager  
 
 

 



2 

the river.  Past work conducted by the Horsley Witen Group, Inc. (HW) for the Town 
documented that the baseline nitrogen load in Brewster at the �me of the Herring River 
Massachusets Estuaries Project (MEP) report did not exceed the threshold nitrogen loading 
limits for the subwatershed areas in Brewster.  Therefore, the Town’s responsibility in this 
watershed is to manage further development to ensure any addi�onal nitrogen load remains 
below these threshold levels (HW, December 2014). 
 
The Town submited a No�ce of Intent (NOI) to submit a watershed permit applica�on to Mass 
DEP on November 21, 2023.  A no�ce regarding the submission was published in the December 
8, 2023 Environmental Monitor and also published in a local newspaper, the Cape Cod 
Chronicle.  The NOI provides the schedule that the Town plans to follow to complete the 
permi�ng process within seven years from when the new Title 5 and Watershed Permit 
regula�ons were established.  
 
Brewster is reques�ng grant funds to finance the work needed to complete the ini�al phase of 
the Targeted Watershed Management Plan that will be submited to MassDEP no later than July 
6, 2030.  This work includes the following tasks. 
 

• Development of an updated buildout assessment for proper�es in Brewster’s por�on of 
the watershed, taking into account changes in development since the MEP report was 
completed and changes in the Town’s zoning and health regula�ons. 

• Calcula�ng the nitrogen load associated with the poten�al new development using the 
nitrogen loading factors and processes used in the MEP report.  These calcula�ons will 
include the atenua�on factors applied to each subwatershed and take into account the 
nitrogen loading limita�ons required under the Town’s Water Quality Review Bylaw for 
proper�es in the watershed that are also located in a Zone II wellhead protec�on area.  
The regula�ons limit the overall nitrogen load on each property in a Zone II to 5 mg/L. 

• Crea�on of conceptual plans for 2-4 nitrogen management strategies that could be 
implemented in the future watershed permit, including centralized wastewater 
treatment, onsite sep�c systems with nutrient treatment and the possibility of a 
nitrogen trade with the Town of Harwich. 

• Development of ini�al cost es�mates for implemen�ng these plans to assist in selec�ng 
an appropriate approach to include in the permit. 

• Development of a report documen�ng this informa�on that will become the ini�al 
chapters of the Targeted Watershed Management Plan. 

 
The crea�on of this report will provide the Town with the informa�on needed to select op�ons 
to manage the nitrogen load associated with buildout and plan for the future costs needed both 
to finalize the Watershed Permit applica�on and to implement the chosen nitrogen 
management strategies. 
 
A proposal from HW documen�ng the scope of this work and the associated costs is included in 
this applica�on (Appendix A).  The development of the NOI was conducted beginning in October 
2023, and the remaining tasks will be completed no later than June 30, 2024, all within the 



3 

current State Fiscal Year.  The work will follow the requirements contained in the new 
Watershed Permit regula�ons.  No construc�on, implementa�on or ongoing 
opera�onal/maintenance costs are included in this grant request.   
 
Brewster plans to hold two public mee�ng regarding this work.  One will discuss the results of 
the buildout analysis and the regulatory strategies the town is considering to limit the nitrogen 
impacts of future buildout.  The second will present the ini�al concepts to manage any increase 
in nitrogen load and get public input on which op�on should be selected and how it should be 
financed.  These public mee�ngs are provided as a match to this grant request.  
 
Bass River Watershed De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�on 
 
Brewster submited this applica�on to MassDEP on November 21, 2023.  The work began in 
October 2023, so the expenses associated with this applica�on were all incurred within the 
2024 State Fiscal Year.  The applica�on document can be found on the Town’s website at 
htps://www.brewster-ma.gov/town-projects/pages/integrated-water-resource-management-planning-
implementa�on.  It documents the baseline nitrogen load from proper�es in Brewster’s por�on 
of the watershed at the �me MEP report was completed for the Bass River Watershed and 
provides updated nitrogen loads based on 2023 land use data and projected buildout 
condi�ons.  Overall, Brewster’s contribu�on of nitrogen to the Bass River watershed is less than 
0.3% of the total, controllable load throughout the watershed; well below the 3% threshold that 
must be met to apply for and receive a De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on.  In fact, the 
projected buildout load is lower than the baseline nitrogen load from proper�es in Brewster 
because the town has acquired and/or atached conserva�on restric�ons to a former cranberry 
bog and other undeveloped proper�es in this watershed.  Therefore, this applica�on meets the 
requirements under Title 5 to suspend the need for property owners in this watershed to 
upgrade their sep�c systems (310 CMR 15.215(2)).   
 
The exemp�on applica�on was developed in accordance with the new Watershed Permit 
regula�ons and the public no�fica�on followed the requirements in the new Title 5 regula�ons 
to inform local residents that the requirements of upgrades of sep�c systems in this watershed 
are suspended.  The Town is awai�ng MassDEP’s review of the applica�on and will make any 
necessary edits to the applica�on or answer ques�ons about the nitrogen loading assessment 
as needed.  No construc�on, implementa�on or ongoing opera�onal/maintenance costs are 
required in this grant request.   
 
Swan Pond River Watershed De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�on 
 
In Brewster, the watersheds to the Bass River and Swan Pond River overlap significantly and 
there are only two addi�onal parcels in the Swan Pond watershed not in the Bass River 
watershed.  The overlap exists because the watershed areas in Brewster flow to the NW Dennis 
Wells subwatershed.  This subwatershed then contributes groundwater and nitrogen to both 
the Bass River and Swan Pond River estuaries. 
 



4 

Brewster has developed a dra� de minimis watershed permit applica�on for the Swan Pond 
River watershed and will finalize and submit it to MassDEP once the review of the Bass River 
applica�on is completed.  This will allow for changes to the applica�on based on lessons learned 
from the Bass River applica�on process.  The work began in October 2023 and will be 
completed no later than March 2024, so the expenses associated with this applica�on will all be 
within the 2024 State Fiscal Year.  The dra� applica�on documents the baseline nitrogen load 
from proper�es in Brewster’s por�on of the watershed at the �me the Massachusets Estuaries 
Project report was completed for the Swan Pond River Watershed and provides updated 
nitrogen loads based on 2023 land use data and projected buildout condi�ons.  Based on the 
dra� report, Brewster’s contribu�on of nitrogen to the Swan Pond River watershed is less than 
0.7% of the total, controllable load throughout the watershed; well below the 3% threshold that 
must be met to apply for and receive a De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on.  As with the 
Bass River watershed, the projected buildout load is lower than the baseline nitrogen load from 
proper�es in Brewster because the town has acquired and/or atached conserva�on restric�ons 
to a former cranberry bog and other undeveloped proper�es in this watershed.  Therefore, this 
applica�on will also meet the requirements under Title 5 to suspend the need for property 
owners in this watershed to upgrade their sep�c systems (310 CMR 15.215(2)).   
 
The exemp�on applica�on is being developed in accordance with the new Watershed Permit 
regula�ons, and the public no�fica�on requirements in the new Title 5 regula�ons will also be 
followed to inform local residents that the requirements of upgrades of sep�c systems in this 
watershed are suspended.  No construc�on, implementa�on or ongoing 
opera�onal/maintenance costs are included in this grant request.  A public hearing to discuss 
the implica�ons of the two exemp�on applica�ons will be held and financed by the Town as a 
match to this grant request. 
 
Compliance with Regulatory Requirements 
 
All three of these watershed permi�ng projects meet the needs of the Town to develop a 
watershed permit or complete a De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�on and 
therefore suspend the need for local property owners to upgrade their sep�c system under the 
new Title 5 Nitrogen Sensi�ve Natural Resource Area regula�ons.   
 
The exemp�on applica�on for the Bass River watershed clearly demonstrates that the exis�ng 
and future nitrogen load in this area is 0.3%, or ten �mes below the 3% threshold for the 
controllable nitrogen load, mee�ng the requirements for this applica�on under the watershed 
permit regula�ons (314 CMR 21.12).  The calcula�ons developed for the dra� Swan Pond River 
applica�on also document that this exemp�on applica�on meets the 3% threshold, with the 
baseline and updated nitrogen loads both below 0.7%.   
 
Financial Need 
 
The Town’s financial plans for fiscal year 2024 did not include the development of these 
watershed permi�ng projects as the proposed rules were not in effect when the 2024 budget 



5 

was approved for 2024.  The majority of this type of work is typically included in the Town’s five-
year Capital Improvement Plan which was last updated in May 2023 at the �me these 
regula�ons were s�ll in dra� form.  At that point, the final requirements for these projects were 
not finalized and the work the Town would need to do was not fully known. 
 
In the recent past, the Town’s water resource planning work has focused on the implementa�on 
of the Pleasant Bay Watershed Permit, including ongoing work to op�mize the use of fer�lizers 
at the Captains Golf Course, to finalize the nitrogen load associated with buildout and to 
develop a plan to meet the threshold loads for both exis�ng and future loads.  It has also 
focused on the restora�on of freshwater ponds in Brewster.  A por�on of the funding for these 
projects had to be reallocated for the development of the two exemp�on applica�ons and the 
Herring River NOI a�er the regula�ons came into effect in July 2023.  This reduced the funding 
available for the Town’s ongoing work with freshwater ponds and the Pleasant Bay watershed 
planning.  
 
Brewster welcomes the opportunity to request these grant funds to allow the Town to complete 
the work needed for these three watersheds in a �mely fashion while also con�nuing to comply 
with the Pleasant Bay permit and move forward to restore Brewster’s freshwater ponds. 
 
Project Budget and Timeline 
 
Town of Brewster is reques�ng $77,053.00 to finance these three projects as detailed in Table 1. 
 

Table 1: Summary of Requested Funding 
Herring River Watershed  

$49,600.00 for work to begin in January 2024 
Bass River Watershed Exemp�on Applica�on 

$12,944.00 for work conducted between August and December 2023  
 $1,960.00 to address DEP comments on applica�on submited in November 2023 
 $14,954.00 - Total Bass River request  
Swan Pond River Exemp�on Applica�on 

$8,749.00 for work conducted between August and December 2023  
 $3,750.00 to finalize submission and public no�ces 
 $12,499.00 - Total Swam Pond River request  

 Total Fund Request $77,053.00 
 
A descrip�on of the budget required for each of the three watershed funding requests is 
provided below.  They include documenta�on for the costs incurred since the exemp�on 
applica�on projects began earlier in this fiscal year and for proposed costs for work that will be 
completed between now and June 30, 2024.  Following these discussions, the value of the 
proposed in-kind town staff services and consultant fees that are provided as a match to the 
grant fund requests are documented.   
 
 



6 

Herring River Targeted Watershed Plan Development   
 
The overall cost for this project is es�mated at $49,600.00 as shown on the atached proposal 
from the Horsley Witen Group (Appendix A).  The work is expected to begin in January 2024 
and will be completed by June 30, 2024, prior to the end of the fiscal year.  The NOI to create a 
watershed permit for the Herring River was submited in November 2023 and the cost for this 
submission is provided as a match to this grant request.  
 
Bass River De Minimis Watershed Permit Applica�on Development 
 
The Town spent $12,994.00 between August and December 2023 to develop and submit this 
applica�on and to publish the required public no�ces.  The work conducted to develop and 
submit the applica�on began in August 2023, prior to the announcement of this grant 
opportunity.  A labor transac�on report documen�ng the �me billed to this task through 
December 2023 is provided in Appendix B.  Please note the work to develop this applica�on 
took place within the 2024 fiscal year.  Appendix C shows that the remaining budget for this task 
is $1,960.00 which will be used to coordinate with MassDEP on ques�ons regarding the 
submission and/or updates to the document.  Therefore, the total grant request for this task is 
$14,954.00.  The �ming of the remaining work depends on the receipt of any comments or 
ques�ons on the applica�on from MassDEP and Brewster will work to complete it no later than 
June 30, 32024 and hopefully sooner. 
 
Swan Pond River De Minimis Watershed Permit Applica�on Development 
 
The Town spent $8,749.00 between August and December 2023 to develop the dra� of this 
exemp�on applica�on and prepare dra�s of the required public no�ces. A labor transac�on 
report documen�ng the �me billed to this task through December 2023 is provided in Appendix 
B.  Please note the work to develop the dra� applica�on took place within the 2024 fiscal year.  
Appendix C shows that the remaining budget for this task is $3,750.00 which will be used to 
finalize the document, submit it to Mass DEP and publish announcements in the Environmental 
Monitor and the Cape Cod Chronicle.  Therefore, the total grant request for this task is 
$12,499.00.  This work will be completed no later than April 2024.  
 
Proposed In-Kind Services and Consultant Fees to Match the Grant Requests 
 
The Town is offering total match of $6,830.00 in consultant fees and $4,000 of in-kind services 
to support the funding requested from MassDEP.  This work includes the following tasks: 
 

• $1,380.00 in consul�ng fees for the development of the NOI for the Herring River NOI 
filing -  

• $4,000.00 in consul�ng fees and $3,000.00 in in-kind services for two public hearings for 
the Herring River watershed planning work including a discussion on the results of the 
buildout analysis and a discussion on the proposed strategies for nitrogen management. 



7 

• $1,500.00 in consul�ng fees and $1,000.00 in in-kind services for one public hearing to 
discuss the two de minimis watershed permit exemp�on applica�ons and their impact 
on town residents. 

 
Qualifica�ons of Organiza�on and Project Manager 
 
Water resource planning work in Brewster is led by the Town’s Water Resources Task Force.  The 
Task Force is led by Peter Lombardi, the Town Manager and includes the Select Board Chair, the 
Natural Resources Director, the Health Director, the Town Planner, the Water Superintendent, 
the Board of Health Chair, the Natural Resources Advisory Commission Chair, and the President 
of the Brewster Ponds Coali�on. 
 
The work on the proposed projects will be directed by Chris Miller, the Director of Natural 
Resources for Brewster.  Mr. Miller has been leading the Town’s Integrated Water Resource 
Planning Work for the last ten years and, prior to that, he was a significant contributor to the 
IWRMP planning done from 2010 through 2014.  Mr. Miller is the Town’s representa�ve on the 
Pleasant Bay Alliance and has par�cipated in the development and implementa�on of the 
Pleasant Bay watershed permit development and implementa�on, giving him significant 
experience in the watershed permit process.  He also directs the consul�ng work provided by 
HW which has worked with the Town since 2011 on the development and implementa�on of 
the IWRMP.  
 
The engineering work to complete the three projects for which funding is requested will be 
conducted by HW, led by Mark Nelson, P.G.  HW has worked with the Town of Brewster since 
2011 to complete the IWRMP and to support the development and implementa�on of the 
Pleasant Bay watershed permit.  This work has included the previous analysis of the nitrogen 
load reduc�ons that Brewster must meet for the Herring River watershed.  This work, and work 
to analyze the buildout nitrogen load for the Pleasant Bay watershed has given HW staff 
extensive experience in the nitrogen loading calcula�ons used in the MEP models for the 
Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensi�ve Areas on Cape Cod.  This gives the firm a good founda�on 
for the nitrogen loading calcula�ons needed for the De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on 
applica�ons for Bass River and Swan Pond River watersheds and for the updated buildout 
assessment needed for the Herring River Watershed.  In addi�on, HW par�cipated in the public 
comment process led by MassDEP to develop the new Title 5 and watershed permit regula�ons 
and recommended that a process to manage a Town’s requirements for watersheds with limited 
nitrogen impacts be developed.  These comments likely helped MassDEP develop the De 
Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�on process. 
 
Project Benefits 
 
In September 2023,  the Brewster Select Board directed the Town to implement the planning 
and permi�ng work necessary to suspend the new Title 5 upgrade requirements for proper�es 
in Natural Resource Nitrogen Sensi�ve Areas.  The three projects described here are the ones 



8 

needed to comply with this direc�on as they represent the three watersheds, outside of the 
Pleasant Bay watershed that are subject to the new regula�ons (see Figure 1). 
 
The planning work for the Herring River watershed is an essen�al first step in developing the 
necessary Targeted Watershed Plan that will be needed to support the permit applica�on for 
this watershed.  It will give the Town a clear picture of the required nitrogen load reduc�ons 
and conceptual plans on how to achieve these reduc�ons.  This project was described in the 
NOI submited to MassDEP in November and will provide the informa�on needed to confirm 
the nitrogen load reduc�ons needed in this area and evaluate possible solu�ons needed to 
submit a watershed permit applica�on.  It will also provide clear informa�on that can be 
presented to local residents so they understand what work will be required to implement the 
permit and how much it will cost. This work will be presented to local residents in two public 
mee�ngs (ini�al mee�ng to present the preliminary list of approaches to limit buildout 
nitrogen, second mee�ng to present final report). 
 
The crea�on and submission of the two De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�ons 
completes the Town’s work to meet the new requirements for the Bass River and Swan Pond 
River watersheds, suspending the need for property owners in these areas to upgrade their 
sep�c systems.  Comple�on of these projects will allow the Town to focus on the 
implementa�on of the Herring River and Pleasant Bay permits as well as on the implementa�on 
of freshwater pond restora�on projects.  There will be a public mee�ng presen�ng the results of 
the De Minimis exemp�ons if granted by MADEP.  
 
Environmental Jus�ce 
 
As shown in Figure 1, there are no environmental jus�ce communi�es within Brewster that are 
located in the three watersheds associated with these projects.  There are environmental jus�ce 
communi�es in the Herring River, Bass River, and Swan Pond River watersheds, but they are 
located in Dennis and Harwich. 
 
The work proposed for the Herring River watershed will benefit downgradient areas in Harwich 
by reducing the future nitrogen load from future development.  Similarly, the comple�on of the 
exemp�on applica�ons for Bass River and Swan Pond River watersheds confirms that Brewster’s 
nitrogen load does not impact the water quality in these estuaries in which environmental 
jus�ce communi�es are located.  Brewster provided public no�fica�ons regarding the Herring 
River NOI and the Bass River Exemp�on applica�on to the local newspaper available to the 
environmental jus�ce communi�es in Harwich.  Moving forward, Brewster is commited to 
working with its neighboring towns on comple�ng the Herring River watershed permi�ng and 
restora�on and will work to iden�fy opportuni�es to support the environmental jus�ce 
communi�es within this watershed. 
 
 
 
 



9 

References 
 
Horsley Witen Group, Inc. 2013.  Integrated Water Resource Management Plan, Phase II.  Town 
of Brewster, MA. 
 
Horsley Witen Group, Inc. December 2014. Analysis of Herring River Massachusets Estuaries 
Project Report.   
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A: Herring River Buildout and Nitrogen Loading Assessment Proposal, Including 
Proposed Budget. 
Appendix B: Summary of Costs Incurred for the Development of the Bass River and Swan 
Pond River De Minimis Watershed Permit Exemp�on Applica�ons. 
Appendix C: Documenta�on of Proposed Costs to Complete the Bass River and Swan Pond 
River De Minimis Watershed Permit Applica�ons. 
 



 

horsleywitten.com 

 

 
Memorandum 

To: Chris Miller, Director, Brewster Department of Natural Resources 

From: Mark Nelson 

Date: December 18, 2023 

Re: Proposed Scope of Work for Herring River Buildout and Nitrogen 
Loading Evaluation 

 

As you requested, I have prepared the following scope of work to conduct an 
updated buildout assessment and associated nitrogen loading evaluation for 
the Herring River watershed in Brewster.  The goal is to determine how much 
nitrogen must be removed from the Town’s portion of the watershed and begin 
the initial planning for options to meet the necessary removals.  This information 
will form the foundation for the watershed permit application that will be 
submitted to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 
(MassDEP). 

A previous evaluation by the Horsley Witten Group, Inc. (HW) found that the 
nitrogen load from existing development in the Town’s portion of the Herring 
River Watershed is low enough that it meets the threshold levels for protecting 
water quality in the River.  However, the load associated with future 
development will have to be managed to keep the overall load below the 
required threshold levels.  Therefore, HW proposes to conduct a buildout 
assessment for this watershed and calculate the associated nitrogen load 
resulting from any new development.  Based on this information, HW will provide 
an initial evaluation of the options for managing this load. 

Task 1: Buildout Assessment 

HW will review the Town’s land use records to determine where development in 
the Herring River watershed has taken place since the Massachusetts Estuaries 
Project (MEP) report for the Herring River was developed in 2013.  HW will also 
analyze the potential for additional development in the watershed based on 
the Town’s current zoning and regulatory requirements.  This analysis will be 



Chris Miller 
December 18, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

based on the previous town-wide buildout assessment conducted in 2010, with 
updates for parcels with new development since that time, and for parcels that 
have been permanently protected for open space purposes.  A total number of 
potential new houses and businesses will be determined for use in the nitrogen 
loading calculations to be developed in Task 2.  HW will submit a draft of the 
buildout assessment to the Town Planner for review prior to completing the 
assessment.  

Estimated Cost:  $17,440 

Task 2: Calculation of Required Nitrogen Reduction Needed 

HW will calculate the potential nitrogen load from the future development using 
the nitrogen loading factors applied in the MEP report for the Herring River.  This 
analysis will be done for each individual subwatershed contributing to the 
Herring River that exists in Brewster.  It will also apply the attenuation factors used 
in the MEP report for these subwatersheds as this information is needed to 
confirm the potential impact on the Herring River.  The additional nitrogen load 
from buildout in each subwatershed will be compared to the maximum, 
threshold load established in the MEP report and the required nitrogen 
reductions will be calculated.   

Estimated Cost:  $11,700 

 
Task 3: Initial Assessment of Options to Meet the Nitrogen Reduction Goals. 

HW will develop a list of nitrogen management options for the Herring River 
watershed to reduce the impact of future development and meet the required 
nitrogen reduction goals.  This could include options such as the use of 
advanced septic system treatment technologies, a neighborhood wastewater 
treatment facility, a nitrogen trade with the Town of Harwich and other potential 
options.  This evaluation will take into account how the nitrogen attenuation in 
certain watersheds affects the overall nitrogen removal that can be 
accomplished.  It will also consider how plans to meet the Herring River threshold 
loads could also be used to protect freshwater ponds in the watershed.  HW will 
develop a preliminary list of options for review by the Town.  Once the list is 
finalized, HW will provide an overview of each option, an initial, conceptual 
estimate of the cost and other issues to consider, such as long term operation 
and maintenance.   



Chris Miller 
December 18, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

Estimated Cost:  $10,480 

Task 4: Draft and Final Report 

HW will prepare a draft report summarizing the information developed in Tasks 1-
3 for review by the Town.  Upon receipt of comments, HW will prepare a final 
version providing recommendations on the next steps needed to develop a 
watershed permit for the Herring River watershed. 

Estimated Cost:  $10,340 

Total Estimated Cost: $49,960 

HW is prepared to begin this work upon authorization from the Town and will 
finalize the work within six months of our notification to proceed. 



Task Principal Associate Principal Senior Associate

Senior 
Environmental 
Professional; 

Senior Engineer III

Senior Engineer II; 
Senior Planner II; 
Senior Scientist II; 
Senior Surveyor II

Senior Engineer I; 
Senior 

Environmental 
Scientist I; Senior 
GIS Technician; 

Senior Landscape 
Architect I; Senior 

Planner I

Designer III, 
Engineer III; Planner 

III; Scientist III; 
Surveyor III; System 

Administrator III; 
GIS/Engineering 

Technician III

Designer II; 
Engineer II; GIS 

Specialist II; 
Landscape 
Architect II; 
Planner II; 
Scientist II

CAD-GIS Technician I; 
Designer I; Emergency 

Response Planner I; 
Engineer I; Graphic 

Designer I; Landscape 
Architect I; Planner I; 

Scientist I

Admin Survey Crew Intern

Claytor, Estey, 
Kelly, Lee, Nelson*, 

Noble

Bernardo, Kitchell, 
Kuchar, Price, Simon*

Baker, Ball, Camilli, 
Ford, Keefer, West Massa, Relstab

Daley, Henderson, 
Kennedy, Kite, 

MacKenzie, 
Moravec

Bernabe, Beigert, 
Carlson, Cohen, 

Davis, Easler, 
Glover, Kroll, Laham, 

Pereira, Stanish

Demanche, Hoffman, 
Kittila, McWatters, 
Ogonek, Procton, 

Reale-Munroe, 
Snider, Veary, 

Wollman

Armstrong, Brandt, 
Cady, Chatelain, 

Feeney, 
Gustavesen, 

Kappler, King, 
Lehman, McCarthy, 

Queenan

Guerzon, Knight, 
Polidor, Rae, Seward-

Aponte, Spink-Colborn*, 
Webster

Administrative 2-person Survey 
Crew Intern

$230 $205 $195 $190 $170 $150 $130 $120 $110 $70 $170 $70
1 24 16 24 40 104.0 17,440.00$    
2 16 12 40 4 72.0 11,700.00$    
3 16 16 24 8 64.0 10,480.00$    
… 16 8 6 24 8 62.0 10,340.00$    

hours 72.0 0.0 36.0 0.0 22.0 24.0 128.0 20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 302.0 $49,960.00
HW LABOR TOTALS $16,560.00 $0.00 $7,020.00 $0.00 $3,740.00 $3,600.00 $16,640.00 $2,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 302 $49,960.00

49,960.00$    

Task 2: Nit Reduction calcs
Task 1: Buildout

Task 3: Nit reduction options

Labor Total

Task 4: Draft and final Report.

20
23

 R
A

TE
S

Client:    
Project:    

Project Location:    

Proposed Budget:   

Totals

Rates

$49,960.00

Description

Town of Brewster
Herring River Watershed Planning
Brewster, MA



Labor Transactions ET - Horsley Witten Group, Inc.
7/1/2023 to 12/31/2023
11109N Integrated Water Resource Management Plan FY24

Total Expenses Tasks 4 and 5 21,743.00$                   
11109N:04 Task 4: Development of the Watershed Permit Exemption Application for the Swan Pond River Watershed

18. 8,749.00$                     
Demanche, Michael 

9/21/2023 2.75 358.00$                        
Parcel data correlation for assessment
9/22/2023 1.5 195.00$                        
9/25/2023 4.5 585.00$                        
9/26/2023 4.5 585.00$                        
Meeting, looking into spreadsheet calculations
10/5/2023 0.75 98.00$                          
11/21/2023 2.5 325.00$                        
GIS figure update and tables for permit app. Fixing accessory building determination issue

Rood, Tricia K.
11/28/2023 0.5 35.00$                          
coord 2 newspaper legal ads
12/1/2023 0.5 35.00$                          
legal ads for 2 filings
12/4/2023 0.5 35.00$                          

Nelson, Mark E 8/28/2023 5 1,150.00$                     
10/30/2023 2 460.00$                        
10/31/2023 2 460.00$                        
11/1/2023 3 690.00$                        
11/6/2023 3 690.00$                        
11/28/2023 3.75 863.00$                        
`11/20/2023 2 460.00$                        
12/1/2023 1 230.00$                        
12/4/2023 2.5 575.00$                        
12/21/2023 4 920.00$                        

11109N:05 Task 5: Development of the Watershed Permit Exemption Application for the Bass River Watershed
49.25 12,994.00$                   

Demanche, Michael 
10/13/2023 3.5 455.00$                        
10/16/2023 3.5 455.00$                        
10/18/2023 3 390.00$                        
10/19/2023 6.5 845.00$                        
Brewster Landuse and GIS figures for report
10/20/2023 7.5 975.00$                        
10/23/2023 5.5 715.00$                        
calculations QC and table productionGIS figure for parcel classification changes
10/24/2023 2 260.00$                        
GIS figure edits, calculation tables updates for controllable loads
10/26/2023 0.5 65.00$                          
11/29/2023 4 520.00$                        
GIS figures
11/30/2023 5 650.00$                        
Calculations, figure edits
12/3/2023 4 520.00$                        
Updated Swan Pond River figures and calculations
12/5/2023 0.25 33.00$                          
Swan Pond river area calculation
12/6/2023 0.75 98.00$                          
report proofread

Rood, Tricia K.
10/24/2023 0.75 53.00$                          
assist mark with formatting report
10/26/2023 1 70.00$                          
11/22/2023 1 70.00$                          
12/4/2023 0.5 35.00$                          
legal ad

Nelson, Mark E 8/21/2023 3 690.00$                        
9/14/2023 1 230.00$                        
9/15/2023 1 230.00$                        
9/19/2023 1 230.00$                        
10/3/2023 2 460.00$                        
10/4/2023 3.5 805.00$                        
10/24/2023 5.5 1,265.00$                     
10/25/2023 4 920.00$                        

.25 1/3/2024 1:36:55 PM .25 1 of 2 



Labor Transactions ET - Horsley Witten Group, Inc.
7/1/2023 to 12/31/2023

11/7/2023 2 460.00$                        
11/9/2023 1 230.00$                        
11/10/2023 1 230.00$                        
11/20/2023 0.5 115.00$                        
11/21/2023 1 230.00$                        
11/22/2023 3 690.00$                        

.25 1/3/2024 1:36:55 PM .25 2 of 2 



 

horsleywitten.com 

 

Memorandum 

To: Chris Miller, Town of Brewster Natural Resources Director 

From: Mark Nelson  

Date: January 4, 2024 

Re: Budgets for Completion of the Bass River and Swan Pond River .De Minimis 
Watershed Permit Exemption Applications. 

 

As you requested, I have prepared estimates of the costs required to complete the 
remaining work on the Bass River and Swan Pond River De Minimis Watershed Permit 
Exemption Applications.  The estimates are based on the work done to date on these 
applications and the required efforts to complete them and address any comments 
from the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) as they 
complete their review.  Details are provided below. 

Bass River Application 

This application has been submitted and the public notifications have been taken 
place in the Environmental Monitor and the Cape Cod Chronicle.  The remaining work 
includes time needed to address any comments or make edits to the report based on 
input from Mass DEP.  The cost for this work is $1,960.00 as documented on the attached 
spreadsheet.  The costs to date for this project are $12,994.  This additional effort will 
raise the budget for this work to $14,954.00. 

 

Swan Pond River Application  

This application has been drafted and submitted to the Town for review.  The remaining 
work includes time needed to complete a review of the calculations used in the report,  
address any comments from the Town, develop the notifications to be published in the 
Environmental Monitor and the Cape Cod Chronicle and finalize the maps that will be 
included in the report.  Time is also allocated to make edits to the report based on input 
from Mass DEP.  The cost for this work is $3,750.00 as documented on the attached 
spreadsheet.  The costs to date for this project are $8,749.00.  This additional effort will 
raise the budget for this work to $12,4994.00 

 



Aging in Brewster: A Community 
Needs Assessment

Key Findings and Recommendations 

Commissioned by the Brewster Council on Aging

Caitlin Coyle, PhD, Beth Rouleau, MS

Center for Social & Demographic Research on Aging

Gerontology Institute

University of Massachusetts Boston



Acknowledgments

This project would not have been possible without support from:

 Elton Cutler, Director of the COA

 Sharon Tennstedt, co-chair, Council on Aging Board

 Andrea Nevins, co-chair, Council on Aging Board

 All the stakeholders and residents who took time to 
participate in interviews, focus groups, and the survey



Background & Purpose

• This project was commissioned by the Town of Brewster to identify 
and plan for the needs, interests, preferences, and opinions of 
Brewster residents age 60 and older.

• The final report is meant to:
• Inform strategic planning by the Brewster Council on Aging, and organizations 

that work with and on behalf of older residents of Brewster, about the 
strengths and challenges of aging in Brewster

• Present recommendations to support the Town and COA in responding to the 
changing demographics and the community concerns



Project overview

Demographic profile

11 Key informant interviews (Spring 2023)

3 Focus groups (Fall 2023)

Community Survey 50+ (February, n=1,390) 
(23% response rate)

Document review

Components of 
the Brewster COA 
Needs Assessment



Key Findings
Information synthesized from all data sources



Older residents make up nearly half of the Brewster 
population…and that is expected to increase

37% 35% 30%

25%
18%

12%

28%
37% 43%

11% 10% 15%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2010 2020 2030

Population trends, age distribution of Brewster residents 
2010-2020 with projections to 2030

Under 45 45-59 60-79 80+



More than 1 in 4 respondents have been living in 
Brewster for less than 10 years, most want to stay 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

50-59

60-69

70-79

80+

How important is it to you to remain 
living in Brewster as you get older?

Very Important

Somewhat Important

Slightly/not at all important

26%

20%
23%

30%

How long have you lived in Brewster?

Less than 10 years 10-19 years

20-29 years 30 years



…But residents have concerns about their ability 
to remain in Brewster as they age

Common concerns reported

•Affordability, cost of living

•Proximity to amenities

•Future transportation concerns

•Need for in-home supports

•Maintaining health and 
independence

The real estate taxes are killing 
me.  Now they are almost 1/4 
of my income, with house 
insurance that's almost 1/2 of 
my monthly income!! And with 
the upcoming increases for the 
schools and possibly library, I 
am being taxed out of 
existence!!!

The fact that there are no 
pharmacies, and no large grocery 
stores in town for myself or 
someone to get medications, etc 
without traveling out of Brewster

Will there be help if I 
should ever need a home 
health aide or nurse's 
aide in the future. 

Will I be able to ride my 
bike and take the bus to 
places I want to go for 

shopping, healthcare, etc. 
once I stop driving a car. I 
fear being housebound.

Very poor medical care available 
travel off Cape needed constantly to 
have quality care. 

The fact that taxes continue to 
increase but the services 
provided for seniors never seem 
to bet any better.  The Council 
on Aging building is, in my 
opinion, not one which is 
conducive to encourage senior 
participation.

That I can 
physically and 
financially be 
comfortable 
and (in my 
happy home) in 
Brewster till my 
final days



In the next 5 years, if financial needs or a change in your/your 
partner’s health or physical ability requires that you move from 
your current residence or create an alternative solution, what 
kind of housing would you prefer?

51%

36%

9% 8%

28%

18%

39% 38%

7% 9%

16% 15%

29%

37%

13% 13% 12% 12%
17%

25%

15% 16%

8%
12%

Smaller single-family home Condominium Living with family Apartment Developing an accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) – a small 
apartment in your home or in 

another structure on your 
property

Sharing my home or moving in
with another person(s) who
shares expenses or provides
hep in exchange for reduced

or no rent

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+



Concerns related to the 
development of an ADU

51%

38%
34%

30%

10%

34%

23% 20%
18%

7%

21%
17% 15%

12% 7%18%
10% 10%

6% 4%

Understanding local laws
and zoning regulations

How to finance the cost How to find builders or
contractors

Insurance coverage Other (please specify):

If you would consider developing an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) in your home or on your 
property, would you need help with any of the following?

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+



Supports needed to facilitate home sharing

19% 21%

14% 11%
18%

19%
14%

11%

21% 20% 17%

12%

0% 4% 4% 4%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

If you would consider sharing your home or moving to another person’s home, would you need 
help with any of the following?

Screening persons for this shared housing arrangement

Negotiating an agreement with the other person(s)

Preparing a legal document that lays out the relationship and responsibilities

Other (Please specify):



Transportation 

27%

9% 1%

Non Driver Drives with
limitations

Drives without
Limitations

Percentage of respondents who have had to 
miss, cancel, or reschedule a medical 

appointment in the past 12 months, by driving 
status 

26%

9% 3%

Non Driver Drives with limitations Drives without
Limitations

In the pas 12 months, have you used the CCRTA or 
COA transportation?, by driving status

• 21 % of survey 
respondents drive 
with some limitations 

• 5% do not drive at all
o 14% of 

respondents 80+



Caregivers need informal and formal help, 
as well guidance accessing supports

53% 50%

34%
25%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

Do you now or have you in the past 
2 years provided care or assistance 
to a person who is disabled or frail?

42%

19%

16%

23%

37%

38%

39%

26%

17%

28%

28%

21%

5%

15%

18%

30%

50-59

60-69

70-79

80+

How challenging is/was it for you to care for this person(s) 
and meet your other responsibilities?

Very Challenging Somewhat Challenging

Neither Challenging Nor Easy Somewhat/very easy



Mobility and dementia are top concerns for 
caregiving and accessibility 

43%
57%

Strongly Agree/Agree

Strongly Disagree/Disagree

7%

19%

27%

27%

32%

36%

63%

Intellectual or developmental disability

Psychological condition (e.g., anxiety, depression)

Sensory/hearing/vision challenges

Alzheimer’s disease or dementia

Chronic disease (e.g., cancer, diabetes, asthma, Parkinson’s disease)

Recovering from surgery or injury

Mobility issues/frailty

Reasons for needing care: 

" There are adequate resources to support residents 
living with dementia and their family caregivers in 
Brewster or on Cape Cod."



3%

3%

5%

12%

18%

26%

31%

35%

Daily activities (e.g., preparing meals or keeping track of
bills)

Personal care (e.g., getting dressed)

Other

Routine chores or house cleaning

Technology support (e.g., cable settings or connecting to
Wi-Fi)

Small repair projects (e.g., fixing a small appliance,
replacing locks)

Yard work (mowing lawn, raking leaves)

Snow removal

Do you require help with any of the following activities at home?

• 10% of respondents report 
having a condition that limits 
their ability to participate in the 
community.

• 21% of respondents 80+ 
report having such 
condition



Risk of isolation

69%

31%

Would you know whom to contact in 
Brewster should you or someone in 

your family need help accessing 
social services, health services, or 

other municipal services? 

Yes No

• 13% of respondents get together, in 
person, with friends, family, or  
neighbors less than 12 times per year. 

• Concerns like “Children live at a 
distance and are unable to assist.” and 
“Winter season limited activities to 
socialize.”

11%

16%

20%

12%

89%

84%

80%

88%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

50-59

60-69

70-79

80+

Do you know someone living within a 1-hour distance 
on whom you can rely for help when you need it?

No Yes



Brewster Council on Aging and 
Senior Center 



Participation at the Brewster Senior Center

• 61% of all survey respondents never use 
the Senior Center

• Among those who participate at the 
Senior Center, 

• 64% go a few times a year

• 19% go monthly

• 17% go weekly

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

Percentage using the COA, by age



Factors that limit participation at the Senior Center

24%

14%

23%
19%

1%

16%
13%

2%

19%

12%

3%

12%

22%

2%
7%

13%

6%

16%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

I am still
working

I am not old
enough

I am unaware
of activities or

programs
available

I participate in
programs
elsewhere

Hours of
operation are
inconvenient

I am not
interested in

the COA
programs

I do not have
time

The building is
not accessible

and safe

Other (Please
specify):

Non User User



Thinking about your own future interests, which areas would you 
prioritize in expanding the programs at the Brewster COA?

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

Outdoor exercise (e.g., 
hiking/walking, kayaking) 
(64%)

Outdoor exercise (e.g., hiking/walking, 
kayaking) (60%)

Performances and visual arts (e.g., 
concerts, lectures) (51%)

Performances and visual arts 
(e.g., concerts, lectures) (39%)

Wellness programs (e.g.  
stress management, 
meditation) (53%)

Performances and visual arts (e.g., 
concerts, lectures) (53%)

Lifelong learning programs (e.g., 
history, writing, languages, 
cultural courses) (43%)

Day trips (38%)

Indoor exercise (e.g., yoga, 
aerobics) (53%)

Indoor exercise (e.g., yoga, aerobics) 
(53%)

Outdoor exercise (e.g., 
hiking/walking, kayaking) (42%)

Lifelong learning programs (e.g., 
history, writing, languages, 
cultural courses) (38%)

Social activities (e.g., games or 
parties) (51%)

Lifelong learning programs (e.g., history, 
writing, languages, cultural courses) 
(48%)

Indoor exercise (e.g., yoga,
aerobics) (42%)

Technology skills classes (e.g., 
smartphone applications) (37%)

Arts classes (e.g., art, 
photography, acting, music) 
(45%)

Wellness programs (e.g.  stress 
management, meditation) (42%)

Day trips (37%) Indoor exercise (e.g., yoga, 
aerobics) (27%)



Thinking about your own future needs, which of areas would you 
prioritize in expanding the services offered through the Brewster COA?

51%

56%

46%

44% 30% 26%

3%

45%

52%

45%

52%

23% 18%

4%

51%
46%

36%

49%

18% 14%
6%

52%

35%
35%

48%

10% 11% 6%

Transportation Health and
wellness programs

(e.g., podiatry,
blood pressure

clinics, massage)

Professional
services (e.g., tax
preparation, legal

services)

Information and
referral about local
resources and area

providers or
agencies

Family support
(e.g., caregiving

support,
bereavement

groups, seminars)

Adult day health
programming

Other

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+



Brewster’s Senior Center, a vital resource to the community,  
is outdated, inadequate, and lacks accessibility features.

Brewster COA Needs 
Assessment Study (2016): The 
building currently housing the 
Brewster COA is viewed by 
survey respondents and focus 
group participants as 
inadequate for community 
needs. Concerns were voiced 
about the safety of the building, 
especially for participants with 
mobility limitations.

• Limitations will increasingly  restrict the COA’s ability to provide impactful programs and services that respond 
to  growing and diverse needs among residents.

• Multiple town studies document needs related to Brewster’s large and growing population of older adults; the 
2023 Local Comprehensive Plan reinforces the goals established by prior community studies and elevates the 
development of an intergenerational community Center as a foundation from which impactful programs, 
services, and amenities would be offered to residents of all ages

Brewster COA Needs Assessment 
Study (2016): Most thought a 
community center within which a 
senior center could be embedded was 
more desirable, and made more sense 
given the lack of recreation and 
community facilities in Brewster. 
Participants also viewed opportunities 
for intergenerational programming 
that may be facilitated through a 
community center model as positive.

COA Age-Friendly Action Plan 
FY19-FY23: Residents have 
expressed preference for a 
community center, in which the COA 
would be housed, both in the Needs 
Assessment Study and Vision 
Advisory Group workshops.

2023 Local Comprehensive 
Plan: The most frequently 
mentioned infrastructure need 
(during the 2017 Vision 
Planning Process) was for a 
multigenerational community 
center combined with a new 
location for the Council on 
Aging.

2018 Vision Plan:  Create a 
community center to house activities 
and interaction for people of all 
ages.



Sea Camps Property



How likely is it that you, or members of your household, would use 
a multigenerational community center at the former Sea Camps?

58%
46% 43%

34%

18%

27% 28%

29%

13% 14% 17%
25%

11% 13% 12% 13%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

Very Likely Somewhwat Likely Unsure Somewhat/Very Unlikely



What type of multigenerational community center would you support? 

17%
29% 35%

46%

74%
60%

59%
48%

9% 11% 6% 5%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

Other
Multigenerational community center that has fully integrated space and programming for residents of all ages
Multigenerational community center that has dedicated space and programming for residents 60 and older



Considering a potential multigenerational community center, what 
is your preference for how space and programming are organized?

39% 42%
48%

40%
33% 30% 33%

40%

9% 9% 10% 14%
19% 19%

9% 7%

50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

A multigenerational community center located in one building

A multigenerational community center located in different buildings on one site

N/A, I would not support a multigenerational community center

Other (please specify):



The former Sea Camps site presents a range of opportunities for use. 
Which of the following would you like to see happen there?

10%

24%

28%

33%

37%

39%

40%

41%

41%

42%

44%

45%

63%

64%

66%

Other (please specify):

Outdoor exercise equipment

Woodworking shop or Fix-it programs

Art classes or space for artists to work

Community gardens, including raised beds

Indoor swimming pool

Indoor game area (e.g., ping pong, pool, Mah-Jongg, card and…

Picnic areas

Informal social gathering spaces inside or outside

Coffee lounge/snack area

An indoor gym

Intergenerational programs (e.g., community events, shared…

Active recreation or sports (e.g., tennis, pickleball, swimming,…

Entertainment programs (e.g., concerts, films)

Passive recreation (e.g., hiking, walking circuits, bird watching)



Recommendations 
for the Town of 
Brewster



Building engagement among residents and partnerships for 
programming are essential tools while the Town explores 
solutions to address the COA’s inadequate and outdated space. 

Build awareness of 
the Brewster 

Senior Center,  a 
community asset –

one that is 
operating in 

restrictive space 
amidst growing 

community needs 
and demands. 

•Investigate opportunities to increase Senior Center programs and services at satellite 
locations in the community, such as public housing, the library, the schools, and local 
businesses.

•Build participation levels among younger seniors and new retirees, through programs that 
reflect prioritized interests, to foster support for the development of a new center that will  
address existing limitations through innovative design features, programs, and services.

•Consider developing an “ambassador program” and coach residents to actively encourage 
new participants. This could function as a property-tax work-off position or offer an incentive 
for the number of new participants they can recruit.

•Consider ways to welcome first-time participants who are reluctant to participate on their 
own (e.g., a “new member day” or a “bring a buddy” program). 

Use technology 
and existing social 

connections to 
encourage new 

participants

•Explore the use of technology (e.g., phone or other mobile devices) to include residents who 
are unable to leave their home in existing programs through video technology or making 
“friendly visits” by telephone.



Obtaining 
supplementary and 

accessible 
transportation is a 

concern for for 
some residents as 

they age.

Consider developing a local “travel training” program 
where residents can learn about options and navigation 
while providing suggestions for future services to meet 
evolving needs.

Support the expansion of volunteer transportation 
programs, including Nauset Neighbors. Consider grant 
funding opportunities or fund raising to provide access to 
adaptive vehicles.

Target information to communities within Brewster who 
may have particular need for transportation services 
including those living alone and those with disabilities. 
Consider additional outreach for transportation when 
inclement weather is anticipated.

Conduct targeted, proactive, outreach to raise awareness 
of existing programs that provide transportation to 
medical appointments and other destinations.



Financial insecurity—driven largely by housing costs is a 
concern and barrier for many residents.

• Promote awareness of existing property tax relief programs and inform residents of proposals being 
considered by the Select Board and Finance Team for a future Town Meeting.

o Document the number of residents who are “turned away” from existing programs to establish 
recommendations for expanding access. 

o Explore other incentive programs for volunteers. 

• Engage with local businesses and organizations to create “senior discount” programs to offset costs and 
improve quality of life for older residents. 

• Explore partnerships that will build community engagement around food insecurity and help to destigmatize 
access to food resources. 

• Facilitate the development of volunteer-based Community Gardens to support increasing demands on 
the food pantry and the need for affordable fresh produce on Cape Cod. 



There is a pressing need for housing solutions that address  
affordability and downsizing needs.

• Explore innovative housing solutions that diversify housing stock and offer features that facilitate aging in 
place. Consider:

• Greenhouse Senior Living, a model offering intergenerational housing and workforce housing that is 
currently being developed on Martha’s Vineyard.

• Cottage style communities that offer a small footprint, universal design features, supportive services, and 
events for social engagement.

• Host informational workshops to support residents interested in creating an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) or 
home-share arrangement. Consider the formation of a working group that is charged with informing residents 
about potential revisions to the ADU zoning by-law under consideration for Town Meeting 2024. 

• Continue to host AARP Home Fit programming at the library or Town Hall to support residents in identifying 
needs and solutions for their home environments.  

• Connect residents with local handyperson services or home repair services. See the Boston HOME center as 
one possible model or engage in a partnership with Cape Cod Regional Technical High School.



Many Brewster residents need support due to physical or 
cognitive conditions, and many caregivers need help.

Consider hosting a “Caregiver’s 
Night Out” to provide residents 

who might be caring for a spouse, 
parent, or grandparent an 

opportunity to enjoy a night of 
entertainment. 

Enhance access to town 
funded healthcare 
screening services 

through publicity and 
accessible transportation 
services. Explore funding 

opportunities to 
revitalize the former 

dental mobile unit and 
introduce a mobile 

healthcare unit.

.
Host a community 

resource fair in 
partnership with the 
Brewster Community 

Network and offer 
workshops to address 
challenges identified 

during the Spring 2023 
community services 

discussion.

Support efforts to incorporate 
Dementia Friendly features and 

resources at the Brewster Ladies’ 
Library, including the creation of a 

memory café.



Risk for social isolation in Brewster is high.

Engage local faith communities, 
restaurants, and nonprofits like the 
Family Table Collaborative to host a 

monthly community dinner to provide a 
regular opportunity for residents to 

come together in a social setting. 

Work together with the Public Works 
Department to install new, or dedicate 

existing, “Chat Benches” to create public 
spaces where socializing is encouraged. 

Work together with the Public Works 
Department to install new, or dedicate 
existing, “Chat Benches18” to create 

public spaces where socializing is 
encouraged. 

Consider celebrating National Good 
Neighbor Day (9/28) or Older Americans 
Month (May) with a series of “Let’s Talk, 
Brewster” programs in which residents 

come together to be in conversation 
with one another that are exhilarating, 

inspiring, and meaningful. 

Implement a Senior Civic Academy 
that is accessible to older residents by 
offering daytime sessions, considering 
adult learner styles, and ensuring that 
topics relevant to healthy aging in 
Brewster are included (e.g., 
transportation,  how to access 
resources, and social engagement 
opportunities.)



Thank you!
Caitlin Coyle, PhD

Director, Center for Social & Demographic Research on Aging

University of Massachusetts Boston

Caitlin.coyle@umb.edu

mailto:Caitlin.coyle@umb.edu


Dear Chair Bebrin,

This 1rm represents Cape Cod Grow Lab, LLC ('CCGL') regarding the..cannabis establishment

permitted ai95 Ale*and'ra Avenue, Brewster, MA 02631 (the "Property"). Please accept this

correspondence on behalf of CCGL as an update regarding its final licensure and intent to begin

operations.

By way of background, CCGL and the Town of Brewster (the "Town") are parties to a Host

C'ommunity Rgreemeni (the "HCA") dated July 25, 2018, allowing for CCG_L to locate a cannabis

cultivator, proOuct manuiacturer, and transporter establishment (the "Use") at the Property.

CCGL was granted a Special permit and Site Plan Review Decision #2018-23 on January 19,

2O1g,for wh-ich a modification was granted on December 11,2019 (together the "Special

Permit").

CCGL has received its final license (the "License") from the Cannabis Control Commission for

cannabis cultivation and intends to begin operations in accordance with the same, the HCA, and

the Special Permit. Please note, pursuant to CCC regulations, while the License allows CCGL

to begin cultivating at the Property, CCGL may not commence the sale of any cannabis

harve-sted prior to notice of commence operations from the CCc. The necessary inspectiol by

the CCC to obtain the notice to commence operations will be requested and we will keep the

Town apprised as we move forward.

any additional information or updates that would be helpful, please do not hesitate to

We appreciate the cooperation throughout this process and look fonrard to operating.

X PRINCE LOBEL

November 2,2023

vtA ELECTRON I C CORRESPON DEN CE (abebrin@brewster-ma. gov)

Town of Brewster Planning Board
Amanda Bebrin, Chair
2198 Main Street
Brewster, MA 02631

RE: Cape Cod Grow Lab, LLC
Notice of lssuance of Final License
95 Alexandra Avenue, Brewster, MA 02631

lf there is

(857) 272-6226

cc:

Matthew Griffin, Cape Cod Grow Lab, LLC
Jon ldman, Town Planner

PRINCE LOBEL TYE LLP
o 

" "''5Ti:1 i,i.1, i,ffi:b ilJ?:l ?3 i Tiii?l i, 

M A 0 2 1 1 0

www.orincelobel.com
iManageDB 1 \ I I 1 930\000000\44398 1 6. v 1 - 4 l2'l 123

j

=



Expiration DateLicense Number

The Licensee is permitted to 
perform operations as:

The Licensee is permitted to operate at the 
following address(es):

The Licensee is subject to M.G.L. c. 94G, M.G.L. c. 94I, Commission regulations, Commission decisions, and all other legal requirements as applicable. The Licensee 
shall remain fully compliant with said requirements and legal authorities until such time that it is approved by the Commission to cease operations.

Kimberly Roy
Commissioner

Ava Callender Concepcion
Commissioner

Shannon O’Brien
Chair

Nurys Camargo
Commissioner

Shawn Collins
Executive Director

Bruce Stebbins
Commissioner

Pursuant to its authority under Chapter 94G and 94I of the
Massachusetts General Laws,

The Cannabis Control Commission hereby grants a
final license to:

















































Cannabis Control Commission Approves
Historic Regulatory Changes to

Implement Commonwealth's Equity
Reform Law

Archived: Monday, October 30, 2023 4:20:16 PM
From: Cannabis=20Control=20Commission 
Mail received time: Wed, 27 Sep 2023 20:04:52
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2023 4:04:52 PM
To: Peter Lombardi 
Subject: Cannabis Control Commission Approves Historic Regulatory Changes to Implement Commonwealth’s Equity Reform
Law
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None

mailto:Commission@CCCMass.com
mailto:plombardi@brewster-ma.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D564eea16c9%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,jQRgCAdbJOq88fQ3b1w4ie4oy97zdrASfEZpErGOfPxgUi_YAdwp2h04UNuxHxL_Pjy0rZNHZKQBIFpwASs1uBadYU8Sd-vUFu8at2RRvTcr6PdFFH43IQE,&typo=1


The Cannabis Control Commission (Commission) last Friday, September 22,
2023, voted 3-1 to approve final changes to Massachusetts’ adult and medical
use of marijuana regulations. Policy changes include the agency’s oversight of
host community agreements (HCAs), new municipal equity requirements, and
suitability reform, in accordance with Chapter 180 of the Acts of 2022, An
Act Relative to Equity in the Cannabis Industry. 

To get to this point, regulatory working groups, led by Commissioners and
staff, participated in months of policy discussion and stakeholder engagement,
then initially proposed draft regulations that were first approved by
Commissioners in a 4-0 vote at their July 28 public meeting. The Commission
then filed the draft with the Secretary of the Commonwealth in August,
gathered written testimony, and held a public hearing for stakeholders to
weigh in on the policy proposals on September 8, prior to the September 22
vote on final regulations.  

“Commissioners and staff have worked tirelessly for months to revise our
regulations—driving a transparent process and listening to feedback from
diverse constituents, convening numerous public meetings, and making
thoughtful changes,” said Acting Chair Ava Callender Concepcion. “I am
grateful to our partners in the Legislature and in the Executive Branch for
entrusting us with the authority to move the agency and industry forward and

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Ddb4cf5ff40%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,iffRXkxPanyfGC0JNOz-Xi8lAMgtGzDCuWjlmDFiCOUvrgzVNPCKJiEzmzZqzefqP7y8kwiLxc2sU83AOeuhq5jMqXDUGfOml89HYfE4TUzi3rcQlLDJdrzcSg,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D3a0c5070f8%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,-40XFCEp4eO0XSFQ4SyoaX9iL8CIyI4I_ZrnEdlO4zKuKNC8TW8tTagESD_qNGE4T6gifUNM83gMW_ht1DALc28sXxAav2SdYdMMC-Z5msTV5MlhWmHcPJs,&typo=1


entrusting us with the authority to move the agency and industry forward and
am proud of the final product that we will be filing with the Secretary of the
Commonwealth.”   

Next, staff will finalize the policy changes discussed last week and file the
regulations with the Secretary of the Commonwealth toward promulgation no
later than November 9, in compliance with Chapter 180.
 

Share Tweet Forward

© Cannabis Control Commission Massachusetts, All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
Union Station

2 Washington Square
Worcester, MA 01604

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

 

Read the Press Release

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D3c87a29ecb%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,2xj3AxDXG4rmZ6RNbwN2FwxVLaMHcVh-faQCEAQErSQlBncfHmks1AITsmub9b3zKW0yNCoVcB9hWdCuGwVryvcJ-uogFa2ECWptqoaUhoAvDAzi1tPhCQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D1ef7d0d791%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,JLK-73qZsZ9xRUAkR9-IMYRloomn5yKq0WFRK8YL7RqstrVEtxsyf14JY9Uxl9NZUeiasIADV1rvYoD8tJ22VIKMdcJ5MFD2_d1v7nPd&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D961c7c366e%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,ns6e2gjYzhlGtng0Wr0dgqSMz6TFf6y2IqXsc0NwQmDi0ZMTSHAUVVCRlq3fgDwvEQV8EdtMkU0CYbHYcHVbxIV9qSgScLXyKSYBCcKm8hrY8nX1cWH85W9Z&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D37d6b909f7%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,DQclL9udDeEfhFO4yq2Pv1QmWGKSZdZQcfV08X6vob93evMDs4ZdgmglYNDBLXsFCnjxoe6Wl5thy-1950TPcK_szclMFE8OsolTZa-gH-u6kdTw_mJX&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D81496aa71e%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,4I4iBOkDP5Zgoyqj8_7hmzCOW98suS3af8djkoQZcERmmvRFgL4X6YO0xaKD6fHWpfS54rlMyVVOVLOD98WpPjPPdJRNAPs0m5X5YyeMLHvKbD6b2NU2tk0,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fus12.forward-to-friend.com%2Fforward%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Df689372307%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,l-GIkHZpDimIcsUkgUpTpFxCJxbPa5VwUY7uVf0f1qVT7Cfk45iJ_Hvegij9oJpXAlGDLhNS4-I1MiwICu4X9Eo3Vf9gpIx0LgngnWyXsvM5lS3uHfCG&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fus12.forward-to-friend.com%2Fforward%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Df689372307%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,GPZ_YuUFLbh4GdbqOFxRoGf5Wk88dLIH4cOdJN9Q-Ve221y2cSsTk78EVC18Y9oe95ugnJQNhs4nRmuno1f2v5ojJqhFM4WjeXmSwZkT8mUvV8T-8Ej62x8VJw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D36a4ac4cdb%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,WyvFN2yqkeU2-Dp6xOVPU3evK0yKApoxsgWLEeb3NOEuOmnMzcrdKy6gzb0fSOery3FgQH1mbeMII58f9gxFZHN9pQcE2_7SVhfybNA0hxK4iUbmnBI,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Db51c72e83a%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,aMX-k9ZKRdS59q7vqkA16x9OKK4aOeZKZQAyyr992NCcePwvsiFiOT2yrTGErbOQqy9bRmir864g4GwXJV8AbOQNhufr2CA-fPba799KjsiZHLQEKSs,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D5748ab1bd2%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305&c=E,1,S4QOFtzrEzKh6PM7zL7aQAHEQk2J_oRnll0-yi2vlXDfQADdibXmf13DZAUCyoBBZJBm_So22KIYYrmpiwM06D2g2TtXjJ8hpJD25xp4iSc5QSHxXRfkkQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Fprofile%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D688c802f36%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305%26c%3Df689372307&c=E,1,DaqumsMHNXjj223j7Q5Zp3d1U1-WZf6AeZguhEj4CGgymYqaUzpEfUQh5aPt-4kd_EdisPeTXe1dF8z5IXpv-oYaVXBad-K4XLN7LGo6wrAYc6HgSasRo5uOKA0,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Funsubscribe%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D688c802f36%26e%3Dfd5f9fe305%26c%3Df689372307&c=E,1,BGPl8osSA50uObJ1hyW8BKwUNxJ2iQYahTEyS5ZqNGFPpprieMlDrCbEf1fcCvIIv6KYvSessmZErPVLkkl2tJ_42eX2s_kwScWHv_h-vjz07L7vuxPcqA,,&typo=1


Adult- and Medical-use Cannabis
Regulations to Implement

Massachusetts’ Cannabis Equity Law

Archived: Tuesday, November 14, 2023 11:42:14 AM
From: Matt Giancola 
Mail received time: Fri, 3 Nov 2023 20:19:55
Sent: Friday, November 3, 2023 4:19:55 PM
To: Matt Giancola 
Subject: Adult- and Medical-use Cannabis Regulations to Implement Massachusetts’ Cannabis Equity Law are Now in Effect
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None

Dear Municipal Official:
 
I hope you are well.  On behalf of the Cannabis Control Commission, I write to share an update below that the agency
distributed today regarding newly promulgated regulations.  In the coming weeks and months, the Commission will
implement the new rules and update its guidance documents and other materials to ensure stakeholders and the public have
the resources they need.  In the meantime, if you have questions or need anything, please do not hesitate to reach out to me
directly.  Thank you.
 
Best regards, 
 

Matt Giancola
Director of Government Affairs and Policy
Cannabis Control Commission
Worcester Union Station
2 Washington Square
Worcester MA 01604

 

O: (774) 415-0462
Matt.Giancola@cccmass.com
www.MassCannabisControl.com
 

           
 

 

 

mailto:Matt.Giancola@cccmass.com
mailto:Matt.Giancola@cccmass.com
mailto:Matt.Giancola@cccmass.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.masscannabiscontrol.com%2F&c=E,1,82ucqetcfQyt5REzk4ZrjEf6xm3wAmuOlltFR7vmMVqiBd_Do75SdwYX5YnnLA_uRZEzgQrYnqjVLwyQmO00c6bWiAr7rEeQHnfSCZS6Fw,,&typo=1
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__twitter.com_MA-5FCannabis&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=1G53xaf9QLtUzgIBAM5S3P6FYO4DSVq2znFweaScJFI&m=qoRQH7xzrh5IM_1esMnc4ONTXBggaVMQU7QK_vj7Chc&s=zvJZ3fzTNUkhBBzgAb4TBw2JFp8oesh-Wr9XfrDkNm0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.facebook.com_Massachusetts-2DCannabis-2DControl-2DCommission-2D2085850278302810_-3Fref-3Dbookmarks&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=1G53xaf9QLtUzgIBAM5S3P6FYO4DSVq2znFweaScJFI&m=qoRQH7xzrh5IM_1esMnc4ONTXBggaVMQU7QK_vj7Chc&s=Ib-G_RanuSPZHgLH1VfcinGaFNkCq4URD-t4jFHdmHE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.linkedin.com_company_massachusettscannabiscontrolcommission_&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=1G53xaf9QLtUzgIBAM5S3P6FYO4DSVq2znFweaScJFI&m=qoRQH7xzrh5IM_1esMnc4ONTXBggaVMQU7QK_vj7Chc&s=RUOLVLWAthbQGMpI-QwZ6U5bgJOFcig2osajg93fnIo&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.youtube.com_channel_UCHfIuxzq-2Dcba1eLmTV0rCYg&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=1G53xaf9QLtUzgIBAM5S3P6FYO4DSVq2znFweaScJFI&m=qoRQH7xzrh5IM_1esMnc4ONTXBggaVMQU7QK_vj7Chc&s=HQZQW6lBvRoey49q0bMsKy8bnV6-3Y_zQ26Ez__U0Wo&e=
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D0d45fb30a9%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,tgmpzaX3lpxMCRcEpsENNHRmzt8qHHmeITbzU8OVjQO3Xdo36mtj3qkxmfdjQEHjKlywJqNWQejXWqgRFrRP0tGyKBGh_18paKP6f5MUg_ZJU4A,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D0d45fb30a9%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,xNMBN8PKTZbtH1nKoe0Jd6bwl33iM01Lh7v5swWatgS6VrZHTI9b4bPpkW89-YxM5QaltAHmauS9IKUgu_ry7AXaZ9hbOTSl98g8Z4CfChCC3UQ1YalIagry6Q,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D0d45fb30a9%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,15sr5zuYtYuVu-JbmRjerJlgKZLP4B4CW8LxU9qrmp3GWlM4zsDMG41bWbI-SJnG7JX_-5sECItFiyica0fF26VSd5SXrs4rA2enEpHe&typo=1


are Now in Effect
Following Promulgation by the Secretary of the Commonwealth, Cannabis
Control Commission Now Positioned to Implement Changes Focused on a
More Equitable Industry

On Friday, October 27, 2023, historic new adult and medical use of
marijuana rules that will regulate Massachusetts’ legal industry took effect as
the result of their promulgation by the Secretary of the Commonwealth. Now
official, ahead of the Cannabis Control Commission (Commission)’s
statutorily mandated deadline, these changes in accordance with Chapter 180
of the Acts of 2022, 'a0An Act Relative to Equity in the Cannabis
Industry include the agency’s oversight of host community agreements
(HCAs), new municipal equity requirements, suitability reform, and a new
designation of Social Equity Businesses for licensees that are not yet
participants in the agency’s existing programming but may be eligible for
relevant benefits at the state and local levels.

In September, Commissioners voted 3-1 in favor of final regulatory policies,
closing out a marathon series of public meetings that lasted five days. The
finished product is the result of months of work by Commissioner-led
Regulatory Working Groups, agencywide staff, as well as feedback from

 

 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3De5ce36e359%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,oo7DOQ8RMDdWbI2UsA7ltg_FpQgl5zvHFZGrEDSsAt6ta4eO2jHh7jMX9qc8bOQtfFwaoipQ2NCzGjeZpK2fpSI2P2lvlVMuR3NQHujRYJnb784xY-G5QA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3De26a119820%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,FhXzNt6xSkeVR91VMF_Uz7VSdO9u_J7C_Q7O-osYpS2pakXMT7r7neyUjE_F4H6lvqewXm26ubTjXfyHtLP-shb0C0JbkwsBNqJ5MvJ7WI8z2cjJfsVEfBKiQnXN&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D080d427ef6%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,B7fAW76SJb9_gM0pwHg3Vg03w2YDkbaFKDcFQC4luf-t0PSVlc_tud-nrrjdSvmmUYOuFRjlaKcnUP63jGc_IThOCthz8c-Vob7yo1cFYopiJg,,&typo=1
emawn
Text Box

emawn
Stamp



constituents.

Next, the Commission will turn its focus to implementation, including the
issuance of updated guidance documents, relevant forms, and templates.
More information will be forthcoming to impacted stakeholders in the months
to come.

The complete, updated regulations can be found in the public documents
section of the Commission’s website. Some highlights include:

HCAs

* New Commission authority to:
* Review, approve, and certify HCAs, and develop a model
contract;
* Deem an HCA provision invalid or unenforceable, or voidable;
and
* Issue sanctions against a host community that is noncompliant
with HCA regulatory requirements, abstain from considering new
license applications in that host community, or publish a list of
communities that are out of compliance.

* Starting no later than March 1, 2024, the Commission will enforce the
requirement that License Applicants and/or Licensees and host
municipalities reach and adhere to an HCA that complies with state law,
or agree to a compliant waiver;

* To be considered compliant, any conditions set in an HCA must
be reasonable. Some conditions that are presumed reasonable,
include those that are:

* Required under local rules, regulations, ordinances, or
bylaws;
* Deemed necessary to ensure public safety and proposed by
the host community’s chief law enforcement authority and/or
fire protection chief, to include a detailed explanation of
necessity;
* Deemed necessary to ensure public health and proposed by
the host community’s chief public health authority, to include
a detailed explanation of necessity;
* A local requirement customarily imposed by the host

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Dfdaa2e162a%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,mJZUN10l4xouxfwx5yRbIdXC6ppi8-It362vLy1dcMMc8CLlZ_3DCs0eQ_UbXRHMhbDhJm3UPzYEd_8eyR0yMShGCR9oDF4PJR2aa8NNLi_H&typo=1


community on other, non-cannabis businesses operating in
the municipality;
* Not in conflict with other laws; or
* Otherwise deemed reasonable by the Commission.

* Prohibitions on certain HCA provisions, terms, conditions, or clauses,
including:

* A promise to make future monetary payment, in-kind
contribution, or charitable contributions, whether explicit or
implicit;
* Requiring a License Applicant or Licensee to make upfront
payments as a condition for operating in the host community;
* Obligating a Licensee to set aside money in an escrow, bond, or
other similar account for a host community’s use or purpose;
* Imposing legal, overtime, or administrative costs or any costs
other than a Community Impact Fee on a Licensee with the
exception of tax obligations and routine, generally occurring fees;
* Inducements to negotiate or execute an HCA;
* Requiring that the Community Impact Fee be a certain percentage
of the Licensee’s total or gross sales as a term or condition of an
HCA, or demanding the fee exceed three percent of the licensee’s
gross sales;
* Discouraging any party from bringing a civil cause of action or
other legal challenge relative to an HCA or to an individual term or
provision of an HCA; and
* Waiving away a Licensee’s ability to dispute whether the impact
fees alleged by a host community are reasonably related to the
costs imposed on their operations;

Municipal Equity 

* Authorizing Licensees to satisfy, in part, existing requirements to
submit a Plan to Positively Impact Disproportionately Harmed People to
the Commission by donating to the Cannabis Social Equity Trust Fund
that is administered by the Executive Office of Economic Development
in collaboration with the Cannabis Social Equity Advisory Board;
* Expansion of the Commission’s pre-certification process, which is
currently available for delivery or social consumption licenses, to all



license types, thereby enabling Certified Economic Empowerment
Priority Applicants and Social Equity Program Participants to
demonstrate to a prospective host city or town their propensity to open
any licensed cannabis business;
* To increase transparency into municipal licensing frameworks and
available HCAs, a requirement that cities and towns publish information
about their local licensing process in a conspicuous place and online, and
create a standard evaluation form to ensure businesses have clarity about
why licenses are issued to certain entities over others;
* Requiring that host communities with saturated licensing caps reserve
for equity businesses at least one, and as many as 50% of any expanded
license opportunities; and
* Authorizing the Commission, starting March 1, 2025, to fine cities and
towns that are found to be out of compliance with the Commission’s
municipal equity regulations, and deposit those fines into the Cannabis
Social Equity Trust Fund.

Suitability

* In accordance with Chapter 180, eliminating previously existing
disqualifiers that prevented individuals with certain criminal backgrounds
from employment in the legal industry as Registered Agents for
Marijuana Establishments and Medical Marijuana Treatment Centers,
with exceptions for Independent Testing Laboratory Agents and license
owners.

Following the filing of Chapter 180 regulatory changes, Commissioners have
already moved forward with other policymaking priorities, including changes
to delivery licenses, microbusinesses, and social consumption. Catch up on
these conversations and others by reviewing recent public meeting recordings
through the Commission’s YouTube channel (@massccc) and reviewing
monthly meeting packets. Find future public meeting dates through the
Commission’s calendar at MassCannabisControl.com.

 
Agency Updates

Chapter 180 regulations were successfully promulgated amidst other recent
changes happening within the agency. In September, the Commission voted

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Dbc819cb5ff%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,bz6N7m7uDa3Is2AGLTdJkpK-Sip1kXHtwTGyQbO-nYB1cAumgRKyvZUoNtlQxppo6t9YOo9_ZAlIk3YYBFEZhhhc2OV6D3vb22kIQeT0sBNhDA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3De5d0985e45%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,wFiXFxo6P_sJk4b4bASMIdPGDg6KVUqvKFAfIUoT0WmQEaIhgm7fV2QfLzAwoUVOeAQwcYFGsCiMxyJfDza9QsqpDVZU_KsERCBIgiXFvBYIbVbgY3-4hA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Dab12cf48e4%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,bulzfcVjki-XF23Q0F0hIVD0n6l26mWJHgMmc24eVfQokM8h21rr7KiQGNTfpTtXUmjQap7PXcXjAyj3SHfDW01ee4u14cCqU7rTpsyNB6nVJW4BbIPO4Ak,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Dd96000eb7e%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,kEFiRcU-ED8CWbb2t-bNiBfzqSus3XVJ_3IM-jUrxOjZ3GFif7T8dxLY4WnuYV9-hUrKpPnGhMznAVtdyz_Hm65leqVJPIfiqm-poHcoFD1fSvA,&typo=1


unanimously to appoint Ava Callendar Concepcion as Acting Chair throughout
the regulatory review period, and on October 16, Commissioners
unanimously appointed Chief People Officer Debra Hilton-Creek to serve as
Acting Executive Director until the return of Executive Director Shawn
Collins.

Acting Chair Ava Callendar ConcepcionActing Chair Concepcion was
appointed to the Commission’s
Public Safety seat in January 2021
by then-Attorney General Maura
Healey. Among her contributions to
date, she spearheaded the creation
of the Commission’s Legislative and
Executive Branch Outreach
Strategy, which was deployed in the
Commission’s advocacy for the
state equity reform law, and co-led
regulatory review efforts focused on
HCAs, municipal equity, and
suitability.

Acting Executive Director Hilton-
Creek joined the Commission in
August, bringing multi-state
employment, labor, and workforce
development experiences and
background to the agency. She has
more than 20 years’ experience in
organizations with 700-plus team
members and multiple union
representations, and previously
served in the roles of HR Director,
Chief HR Officer, Deputy Director,
and Executive Director in social

 

 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D65b06be000%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,EG-PGIYG_3iOlLgji1snAfQq48H6ziZ1RMPQ37p6bdEa_HudHZF1lRXXiRakVp_W0PEE_fbP8jeLDDUJSjrlO54s1nIBi69dIx1HXQUw84dvS3Izh4Na&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D2f44547a6a%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,MJBrzt0OAEMXQUgKMFQ7hd67vPMo6inXS59yzfPoNSv81ljqSNJwRIKee-Owq4LkJ646hRkGp45o9hAFrsYZWeB4YdZafpwYpRHw_lV3u9Fc97UvRolJKRg,&typo=1
emawn
Stamp

emawn
Stamp



services and healthcare
organizations.

Learn more about the Acting Chair and Acting Executive Director by visiting
the “Commission and Leadership Team” page at
MassCannabisControl.com.

 

Share Tweet Forward

© Cannabis Control Commission Massachusetts, All rights reserved.

Our mailing address is:
Union Station

2 Washington Square
Worcester, MA 01604

Want to change how you receive these emails?
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe from this list.

 

 

 

Read Commissioner Statements on New Regulations

 

 

 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Deb930a24bc%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,MqSXZThaNFOkl1uj2GS3e6wtHznWKDgT8Q-j4ljCpNKm5IFRzurzH7S3QGfEKkIQaMjOTSaPTBjJGv4iOr2n0Uj5duQjBgr456YiWrMwvqfn9WucRew5sQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D39975a32aa%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,W_yijVUYfi3fhd7gtYh5uvEUtjSXA5dwolPZ0gj-Ty-oH3QhtHjZCeuFE5HtbNCDARbW8Ti15Qeb8Y1HX0LHDiS1UadNMBzTaxXHETE4t12VOFKfKOC5&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D58e51bfe29%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,KGZu-miFOqh-BQys9ouEbK388L5V1iH3Ep4niKzeg_IYkR1U8YifdNzDo0aQ7GShov3ULJUgfQ9Q_Mx7N_4WLgnsaF0ju2DZUAI7CFwm&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D0647d89363%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,pYbS5i-B-zLGzdh-WCUEbeEFcRI5WrAMQ0ep-TzVhxvasQS1ZlXPyOqucErhc043hgoizWubX-feXBo71cmhzRGCxPJfhPndcP36WHZOTJ9Sdw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D107fa68ea5%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,SQ2qOVKEGNAb2Vf1HOT20021JgAkI2z2Y9PzeYV6jZWCnw7ECuRWhLZLJ58SKXqGFg67OkqoWVAmiFHwH7Xbgvu-17mQUC2HxjTqIZY5tqFG2x6Xxmz_gdGP&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3Dc35bad65b9%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,9DM6MY46pgQgkEAMNwJFCedDyZVAfTE7rWwCUAgwkmVSdSIMVDwf3p-W8iYbK9mbFGZo6VvQdPGq5ZxvnEZ3AwgYpid30c7umERkHKcWWie1Jm_MJbsoaA8,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fus12.forward-to-friend.com%2Fforward%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D140502761a%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,QO1fqG0NgMmYuIiZwFxZgkothDbCdRPiytNhOJQLwkwpmO97kTraq6S-dYQa1QObIL6BMres5_iGwEfLN5ATQyYRvo0ndAv-_eOo7IRol6MKpBVjwA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fus12.forward-to-friend.com%2Fforward%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D140502761a%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,RoWSc-mK5-c3C_oNV8j3KSPh7Yc5NtQYpdSD-ADian12trPZ67VwVTDAqvlpgACjpAF4zpOA8hk09Pv3JAC9RRGL7dxuEmZWMxsQasia9xftlQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D5947f6f6d7%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,w-Hm6rw7L0Bpl9iqZLtOAGul22k8b3pCYNH_IxLmtQVAfihjZ6XEu-i2dwsNXm-aK8anK6SrulmpekrUCSqAbsKuAnda5FZ3j2DEnW1yGSaCH1WC9MNd4YOsB1U,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D813af8cfd2%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,8xDXRfbBDy9iu2a8DMyT5j8OB47iCNAVq8u4mP3BGRd-g4C1yvG9_hSg20Zx1q3yCRD391mTS5MTXS6rxjXdDkgduwU3GceddX9O6euMJ2BzTEx8hQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D324d2801b6%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8&c=E,1,l9--KIHfXG8mRAw3mTpdn3jHrOmZUsi02PceqcDIGW4sQvF4MPvVtyLFhqCz-W6s579X2olN2-nA3lJ1POIPOa_RpgPUD2OQ2baqvoHeeL1Uop2T9auX&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Fprofile%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D688c802f36%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8%26c%3D140502761a&c=E,1,40KMq4ka6P2cylPK2W3FRuqou11-ICps0a-4Bzz-TciHmb6DF7VuwEL481l-rO46LaZMIqP5J4pDFaPJcJI3F_ePabDrKWF-amjOXrMfsY9W_8Kylw9vSLoLyWI,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass-cannabis-control.us12.list-manage.com%2Funsubscribe%3Fu%3D9e991cfb3b921aad10acda802%26id%3D688c802f36%26e%3Dfbeffe00a8%26c%3D140502761a&c=E,1,rNF8wWBKhkO7fjK8RebL2qmSUHDvMs5ovmpaVWRrsl4S0YtRVddKwTuk_gy88T8WIQMGOObAAHMIhciOax8aROdfUSj5f79rVSgv087MN1jKf53W&typo=1


Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient and
others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking
action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast, a leader in email
security and cyber resilience. Mimecast integrates email defenses with brand protection, security awareness training, web security,
compliance and other essential capabilities. Mimecast helps protect large and small organizations from malicious activity, human error
and technology failure; and to lead the movement toward building a more resilient world. To find out more, visit our website.



Nicole J. Costanzo, Esq.

Massachusetts Municipal Association

Webinar, December 11, 2023

All materials © Copyright  2023 KP LAW, PC.  All rights reserved.



Disclaimer

This information is provided as a service by KP 

Law, P.C. This information is general in nature 

and does not, and is not intended to, constitute 

legal advice as to any specific issue. You are 

advised not to take, or to refrain from taking, 

any action based on this information without 

consulting legal counsel about the particular 

facts of the specific issue.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



AN ACT RELATIVE TO EQUITY 

IN THE CANNABIS INDUSTRY

CHAPTER 180 OF THE ACTS OF 2022

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

The Act significantly reformed 

cannabis laws including:

❖ Role of Massachusetts Cannabis Control 

Commission (“CCC”) 

 Final Regulations, Promulgated October 27, 2023

 - 935 CMR 500.00 (Adult Use)

 - 935 CMR 501.00 (Medical)

 Host Community Agreements (“HCAs”)

❖ Community Impact Fees (“CIFs”)

❖ Equity Standards



 THE CANNABIS CONTROL COMMISSION

 The Act provides the CCC with enhanced authority

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

To review, regulate, enforce and approve host community agreements 

pursuant to G.L. c. 94G, §3(d);

Establish procedures and policies for municipalities to promote and 

encourage full participation in the regulated marijuana industry during 

negotiations of host community agreements with social equity program 

businesses and economic empowerment priority applicants; and

Develop a model host community agreement, minimum acceptable 

standards and best practices for municipalities and prospective licensees 

during negotiations of host community agreements with social equity 

businesses



HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENTS

All Materials © Copyright KP 

Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

 Beginning March 1, 2024, the CCC shall review and approve each HCA 

as part of a completed license application and at each license renewal 

to determine compliance with the Act and new regulatory 

requirements (or agree to a “compliant” HCA waiver).

 The CCC may deem an HCA provision invalid, unenforceable, or 

voidable.

 The CCC may also declare an HCA or a provision of an HCA voidable upon 

deeming the HCA as a contract of adhesion.

 The CCC may issue fines and other sanctions against a host community 

that is “noncompliant” with HCA regulatory requirements.

 Approval of HCAs may be conditioned on a Host Community being in 

good compliance standing with the CCC.



1. No Host Community may impose an unreasonable condition or 

a term that is “unreasonably impracticable” in an HCA

Unreasonably Impracticable means that the measures 

necessary to comply with the regulations, ordinances 

or bylaws subject licensees to unreasonable risk or 

require such a high investment of risk, money, time or 

any other resource or asset that a reasonably prudent 

businessperson would not operate a marijuana 

establishment.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

New Regulatory Requirements:

HCAs must now satisfy certain “minimum acceptable 

requirements” including, but not limited to:



THE 

REGULATIONS 

IDENTIFY THE 

FOLLOWING 

CONDITIONS THAT 

ARE PRESUMED 

REASONABLE: 

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

✓ It is required under by local rules, regulations, ordinances, 
or bylaws;

✓ It has been “deemed necessary to ensure public safety and 
proposed by the chief law enforcement authority and/or 
fire protection chief with explanation and detail why the 
condition is necessary for public safety.”

✓ It has been “deemed necessary to ensure public health 
and proposed by the chief public health authority in a 
Host Community with explanation and detail why the 
condition is necessary for public health."

✓ It is a local requirement customarily imposed by a Host 
Community on other, non-cannabis businesses operating in 
the community;

✓ It is required by law; 

✓ It does not conflict with other laws; or

✓ It is otherwise “deemed reasonable by the Commission 
based on particular circumstances presented by an HCA or 
contracting parties”



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

2. HCAs must include a statement of all stipulated responsibilities 

between a Host Community and a Marijuana Establishment 

Licensee/License Applicant including:

➢ A provision requiring a Host Community to annually transmit its 

invoice of claimed impact fees, if any, to a Licensee within one 

month of the anniversary of the date the Marijuana Establishment 

received final licensure;

➢ A provision explicitly identifying any generally occurring fees to be 

charged by a Host Community. 

 “Generally occurring fees are customarily imposed on other non-

cannabis businesses” operating in a Host Community and shall not 

be considered a CIF (e.g., routine water, property tax, sewer, 

trash pickup etc.)”



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

4. HCAs must also include “clear, specific terms” 

regarding a host community’s assessment of a CIF.

3. In addition, HCAs must include the following 

information:

✓ The certified business name of the licensee as recorded 

with the Secretary of State and CCC

✓ The specific type of marijuana operations permitted (e.g., 

manufacturing, retail, delivery, cultivation, etc.);

✓ The name, signature, and title of the individual(s) 

authorized to enter into the HCA;

✓ The date(s) of execution by both parties;

✓ The effective date of an HCA; and

✓ The duration of an HCA.



Prohibitions:

The following terms, 

conditions, or clauses 

are prohibited in an 

HCA:

1. Provisions discouraging parties from bringing a 
civil cause of action or other legal challenge 
relative to an HCA or to an individual term;

2. Provisions requiring upfront payments as a 
condition for operating in the Host Community;

3. Provisions that require money to be held in 
escrow, bond, or other similar account for a Host 
Community's use or purposes;

4. Provisions that afford a Host Community sole and 
absolute discretion on how it will spend a CIF;

5. Provisions that mandate or otherwise require that 
the CIF be a certain percentage of a total or gross 
sales;

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



6. Provisions that impose legal, overtime, or administrative costs or any costs other than a 

CIF with the exception tax obligations or routine, generally occurring municipal fee;

7. Provisions that categorically deem a Host Community's claimed impact fees to be 

reasonably related or that otherwise excuse a Host Community from calculating impact 

fees based on the actual operations of a Marijuana Establishment;

8. Provisions that require a Marijuana Establishment to make any additional payments or 

obligations including but not limited to monetary payments, in-kind contributions, 

providing staffing, advance payments, or charitable contributions; 

9. A provision including or otherwise deeming good faith estimates, unquantifiable costs, 

generalized expenses, or pro-rated expenses as a CIF; and

10. Provisions waiving a Marijuana Establishment's ability to dispute whether impact fees 

claimed by a Host Community are reasonably related and properly due and payable as a 

CIF.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

“No Host Community may rely on 

other written instruments, contracts, 

or agreements to impose terms or 

conditions on a License Applicant, 

Marijuana Establishment, or Medical 

Marijuana Treatment Center outside 

of an HCA”



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

“A contractual financial obligation, other 

than a CIF, that is explicitly or implicitly a 

factor considered in or included as a 

condition of an HCA is unenforceable”

Express exceptions include taxes and generally occurring 

fees (e.g., water, sewer, property tax, etc.)



HCA REVIEW AND CERTIFICATION

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

 All applications for renewal and initial licensure submitted on or after 

March 1, 2024, must include an HCA that complies with 935 CMR 500.000 

(or 935 CMR 501.000) or a compliant HCA Waiver CCC is required to 

complete its review of an HCA within ninety (90) days after the HCA is 

received.

 Failure to submit a compliant HCA or a compliant HCA Waiver with an 

application for licensure may result in an application remaining incomplete 

or may be grounds for denial of a renewal application.

 The CCC will provide written notice to the parties of any deficiencies 

identified by during its review of the HCA for compliance and may request 

additional information from the marijuana business and the host 

community. 



If the CCC 

determines that 

the HCA does not 

comply, the HCA 

determination 

notice shall state:

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

 The factual basis for the finding of noncompliance, 
including identification of the noncompliant term(s), 
condition(s), or provision(s) of the HCA, if applicable;

 The parties’ option to correct the noncompliance and 
submit an amended HCA;

 The parties’ option to submit an HCA Waiver; and

 The parties' option to proceed under an executed HCA 
that conforms with the CCC’s Model Host Community 
Agreement, to be relied on in the interim until the 
parties come to an agreement

Notably, the draft provision, which would have included 
notice of “either party’s option to discontinue relations 
as host community and license applicant” was not 
included in the final regulations …. 



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

Still, the regulations allow host communities to 

discontinue relations …

“A Host Community shall notify a Marijuana 
Establishment if it no longer intends to 
continue as a Host Community for a Marijuana 
Establishment. A Host Community shall not 
discontinue relations with a Marijuana 
Establishment in bad faith. On receipt of a 
notice of discontinuance from a Host 
Community, the Marijuana Establishment shall 
notify the Commission.”  

935 CMR 500.180(3)(c)(5)



If a host community discontinues relations with a 
marijuana establishment, then a marijuana 
establishment may submit a request for equitable 
relief to the CCC

 A marijuana establishment shall ensure that the request for 
equitable relief includes a host community’s notice.

 The CCC may exercise its discretion to grant one or more of the 
following equitable remedies to a marijuana establishment: 

 Extension of a license expiration date without incurring 
additional prorated fees; 

 Waiver of a Change of Location fee; 

 Institution of procedures for winding down operations;

 Other equitable relief as determined by the CCC.

 If the CCC grants or denies equitable relief to a marijuana 
establishment, it will provide notice of its decision to a marijuana 
establishment and a host community. 

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

➢ A host community or a marijuana 
establishment may seek relief from a court 
of competent jurisdiction.

➢ Any action subsequently taken to deny a 
marijuana establishment’s renewal 
application due to failure to produce a 
compliant HCA or a compliant HCA Waiver 
shall afford marijuana establishments a 
right to an administrative hearing 

➢ A host community may seek intervention as 
a party to the hearing.



 A host community may waive the regulatory 
requirement to have a compliant HCA by 
submitting an HCA Waiver, in the form and manner 
determined by the CCC, at any time.

 An HCA Waiver constitutes a total relinquishment 
of the requirement to enter into an HCA.

 No party to an HCA may use an HCA Waiver to 
waive individual provisions of an HCA. An HCA 
Waiver that sets an expiration date or any 
conditions is deemed noncompliant.

 An HCA Waiver may only be rescinded on CCC 
approval of an HCA subsequently executed and 
submitted by the parties.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

HCA WAIVERS



COMPLAINTS ALLEGING NONCOMPLIANCE

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

 If an allegation of noncompliance with HCA regulatory requirements is 

substantiated, CCC may take administrative or enforcement action against a host 

community including sending a notice of deficiency, requesting additional 

information, or “otherwise taking action” 

 Failure by a host community to correct the noncompliant conduct may result in 

one or more of the following:

 Issuance of sanctions pursuant to 935 CMR 500.360 (assessment of an 

administrative fine of up to $50,000 per violation, with a right to an 

administrative hearing)

 Loss of a host community’s good compliance standing;

 Identification of a host community lack of good compliance standing in a 

form and manner determined by the CCC; or

 Abstaining from consideration of any new license applications affiliated with 

a host community until a host community’s good compliance standing is 

restored.



COMMUNITY IMPACT FEES

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

 CCC is “charged with establishing criteria 

for reviewing, certifying, and approving 

CIFs”

 To qualify as a CIF, an impact fee alleged by 

a host community must be “reasonably 

related” to costs imposed by the operation 

of the marijuana establishment



Reasonably Related means a demonstrable nexus between the 

actual operations of a marijuana business and an enhanced need 

for a host community’s goods or services in order to offset the 

impact of operations. 

Fees customarily imposed on other non-marijuana businesses 

operating in a host community shall not be considered 

Reasonably Related.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

✓ A host community shall ensure that the initial invoice 

period of alleged CIF covers a one-year period that 

starts from the date the CCC grants a final license. 

✓ A host community shall further ensure that all 

subsequent, one-year invoice periods are consistent 

with the anniversary of a final license date. 

✓ The CCC will not certify any CIFs attributable to dates 

outside of the applicable invoice period.

✓ A host community shall transmit its CIF invoice no 

later than one month after the anniversary of the 

date the received a final license from the CCC. 



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

✓ A host community seeking to assess a CIF 

shall transmit an itemized invoice in a 

form and manner determined by the CCC 

documenting alleged impact fees arising 

from the preceding year of operations.

✓ A host community shall ensure that CIF 

invoices include a specific description of 

how the alleged impact fees were spent, 

including each line item for each good or 

service charged stating its cost, purpose, 

and relation to operations.

✓ CIF shall not include any legal costs 

incurred by a host community to defend 

against a lawsuit brought by the marijuana 

establishment

✓ A host community’s failure to transmit the 

CIF invoice within the prescribed time 

shall result in a forfeiture of any CIF for 

the applicable year of operations.

✓ A host community shall ensure that the CIF 

invoice is restricted to the license 

number(s) operating from the licensed 

premises alleged to have impacted the 

community. 

✓ Within 30 calendar days of receiving a host 

community’s invoice of alleged CIFs, the 

marijuana establishment shall submit the 

invoice and any supporting documentation, 

if applicable, to the CCC in a form and 

manner determined by the CCC.

✓ A marijuana establishment that has agreed 

to pay a CIF under its HCA shall annually pay 

any undisputed CIF no later than the end of 

the current fiscal year OR ninety (90) days 

from the date of the CCC’s certification, 

whichever is later. 



The CCC shall make a determination certifying the CIF, in whole 

or in part, and notifying the parties of:  

 The marijuana establishment’s option to request an 

administrative hearing before an independent hearing officer of 

the CCC to challenge the findings of fact and conclusions of law. 

 The host community may seek intervention as a party to the 

hearing

 The marijuana establishment’s option to seek court intervention 

to independently review the CIF by bringing a breach of contract 

action.

The parties’ may also elect to bring a dispute between the 

parties before a private mediator at any time.

After a CIF dispute has resolved, a marijuana establishment must 

provide proof of payment of the certified CIF with its renewal 

application.

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE EQUITY STANDARDS GOVERNING 

MUNICIPALITIES AND HOST COMMUNITIES

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C. All Rights 

Reserved.

 The CCC has developed regulatory requirements for 
municipalities to promote and encourage full participation in 
the regulated Marijuana industry during negotiations of HCAs 
with Social Equity Businesses and to develop minimum 
acceptable standards governing HCA negotiations with Social 
Equity Businesses

 Host Communities must adopt local rules or bylaws to 
comply with 935 CMR 500.181(3) on or before May 1, 2024

 A Host Community shall submit an attestation in a form and 
manner determined by the CCC affirming that complied and 
identifying the specific laws passed, as well as copies of its 
equity plan to the CCC. 

 Failure to comply may result in fines, after receiving notice 
and opportunity to comply, no sooner than May 1,2025



MANDATORY 

TRANSPARENT 

PRACTICES TO 

PROMOTE AND 

ENCOURAGE FULL

EQUITY 

PARTICIPATION

A host community must publicize certain information in a 

conspicuous location at its offices and on its website which 

shall, at minimum, include:

 All required steps of a host community’s “local 

approval process”, including, but not limited to, all 

associated fees, deadlines, and meeting schedules for 

local bodies involved in the local approval process

 Local Approval Process means the steps involving a 

host community’s cannabis licensing, including, 

but not limited to, zoning, all associated fees, 

deadlines, and meeting schedules for local bodies 

involved in such processes

 Identification of key individuals involved in a host 

community’s local approval process, including, but not 

limited to, their name, title, business address, and 

business contact information such as email address or 

phone number

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



MANDATORY 

TRANSPARENT 

PRACTICES TO 

PROMOTE AND 

ENCOURAGE FULL

EQUITY 

PARTICIPATION

 A list of all documentation required by a 
host community’s local approval process, 
in downloadable form and paper form

 Identification of application criteria for 
local approval to operate a marijuana 
establishment and scoring methodologies 
relied on by a host community

 General scoring information for all 
applicants and a host community’s scoring 
of each individual applicant

 A host community’s explanation, in 
narrative form, of its reasoning for the 
approval or denial of an application

 Any other information required by the CCC
All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



 A host community must develop an equity plan to 

promote and encourage full participation that:

 Encourages applications from Social Equity 

Businesses; and

 Includes goals, programs, and measurements a host 

community will utilize to promote and encourage 

equity participation. 

 A host community shall publish data regarding its 

total applicant pool, which shall identify each 

Social Equity Business and license applicant that 

has been designated as a Social Equity Program 

Participant or Economic Empowerment Priority 

Applicant, or who have been pre-verified.

 A host community shall adhere to “best practices” 

for HCA negotiations

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

 Develop a standard evaluation form (or use a form 
developed by the CCC) that scores components of an 
application. 

 The evaluation form shall include consideration of 
equity in the overall evaluation score, which must 
comprise not less than 25% of the total evaluation 
score.

 In circumstances where a host community imposes a 
cap on the number of businesses that may obtain local 
approval to operate, if a host community later 
decides to allow additional businesses, at least 50% of 
those licenses, but no less than 1 license, above the 
previously-established cap shall be reserved for Social 
Equity Businesses or license applicants that have been 
designated as Social Equity Participants or Economic 
Empowerment Priority Applicants.

CCC’s BEST 

PRACTICES

FOR HCA 

NEGOTIATIONS



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

 Prioritize negotiations of HCAs with equity parties.

 Engage in an ongoing dialogue by providing multiple opportunities for 

discussion and negotiation of HCA terms including, at minimum, two 

conferences.

 Include any attorney, representative, or other advocate, if elected by an 

equity party, in all negotiation discussions and conferences.

 Promote language access by providing a certified interpreter or translator to 

assist an equity party during all negotiation discussions and conferences.

 Provide reasonable opportunities for an equity party to review a proposed HCA, 

HCA term or condition outside of a negotiation conference, or to seek review 

or input by a third party of their choice.

 Negotiate the terms of an HCA in good faith, including consideration of flexible 

terms that may mitigate particular challenges affecting an equity party, such 

as access to capital, with all terms and clauses conspicuously identified and 

openly discussed.

 Allow an equity party to propose an amendment to, or seek cancellation of, an 

HCA within thirty days from the date of execution of the HCA.

Standards for 

Negotiations 

with Equity 

Parties



All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.

 Host Communities must also adopt a plan to 

positively impact communities that were 

disproportionately harmed by marijuana 

prohibition and enforcement.

  Host Communities must publicize this plan 

in a conspicuous location at their offices 

and on their website. The plan must outline 

the goals, programs, and measurements the 

Host Community will pursue.



Nicole J. Costanzo, Esq.

KP Law, P.C.
101 Arch Street, 12th Floor
Boston, MA 02110
(617) 556-0007

ncostanzo@k-plaw.com

www.k-plaw.com

ANY FINAL QUESTIONS?

All Materials © Copyright KP Law, P.C.

 All Rights Reserved.



Home Feedback FAQs Help Log out

© 2024 Commonwealth of Massachusetts

_

TOWN OF BREWSTER
Payment History

Date Range Searched: From 12/21/2023 To 1/5/2024
Department(s) Searched: DOR
Number of Payment Lines Found: 8

Understanding Payments History

Return Payments History Search

Address ID: AD001---2198 MAIN ST   BREWSTER, MA
Payment Number: 355F3000362
Payment Date: 12/29/2023

Department Payment Ref. # Contract Number Line Amount Check Amount

DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE BFY2024 SEP - NOV MEALS FY2024LOCOPTIONMEALS $107,371.30 $107,371.30
Check Description:   FY2024 Sep - Nov Meals

Penalty Interest Amount: - 
DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE BFY2024 SEPT - NOV CANNABIS FY2024MARIJUANA00000 $30,772.85 $30,772.85

Check Description:   FY2024 Sept - Nov Cannabis
Penalty Interest Amount: - 

DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE BFY2024 SEPT - NOV ROOMS FY2024ROOMSCONSOLIDA $1,292,252.88 $1,292,252.88
Check Description:   FY2024 Sept - Nov Rooms

Penalty Interest Amount: - 
Total Amount $1,430,397.03 $1,430,397.03

Payment Number: 361F3003003
Payment Date: 12/29/2023

Department Payment Ref. # Contract Number Line Amount Check Amount

DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FY24DECADDCH70 24LOCALAIDPAYMENT029 $1,140.00 $1,140.00
Check Description:   minimum aid supplement

Penalty Interest Amount: - 
DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FY24DECCHAP 70 24LOCALAIDPAYMENT001 $90,803.00 $90,803.00

Check Description:   reimbursement of school aid to cities,
Penalty Interest Amount: - 

DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FY24DECELDERLY 24LOCALAIDPAYMENT013 $1,422.00 $1,422.00
Check Description:   reimbursement for loss of taxes g l ter

Penalty Interest Amount: - 
DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FY24DECSOL 24LOCALAIDPAYMENT005 $43,789.00 $43,789.00

Check Description:   reimbursement to cities in lieu of taxes on state owned land
Penalty Interest Amount: - 

DOR - DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FY24DECUGGA 24LOCALAIDPAYMENT019 $39,334.00 $39,334.00
Check Description:   unrestricted general government local aid

Penalty Interest Amount: - 
Total Amount $176,488.00 $176,488.00

Address ID: AD001---2198 MAIN ST Total: $1,606,885.03 $1,606,885.03

Feedback Email Accessibility Policy  Privacy Policy

Mass.Gov

The Official Website of the Comptroller of the Commonwealth (CTR)

CTR Home  Mass.Gov Home  State Agencies

https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/vendorWelcome.asp
https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/vendorFeedback.asp
https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/vendorFAQs.asp
https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/vendorHelp.asp
https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/vendorLogout.asp
https://massfinance.state.ma.us/VendorWeb/VendorUnderstandPaymentHistory.asp
mailto:comptroller.info@state.ma.us?subject=VendorWeb
http://www.mass.gov/?pageID=oscutilities&sid=Aosc&U=Aosc_access_policy
http://www.mass.gov/?pageID=oscutilities&sid=Aosc&U=Aosc_site_policies
http://www.mass.gov/comptroller
http://www.mass.gov/comptroller/
http://www.mass.gov/
http://www.mass.gov/portal/global-agency-list.html


EQV: Leveling the Playing Field
– Part 2
James J. Paquette – Bureau of Local Assessment Program

Coordinator

In a recent edition of City & Town, we introduced the basics of

Equalized Valuations (EQV). In this edition, we’ll examine data

trends and provide helpful context related to EQV. For reference,

EQV data is available on the DLS website by clicking here.

Value Changes in EQV from 2020 to 2022

Before we begin, it’s important to note that EQV does not include

property exempted from local taxation. In 2020 EQV totaled $1.42

Trillion statewide and increased to $1.58 Trillion in 2022 statewide

which was an overall increase of 11.5%. In 2022 the average

change per community was 11.8% for all 351 cities and towns in

the Commonwealth. The three municipalities with the highest

change from the prior 2020 EQV are Everett, Egremont and

Blanford with changes of 35.2%, 33.6%, and 33.4%,

November 16th, 2023

In this edition:

* EQV: Lev eling the
Playing Field – Part 2
 
* Adult-Use Cannabis
Sales and Impacts on
Local Finances

By the Numbers
City & Town provides updates on
the progress of the tax rate and
certification process.
This information is available 24/7
by clicking here.

Preliminary Certifications
Approved: 48

Final Certification: 39 (of 67 total)

LA4 (Assessed Values):
243 approved (268 submitted)

LA13 (New Growth):
241 approved (258 submitted)

Tax Rates: 68 approved

Balance Sheets: 203 approved

Total Aggregate Free Cash

Approved: $1,387,041,477

Archived: Thursday, January 4, 2024 11:32:59 AM
From: DLS=20Alerts 
Mail received time: Thu, 16 Nov 2023 22:39:18
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 5:39:18 PM
To: Peter Lombardi 
Subject: City & Town - November 16th, 2023
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None

mailto:dls_alerts@dor.state.ma.us
mailto:plombardi@brewster-ma.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D2093643349%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,OFA3Wz0dl0hU06sy206w9TyOJIi9hU0J78McXHPgdDRBNHhJXTkPWOHWkcgPGK8Ux00Cm25xHbtYlwA2ZzkYlYyr6GlNhLQZdydfEKZJmilND1bKnVZ-UcLjhzo,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Da8ecf64e8c%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,ihMSsBAInoMhh7AFv-Mm0VLCu9Fz2junv6X2Wgw6eKck9rAGqgfMjgWQIlhiozsQktO5Ppyf3HU-QczLmKTf4kSZqRvmnMNvRy7aWw7DRARO3n-QTzJ-mOGCJA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D9a5ca8a957%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,lsbcF2DjdVdc5Tw-a4X_Mnc9fM_PX0Fm1bZcP9yhKqfBjksjJcbIIJeQ-KlOBTy9GRuTTsfzTDy-Wk8gmalS0rE9VXL1098vvXpQM92gzKEtLm1qHa4DlrC927c,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D200b2b6308%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,QNa8nE5UqHcwoogAU6meMeIE9iQ3N_9_v1_bJEeGCp5nI3CX4t_DsZ4Oxdtdw8b2ZOdkvl4AgUcaTpw4m8WOB12XC2bd4i_xtPoXS12R5a_gUTA,&typo=1


respectively. The three communities with the lowest change from

the prior 2020 EQV are Goshen, Dover and Mount Washington with

changes of 1.5%, 0.8%, and 1.65%.

When sorted by the 14 counties in Massachusetts, eight saw a

total average below the community average and six saw a total

above the community average. The largest change occurred in

Suffolk County with 16.1%, while the smallest was in Nantucket

with 2.5%. To view EQV data in more detail, click here.

Reviewing EQV from 1994-2022

When reviewing the previous 15 EQVs, it becomes apparent that

changes in values have had their ups and downs. Despite these

fluctuations, there has been a 433% increase over 28 years. All

four classes of property have seen major increases from the 1994

EQV to the 2022 EQV, with Residential showing the greatest

increase and Industrial showing the smallest.

Approved: $1,387,041,477
 

Important Dates &
Information

DLS Fall Update

Fall is one of the busiest times of
the year in municipal finance. To
assist local officials with certain
reporting requirements, municipal
responsibil ities, bil l ing processes
and regulatory functions, DLS has
compiled the following resources,
tools and guidance for this time of
year. Bookmark our Fall resources
here.

Reducing Flood Risk through
Local Actions: Upcoming
Regional Engagement
Sessions

The Executive Office of Economic
Development (EOED) is hosting a
series of online engagement
sessions to inform development of
a Local Floodplain Action Guide,
a guide to assist cities and towns in
taking impactful zoning,
administrative, and other local
actions to reduce flood risk and
promote flood-resil ient
construction. Municipal staff,
elected officials, regional planning
agencies, community-based
organizations, and stakeholders
are invited to join. Sessions will be
conducted in an online format,
with date, time, topic, and joining
details published here. Upcoming
sessions currently include:

Reducing Flood Risk in Boston
Harbor and the North & South
Shores
Thursday - 11/30/23
12pm

Reducing Flood Risk in the Cape,
Islands, and South Coast
Thursday - 12/07/23
12pm

New DLS Visualization Tool
Highlights Trends in
Municipal Debt

DLS is pleased to announce the
release of our latest municipal
finance visualization. Our new
Trends in Municipal Debt tool
provides an in-depth look at both
general fund debt service and
outstanding debt using data
collected through the DLS
Gateway application. Individual
charts show trends in debt service
over time and sort the data by type
and per capita. We’ve also
included a glossary page to help

explain many of the terms

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D4fa7c2fcf7%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,hTnUy5H382W7BjhJBBagGkDIIv82OsZBzYWiSpx9SxBwdZY_hl5MwojGYSjhfwgVbbkYucu66eKd29PzcrRrqgbwYlcFOYTPX0SXavZMghQ,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D8ccdaba346%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,iPq_68Ht2RbpBcjrUkugCl7L4LGy6QyfW_8XGU_BjjYb-5TB4NAR_HOt8KNqMA-UTWFhXwsGFygk1CmUMN2CRKWiQqMUJwFF-sWA9o3p270,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D9743b4a555%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,LWeDKqwMnw_3V8d2rs5xgno3T_4GNEH3ddpqRPRnHnhRCfViPelCSjGEcbuxUc51nhmcjY6VYlvxyO5yHgw7_fHRNUc0wzAGm7SpOYTVQqUNfi-cxLci&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D7fe635b0b7%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,_DW6WKjErH8BhxqMRnUPtMton845CQ0dJG9VOqDnpua5LvpNz-jRtbsDuJWcNgw99Gor0Q77HJUlrjbEw6UX8JawslkIS6nI0tWMexnjola_tnWRXDjzs2nJDg,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D40fccf0ee1%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,3YZP5E8HyA0gAixs2nNyzvITNpCd-ii95EGiw6BzI7tAET1BpIDcdkrTZwa9Oz3za_cCovlQJajrK69d_wIJPm3opB_Ej-uES2ZPB5R5EGHyxg,,&typo=1


A Closer Look at 2014-2022

There has been a continuing increase in EQVs for all four property

classes over the last four EQVs. Residential continues to

represent the most significant change, increasing from $787B in

2014 to $1.3T in 2022.

explain many of the terms
associated with municipal debt.
Each dashboard can be
downloaded to a PDF fi le, and the
source data can be accessed using
the "351 Report" button.

Please email any feedback to the
Data Analytics & Resources Bureau
at DARB@dor.state.ma.us.

New Informational Resource
Page for City/Town Clerks

The Division of Local Services is
pleased to announce the
availabil ity of materials on the
Municipal Finance Training &
Resource Center under resources
by position to assist city or town
clerks. A city or town clerk is an
integral member of the municipal
management team and a central
information point for residents.
While the job responsibil ities may
vary from community to
community in Massachusetts, the
clerk is a bonded official who is the
municipality’s record keeper and
often the chief election officer.
The new page is one stop
shopping for the following topics
important to clerks:

* Overview of
responsibil ities
* Adopting local option
excise
* Local elections and
town meeting
* Local Officials Directory
* Municipal debt and
borrowing
* Proposition 2 ½ votes
* Record legislative action
* Tax rate setting process

Be sure to bookmark the Municipal
Finance Training and Resource
Center page and subscribe to our
YouTube channel.

2024 Municipal
Cybersecurity
Awareness Grant Program

The Executive Office of
Technology Services and Security
(EOTSS) is pleased to announce
the Municipal Cybersecurity
Awareness Grant Program
(MCAGP) for 2024!

The MCAGP is open to all local
gov ernment
agencies (municipalities, public
school districts, l ibraries, police
departments, fire
departments, planning
commissions, and municipally run
util ity departments and airports), as
well as members of the PERAC
Retirement System. The program

improves overall cybersecurity

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D10155c56fb%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,VvRqXqBRwyMEYXTTVXTYlEJ8Y6AbhWv28cg0vqrrM25DgeJaXTB7lg9ZQ2z3jRXDitCS8z3Wsyl0-6gYaMvJEcBbxwT8RcGz-4djKdxn1ZYsbFMa46rM&typo=1
mailto:DARB@dor.state.ma.us
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D5f711bf794%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,fJE3K6or7MCDHJyfD3XFDmDFDXfIi6bhzwnMCp8sfvU1yArgT29XPBa5AJXydFae-Ifv61Fxzl1g_CLDys5ybiKCej3oPf2c0QuSvQTmbsA,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Db6c555fbeb%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,Cw0ml7tn59Wmh39DugBz3ohg6Alb0SyEXcB1kdNWX8KVVKg8Ci4mdGSwmESS8LAuCOM9766fZs0Vus5nTA1e0_VNyJEs_PTEiiIC07DyJDK6AaiYwe4,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D2f6c670d6a%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,lDnPODzJR4IPFAfe5Mlh4DR9pjKtusvERafpfxGVgg6bGz00VH70XNP75ut909we6uWyxnXWXte4mnxAKZfo3WcrHnc6lfxSnGYRECRRBUwj2w,,&typo=1


Reviewing Commercial, Industrial and Personal Property EQV

Property is broken into four separate and distinct classifications.

They are residential, commercial, industrial, and personal

property. More information on property classification and taxation

can be found here. When reviewing EQV broken down by

classification, it’s important to acknowledge changes beyond

those in the residential class. Commercial EQV has increased

60% from $116B to $186B. Industrial has increased 66% from

$31B to $52B. Personal property has increased 63% from $28B to

$46B.

improves overall cybersecurity
posture by helping organizations
mitigate their human risk through
awareness training, and monthly
threat simulations (phishing
campaigns).

EOTSS’ Office of Municipal and
School Technology (OMST)
procures the user l icenses and
manages the program – making
the program free to participating
organizations. More specific
information about the program,
learning paths, and information
sessions can be found here. The
applications are now available,
but act quickly! The application
period will close when all
available seats are taken or on
January 10, 2024, whichever
occurs first.

Latest Issue of Buy the Way Now
Av ailable

Don’t miss Issue #23 of Buy the
Way, the official magazine of the
Operational Services Division
(OSD).

Click here to get news and updates
from OSD delivered to your inbox.

BULLETIN-2023-6:
Massachusetts Statewide
Opioid Settlement Funds

The Division of Local Services
(DLS) Bureau of Accounts has
issued Bulletin 2023-6. Bulletin
2023-6 is a reminder to city and
town accounting officials of the
requirements for the accounting
treatment of statewide opioid
funds as well as the reporting
requirements to document their
use in accordance with the State
Subdivision Agreement.

BUL-2023-6 – Massachusetts
Statewide Opioid Settlement
Funds

To access IGRs, LFOs and
Bulletins, please visit this
webpage.

BULLETIN-2023-5: Tax Title
Foreclosure Surplus
Proceeds

The DLS Municipal Finance Law
Bureau has a new Bulletin.
Bulletin 2023-5 discuss a recently
decided United States Supreme
Court case, Tyler v. Hennepin
County, 598 U.S. 631 (2023). As a
result of that decision, there is
uncertainty as to whether or not tax
title foreclosure surplus proceeds
will need to be returned to

property owners. The Bulletin

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D233836b0cc%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,5gJHoU0VrK6w2IA7csGL9QCUHNlUZD443wGKHkKcs0syFcSCzB0ymFatkWdTHKQ994GwCFH4X9741tap4jgqUrCbK2zC6vzySoRyJQJl8vymE1KjSobWP7lJQw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dc10986b54a%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,vX5Kcz_4SdKR4dTyBa5n6KT2yzJ81ipaOXHEJbcbcaNPHWOEtHygKPqSv1--0N7_FpK1SycViBNv3rFiBCoRmK-ImIhg8-cZoXF-ghAxrEK3bZzYhNX7cQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D3cd8240827%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,voFlorh7wftj3meE80XQq2uzJZ0pRTi7gm5OvQm7VyzzxT1AhkgpCv7xhnFvKUEx8UqyBU_iKswOEg5XdP_ownx_D18gdOBkWtZkUT-YDBtKJAya&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dbfb891e7df%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,ay9JfH-j21bx68X6TbSFsKAPOdNIgB-dtE_KFGxoLjR-DsSHhVEzoBjVFBJLX9IjrEKIbd4Qt3bQkE1m42vlGYc_GEw0rIWQGU5j-Y3gZfMhrQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D1c642a13a2%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,0kshi0LRaqCCBQ8yhrSqA9UKxZocpP56xsckQRmRQxjN2h8-imNt8gbtcauxIGsbiBfJcz8lfKEd6AdSgWc5ZTa6MBFNzHJv7dB738rzDA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D765f9432b7%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,pj-LI6-qOIka-KcrV_Gn9G1nEzIrBFRljUTHs1xGjEQlPKosSwBzKTNkb2Qq_RIUocMBMhCSSEu0rshdt1AYGlu4hqBD1hjO6sKf3S6mFET0lySw&typo=1


We hope you’ve found this information interesting and useful. To

view EQV data in more detail, click here. If you have any questions

regarding your community’s EQV or would like to suggest a topic

for future articles, please email us at bladata@dor.state.ma.us.

Adult-Use Cannabis Sales and
Impacts on Local Finances
Melinda Ordway – Financial Management Resource Bureau

Project Manager

It’s been five years since the first legal adult recreational use

cannabis sales began in Massachusetts. Once the

Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission approved final

licenses for two retail shops in Leicester and Northampton, they

opened for business on November 20, 2018. While these were the

first establishments to sell adult-use, non-medical, marijuana

products on the East Coast, additional shops opened in 13 other

Massachusetts communities before the end of the calendar year.

The legalization of recreation cannabis was accomplished after

Massachusetts voters passed a statewide ballot question in 2016

and former Governor Charlie Baker signed the measure (c. 55 Acts

of 2017) into law on July 28, 2017. Each municipality then decided

to prohibit marijuana establishments or by ordinance or bylaw

allow them, enacting applicable zoning and adopting the local

option cannabis excise (G. L. c. 64N, § 3).

property owners. The Bulletin
notes that DLS will not object to a
community temporarily holding
any such surplus proceeds in an
agency account until there is a
directive from the courts on this
matter.

BUL-2023-5 – TAX TITLE
FORECLOSURE SURPLUS
PROCEEDS

To access IGRs, LFOs and
Bulletins, please visit this
webpage.

MassDEP: New Large Entity
Reporting Requirement

The Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection
(MassDEP) adopted a new
regulation 310 CMR 7.41: Large
Entity Reporting Requirement that
became effective on September 1,
2023, which requires large entities
(fleet owners, businesses,
government agencies,
municipalities, brokers, etc.) to
submit a one-time report on
medium- and heavy-duty (MHD)
vehicles greater than 8,500 lbs.
operated or dispatched in
Massachusetts. Specific
information that must be reported
includes vehicle type and usage
characteristics.

This report wil l help MassDEP
assess the best way to develop
electric vehicle charging
infrastructure and programs to
support and accelerate the MHD
zero emission vehicle market in
Massachusetts.

Entities must submit the report to
MassDEP by 5:00 PM on Friday,
March 1, 2024. To determine
whether an entity is required to
report, follow the instructions
provided in the link below:

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/large-
entity-reporting-requirement

"Adopting Local Option
Excise Taxes" Training
Video Now Available

DLS is pleased to announce the
availabil ity of a new training video
explaining the process for
adopting a local option excise on
room occupancy, meals and adult
use recreational marijuana, or a
community impact fee on short-
term rentals in your community.
The training also covers the
Division of Local Services’ role in
local option excises, discusses the
timetable involved with adopting
any of these options, and provides

examples of warrant language to

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D46f521b05c%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,0KrMiFIilTW4cCbYGpeth103kuWDQrUunDsDp5R-WbBCwj_sM3IBi1p_VsVsj6MjuZ2C60C5Ez_R2IDBOv__J8QzjC6ivNjjk09S-icEtv7s4Jmy5fbOwJlJ6A,,&typo=1
mailto:bladata@dor.state.ma.us
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D385c7d36f6%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,RtPeX053M4FlmCAasEZwgWsLNvlu4cbyPHMPvNwGhhRbMjJogUpNqspUw6Miv-RvkfZ2Fud8A_KrYIhyho_sO3H2o8axFJHL150MBj9vOuy8&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D5c4f77d9e3%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,xYDnwzUGv0qzH3oFJUrgMRTtbBGS4vIVFJk-w3mf7nl74zGGMpOMim1As--Qd0Y1QNjcdkvo2ISEOvXPu01mO4WRqLJz07X24JBSUAKC&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D9a76039eb6%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,ts2ZzY-aL4PjuYwvxZzCJmcsldpORX2cuENtieU5dXG7uPsKUwrecfaWNgPCYiZkb_p0k9E03SZPhUtfZTPseylVWgcK9lxSXXd_AqQbokNi&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D81a9c7aa31%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,EywVnF060ZUlTcANldh5Za41EyzlNfV1iWUg-GBgD0zFwXVGd7xbkzB5g48KTsBuIgIm05pm3zs41ywPDRwi4SEnyj_EKHEkMtiT6d94is8iKX1LwlJzLus,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D38d02d27af%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,OjoUjWYkt9su0GA6KZtzX6rqGb_NBwDgTTROCC4VtjGKllPV0__a2Iaw_p9aputZaGpaBoG3N561F6M-ww0wpnwNWQqCWc8-Krds-ZdV6dfu1pm-cZZaF5W1jdrw&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D99f5af9280%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,nV8lPETflydNiZZrtWmEbzH-kx3F-zHNQKbYZMGGXuoc_ZDiYrmWa1vOAQCVhV5tGRvG_0vsYtPWX8BDDhnLnz0jxmUqozgqZ0UN88qQTaxz&typo=1


option cannabis excise (G. L. c. 64N, § 3).

The Division of Local Services (DLS) issued Bulletin 2018-3,

providing information about the procedures for implementing the

local option cannabis excise, which is separate from the cannabis

impact fee. A majority vote of the legislative body, subject to local

charter, must accept G. L. c. 64N, § 3 and specify the local excise

rate up to 3%. Like rooms and meals excise, the city or town clerk

must notify DLS Municipal Databank of the adoption within 48

hours of the vote. The Department of Revenue (DOR) collects the

local option excise for a community based on the wording of the

legislative vote and the date DLS is notified, and then the revenue

taken in is distributed at the end of each fiscal year quarter. In the

first year FY2019, 106 communities notified DLS of their local

adoption, which has climbed to 188 communities over five years.

Local Option Cannabis Excise Adoption
Reported to DLS

As a new industry in Massachusetts, it had a slow start. The

Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission (Commission) is

the regulatory body that built a new independent agency and legal

industry from the ground up. The Commission hired staff,

developed regulations, and instituted compliance procedures to

handle applications, perform inspections, and grant licenses. Over

time, the process has been streamlined for new and renewing

licenses for cultivators, product manufacturers, retailers,

independent testing laboratories, microbusinesses, marijuana

couriers, and more. Additionally, cannabis businesses had to find

communities willing to negotiate host agreements for cultivation,

examples of warrant language to
assist you in preparing for a vote
on a local option excise tax.

The training video is now
available on the DLS YouTube
channel, along with the
presentation slides.  Additional
local options related training
resources and local options data
and reporting information is also
available on the DLS website.  If
you have any questions relative to
adopting local option excise taxes
please contact
databank@dor.state.ma.us.

OIG Offers No Cost
Procurement Training for
Municipalities

The Office of the Inspector
General introduced a pilot
program, “One Free Designee,”
that offers core public procurement
training to one public employee
per municipality at no cost. 
Effective in FY 24 (July 1, 2023 –
June 30, 2024), the OIG is offering
free tuition for the three courses
required for one employee to
receive MCPPO designation to
any municipality in the
Commonwealth for whom the cost
is a barrier. The $100 fee
associated with all designation
applications and renewals has
been eliminated.

To receive the free training for an
employee, the chief municipal
officer (Mayor,
Manager/Administrator or Select
Board Chair) must submit a form
indicating the employee they wish
to receive the training and an
acknowledgement that obtaining
the cost of training could be a
factor in obtaining the
designation.

If you want to learn more about
the MCPPO designation, please
visit our website.  If you have any
questions, please email the OIG at
MA-IGO-TRAINING@mass.gov.

One Free Designee Application
Form | Mass.gov

DLS Links:

COVID-19 Resources and
Guidance for Municipal
Officials

Events & Training Calendar

Municipal Finance Training

and Resource Center

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D1a0eb6520f%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,TVSExAIaMohOTnKkcKHQqI_86pvplM1nHpShZx3BZuMe3FcXLvaQ4YUDLQGIPE_LSJU4Xv2E27NRGnzDZUElwRaAMDJAJIIIyiF0iowwd84RP-MDgg,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D544e0640f6%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,Zp_BlBke99LFPn_91hNgpIag2pKt_ww-B4wzYyWaUC8M54Q6UvpBE6IhTNoTC3kvNv5SNegeX8LEtUgBO_4ce3Nz8rQCb2kpVXka3ucvruB5&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dff4e37fef6%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,jt-ahlp4rpY9OMYvo9tS9B3Rd65dgxiPAycCVjW84M80uAj3Z2s853uzikQPgFwbX7b4AJjxuo1_s5kamAH6MhDNN0i_lzc7L7HIx1uPyHc,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D09388352a9%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,-BmhR8ycr2vKQKPTWKfrrSkMVZexJqMDE8bVzPYOzv24et6Evl-0BNMhg0OmwT2tsVwPh9faQeGIVx7SNTlvpRomLYlqNrNW0QewNeOH-vqj&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3De2ad8dc1e3%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,bsXyFuo2qYvswHX9CjxNsAr0fTFZ990hn2OzWVf4TOngTnOeou2Zq1i0RPp8bITvHbM8oCtdfMV1blVUfOWI-62ebvYYhpYL_4SR3TG3tS_JE9a5Z0UnG9PqyEiD&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3De8e07cfb7b%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,EkDb9wJmrXJtNhdg01V832homtV9ew9jpcI1Lfox_sxpSCqUhkHxKl1YT3NPm9hS2MxT7SEV3klvAVygBYsGZCuO7DOffNL4Ux5J7VLUah9kzFQ2gackue2k&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D9d2ee7b086%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,_dhrw24hwvh5jpZTYJ09k5OwjdDlqIYzxNLZzBwzkJewXjEQwX4meQR_w7PTv_iXMSM7hmiFxxGFouptW2mSJIwvNizRvt5lf_h1BvHd&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D1fd82f162f%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,8JXjIEXQ7dsp-rzaMcIMG5wIZu1Lk4FURSPWmymNo383ijvvueMEBA35LYFGZqYTWXYUIWIjvg63_E2M1tsRKwsBx9padsCUoCtOZB9ZY2QK3YB5-9II8oUqzd4J&typo=1
mailto:databank@dor.state.ma.us
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D22d4f062ff%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,MedHW-C2W3Oy7EVgYR1712Myk3MBzDBi4XIKzGkfK30R0uGbA1vgpecemhyPnP-88gU2VGBpG6YPErgEhSAUu1ygRFwuGMTNbuETwYd0JpdxzsEjHHLBAd23JII,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D47a00100fe%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,T83wk3HucnsBa0zxagVtig8t4iserOxYetGysUg03KoP_PQRw9Sd1LfNGxQd_XP0gx-d_11EeWkwPkrH6feMEd3-HXVAUmqYUzGW4HqVrUl51w,,&typo=1
mailto:MA-IGO-TRAINING@mass.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dda9f19edde%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,HqEC9OPG4xs2iWI9TIK2Xy1TjIZFJf9O4-lhPnVzOk-RI_tqc4r15vlFxdDi5yBiVfnqI0Jy_gTM9mH0VcO9XXO-8q9nnb1KQExmFxh5ru5AFD7faqaCYA,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dc7fb5f89e6%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,Ut7whxEJGRtZx-u79RjJmLYWsEFJqmSuoGlGbKof0fa66CCuxCa0MhHID455YrpNX2aZIR9vudMGNq9Az_Hq_ZT_IBL5TXc3-9jyjHiYG9uRmN7OsdDJTw,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D35305515da%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,khOjSMfu6D7xhMFUkH5HBd_sozMZc3hZnXJ_MVsPXPehdEcDXOrHXdZGV615q0lE5oJzWEIsZGuxo9604Au2XpUEjUaAkZhFOiG6-rMYsDc,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Da1e642e334%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,wjo9HskPtIuA7rQ3a4ur7KYLWEAMY24I1A_bl46KokWq_xB-ZIv1GHZCYyrPXxbNBxNZGtjQ2fvOVzAOgf40-1DyHJo-v_smsWwGURbXzMQILGNNCem3&typo=1


communities willing to negotiate host agreements for cultivation,

manufacturing and/or retail operations. Adding to this, all

marijuana being sold in Massachusetts must be grown in the

state. Constructing a cultivation or manufacturing facility takes time

and capital. Once built and fully equipped, it takes time to grow the

crop and as well as to convert raw materials into finished cannabis

products. As this industry has matured, new establishments have

been licensed and settled in many communities across

Massachusetts, jumping in on a hot and growing market.

According to data from the Commission, there was just over $15

million in sales during the last two months of 2018. As seen in the

graph below, statewide sales for cannabis have grown year-over-

year with over $433 million in 2019, $702 million in 2020, $1.34

billion in 2021, and $1.5 billion in 2022. Sales through October

2023 are almost $1.3 billion and, contributing to $5.29 billion

cumulative gross sales over five years.

Adult Recreational Use Cannabis Sales

Source: Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission

For any city or town that has accepted the local option cannabis

excise and notified DLS, all sales by recreational marijuana

retailers that are subject to the state excise are also subject to the

host community’s local excise. In FY2019, almost $2.9 million was

distributed to 15 communities. This has grown to nearly $44.8

million for 111 host communities in FY2023. For the first quarter of

FY2024, 126 host communities with retail recreational shops were

distributed nearly $12.3 million.

Local Optional Cannabis Excise Distributed to Host Communities

and Resource Center

Local Officials Directory

Municipal Databank

Informational Guideline
Releases (IGRs)

Bulletins

Tools and Financial
Calculators

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D0455c56699%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,anITGP2sGgT2TSrL0ONYw7TCD7fg-ecV9SkeC09CMM8wiHOBLuRnx4j7qNN4cjryXLESGMj5tUQbv7H5iNjJCIdM93-lSWgA80qF08YbGG1JM6UvJlLjRodo&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Df53b635e9c%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,NoT8GQCjRRmhoOvMz2Lm9QXNH9wKl4SCiEEixS42GZYkqZOJXe7ZA2dDjwMZtHTa26jYgM2cUbMhv-KFBP_FjMuWEZc7cBYSOv3G4ENUZELtVEU,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D9753403005%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,8LLpf0gwyT4knT2icyns6Z1hgXD2sr8cncJ-am_67mfPhx_USx7ffyZfciVBXtjNw1Urf5XbDCyg7kjzESFOy5B8y9dy04AHu4eIP_gZbPWoXV-iZC4,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D37aec49aa0%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,EymMlh3Td5bjuGvdYWoXsZg6lxXFQf6bZnbUdroagENEZAPKFF-oyCMph1mxaDeRF9qsMVTutb7wTb9L0AdJQ2HPlsm-ic41ALnGE8ap9w,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Dd96806ae3f%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,U-Z_0EBlSp_klHQLxSFWIcbX0ahJ0_CVm-yAsCA361qFw9TO3VC-6ttDjtg1aFOzi1XFHFRi9_H856LMSPJxSa-rvTm1ocTNzV89g2QPgmW2n90,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D0817017d99%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,pLi5pp1Y7IHuXw4wP5So5Xb3qQdlOgP42LyvDSDXJa9y2z9_hwLss_ROIt_N4Af9vOKNu3JSjgUMARo2aAlCsZS_jC7ag4ySsjR1ikLqLd4sdEe-2ldxbgnt&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Db08d0869b3%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,jvrnLaLFoCGR2QoOGDOgAAJx2xk5suFahdEPV4GgM31dVKUSP_yIsVewG9nbbNWVE99yiZIIqwBY9zOX6pN2MeR3GqwPW7nUkQB_P9IXTKevyoY,&typo=1


Local Optional Cannabis Excise Distributed to Host Communities

Source: Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission

Local option cannabis excise is general revenue and can only be

spent after appropriation unless a general or special law provides

for an exception and different treatment. About 71% of existing host

communities estimate cannabis excise as a local receipt on the

tax recap. For many, initial cannabis revenue years had growth, but

have since declined due to a combination of factors impacting host

communities.

* More Host Communities - As more communities

participate in the cannabis industry and enter into

agreements, increases in retail competition can draw

customers away from cities and towns and shift the excise

distribution. Adding to this, communities may face

statewide sale impacts as bordering states—Rhode

Island, Connecticut, New York, and Vermont—have opened

their doors to the cannabis market, and New Hampshire

will be deciding in the new year.

 
* Increased Volume of Marijuana Products - With an

increased supply of products, prices have declined. The

Commission tracks the monthly average cost/gram of

adult-use cannabis (available by clicking here), showing

the price being relatively stable in the initial couple years

(except for the initial month of Covid-19) and decline

beginning in the summer of 2021 as more shops opened

and greater supply entered the market.

 
* Establishments Closing - With an oversupply in the

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3Df7e0e19b47%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,UkWt5wDZFS5Ixa45-e0b-oMcyq1jzJFTcq23vBdNZHFYNRjhxvjo5uQthMOuo31r5LT_yi7mK8jaj7BHYnr3FYrNjgyd6qb3pGokZ03snVHSblyJSbrO2Q,,&typo=1


* Establishments Closing - With an oversupply in the

market that led to declining prices, inflationary pressures

that have increased costs for retailers and manufacturers,

and declining profits, some cannabis businesses have

closed or have announced plans to depart Massachusetts.

About 23% of host cities and towns have taken a more cautious

approach to not include this excise in their local estimated receipts

due to the newness and unpredictability of cannabis revenue.

Initial sales volume and resulting excise may have been a result of

limited retail locations or curiosity with the grand opening of a

shop. As the market matures, it does not guarantee revenue will

continue or increase, so they chose not to use it as a funding

source for the operating budget. Instead, cannabis excise closes

to the general fund and becomes part of free cash when certified,

so it may be appropriated for any legal purpose.

The remaining 6% of the host communities either dedicate the

recreational cannabis excise to a stabilization fund or do a

combination of estimating as a local receipt and dedicating the

revenue stream. As explained in Informational Guideline Release

(IGR) 17-20, cities and towns that accept the fourth paragraph of

may dedicate, without further appropriation, all or a percentage of

not less than 25% of a particular fee, charge or other receipt to any

stabilization fund established under the same and report the

legislative action to the Municipal Databank. Communities that

dedicate this revenue towards specific purposes have stated that it

provides or supplements funding to address needs without having

to fund through the levy or borrow funds.

Despite challenges, the recreational cannabis industry has

developed into a large sector in Massachusetts. The Commission

is confident that Massachusetts licensees will maintain the

competitive edge by demonstrating to peers what it takes to

operate a safe, effective, and equitable cannabis industry. It

contributes excise revenues for the state and to cities and towns

that have welcomed the industry.

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D533b0f31f5%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,EEpDzNExRYOfOYBH4k4ApGEpq6gGskqfpyTE8K22T4yB9WKkxqQkUjnfHBQrOhHtCMX57GphFv3UiG9A9_4RZiQkXUVmRCUgeY8FRfiYfUWi&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D4e116de83d%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,nOP3AIa2Ku4eLYNpz9DKQwQV19bWfSIeV3PIEwgW3yPSgxWZ8K40aWPlEqAAs5m-BobPBGKk0xRj-zN-a_kA2DOi-jb5vAw9_zJSqPlIu4eQP-W_6ckP7rElhUPi&typo=1


Editor: Dan Bertrand

Editorial Board: Kasey Bik, Sean Cronin, Emily Izzo, Paula King, Lisa Krzywicki, Jennifer McAllister and
Tony Rassias

Contact City & Town with questions, comments and feedback by emailing us at
cityandtown@dor.state.ma.us. To view previous editions, please click here.

To unsubscribe to City & Town and all DLS alerts, email dls_alerts@dor.state.ma.us.

This email w as sent to plombardi@brew ster-ma.gov 
why did I get this?    unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 

Massachusetts Department of Revenue - Division of Local Services · PO Box 7095 · Boston, MA 02204-7095 · USA 

mailto:cityandtown@dor.state.ma.us
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D104696a44f%26e%3Df24f3f391f&c=E,1,IKmYD-YoFED681ZG7zb71FoGOt0ptNMETRSK09_cnwqNPuALsqcbxoilYLINLPKJIc4FEbpNTaeRkFptH6rw2VVCI2UY5t1vOqJGuuphuNhbdRyXMBut&typo=1
mailto:dls_alerts@dor.state.ma.us
mailto:plombardi@brewster-ma.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Fabout%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D37554ffc01%26e%3Df24f3f391f%26c%3Df02b685111&c=E,1,7jOom7wY10mN5pgY5su5COYYfqXvyQE5nmZNza3FmIO8BBv9-sLCcJNXvSgnXycRbtJJIKlLyo7AIiLklZmY8DxUqoBTg3dmzKLBqjWvYqKGPQfW58BCxysvtQ,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Funsubscribe%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D37554ffc01%26e%3Df24f3f391f%26c%3Df02b685111&c=E,1,5Vi3VDpw-xlhSAI2MoKuLu3H5R8fnErzXp-fjkvXjNCNs7niL_oSiqSYpPfv8yQQeJ-1qqU_yVuDttFTDMPOcRPWGuMVAo-ynsNcWYhO3w,,&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3A%2F%2Fmass.us11.list-manage.com%2Fprofile%3Fu%3D0e9e2209abd5f7062568d9a19%26id%3D37554ffc01%26e%3Df24f3f391f%26c%3Df02b685111&c=E,1,_di37YhJZ4-iKwHAlkxTa0_37j8QWohUH6s7UAOS46rP-Xdwy4tEEyJznAFuFJGZvb-LlDwosTymLN2LEF5tBjljtZuWELtpWYFFMIHon7Sp&typo=1








Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

TO: Select Board 

FROM: Conor Kenny, Town Project Manager  
Griffin Ryder, DPW Director 
Jimmy Jones, DPW Foreman 
Jon Idman, Town Planner 

RE: Recommended Select Board Policy Revision: Policy 10 

DATE: 12/21/2023 

For your review and approval is an updated version of Policy 10 of the Select Board Policy 
Handbook. Policy 10 deals with the Town’s shoulder maintenance policy. 

A number of policies in this handbook have recently been identified by Town Administration 
staff as being in need of revision. Policy 10 has not been amended since 1997 and, as a result, 
contains information pertaining to the Department of Public Works practice of roadside 
maintenance which is no longer accurate. The policy also does not, as currently written, 
adequately capture current DPW practice, nor does it incorporate a satisfactory compendium of 
pertinent terms and definitions.  

Finally, this policy update will memorialize practices that the Town and the DPW have been 
following for several years. 

Due to the extensive revisions that have been made, and the file format of the current policy 
document, it is not possible to show tracked changes. However, the existing policy has been 
included in this packet for reference. 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 

Website: www.brewster-ma.gov 

Shoulder Maintenance Policy  
for Town Roads 

A. PURPOSE 

Roadside mowing and selective tree trimming is conducted by the Department of Public Works (DPW) to 
maintain safe sightlines along Town roads for the purposes of public safety, including at intersections and 
bike crossings, for vehicles, bicyclists and pedestrians. 

Roadside brush cutting is conducted by the DPW to maintain safe sightlines along Town roads for the 
traveling public and to provide space for snow and ice removal during the winter season. 

B. POLICY  

Roadside mowing and selective tree trimming will be conducted throughout the growing season as needed. 
The frequency will be determined by the DPW through the DPW Director or designee, subject to the 
scheduling or other constraints of the DPW, and with Police Department consultation as applicable.  

Roadside brush cutting will be conducted annually between September 1st and April 15th, not to exceed (2) 
two times per location during this period. This frequency and schedule will help to mitigate concerns with 
the bird nesting season. 

Cleared shoulder widths will be maintained at (4) four feet for town scenic roads (See Brewster Code, Article 
IV) and (6) feet for all other town roads, unless in the determination of the DPW Director or designee greater 
cleared widths are required to ensure safe sightlines based on circumstances in the field, including road 
geometry. Cleared shoulder heights will be maintained as determined in the field by the DPW Director or 
designee to allow for safe sightlines.  

All foregoing maintenance activities are exempt from the permit and hearing requirements of MGL Chapter 
87; notwithstanding, the Town will conform to the requirements of said statute, to the greatest extent 
practicable.   

The Town is not authorized to perform the foregoing maintenance on private roads, except in such 
circumstances as the Director of Public Works deems brush cutting necessary in order to maintain safe 
sightlines on intersecting Town roads.  

Maintenance for state roads is the responsibility of the Massachusetts Department of Transportation.  

Unless approved by the DPW Director, and then only in keeping with all relevant Town bylaws, regulations 
and policies, it is prohibited to plant any tree, shrub or plant within the right-of-way of any Town road. Town 

Policy No: 10
Date Approved:  January 22, 1991 
Dates Amended: August 25, 1997 

   January, 8, 2024 



employees reserve the right to remove any such unapproved obstruction. Other types of improvements by 
private owners within the Town's right of way not specifically referenced herein shall be subject to and 
consistent with all relevant and applicable Town and State laws, regulations and policies related to the same, 
including any requirement to obtain express written approval or the like from the Select Board to install or 
maintain such improvements.  

C. DEFINITIONS  

Brush cutting – the removal of shrubs and other woody vegetation in the road right-of-way.  

Growing season – The growing season is that portion of the year in which local conditions (i.e. rainfall, 
temperature, daylight) permit normal plant growth. 

Mowing – the cutting of grass and similar vegetation in the road right-of-way.  

Private roads – A private road, which includes a private street or private way, is a road that has not been laid 
out, dedicated, or adjudicated by a Massachusetts court as a public way but has either been laid out under 
the subdivision control law or is otherwise a matter of record with the Barnstable Registry of Deeds or the 
Town Clerk. The official record of public roads in the Town of Brewster is kept at the Town Clerk’s office, 
which list may be amended from time to time.   

Selective tree trimming – small diameter tree and limb removal in the road right-of-way.  

Shoulders – those areas adjacent to the edge of the improved, travelled way, within the road right-of way. 

Small diameter tree – Trees with a diameter at breast height (DBH) of up to 14 inches.  

_______________________  _______________________ 
Ned Chatelain, Chair  Mary Chaffee, Vice Chair 

_______________________  _______________________ 
Kari Hoffmann, Clerk            Cynthia Bingham 

_____________________________ 
  David Whitney





































































































 
 

TOWN OF BREWSTER 
BUDGET & TOWN MEETING CALENDAR 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 
12.08.23 DRAFT 

 
1. December 4, 2023: 

FY25-29 General Fund budget forecast presentation to Select Board and Finance Committee, 
including recommended FY25 budget development guidelines. 
 

2. December 21, 2023:  
Supplemental FY24 Capital Requests due. 

 
3. December 11, 2023: 

FY25 budget development guidelines distributed to Department Heads & Schools. 
 

4. December 12, 2023: 
FY25-29 Golf Enterprise Fund Financial Forecast presentation to Golf Commission. 

 
5. January 5, 2024: 

FY25 budget requests due to Town Administration and Finance Director. 
 
6. Weeks of January 10, 2024: 

Preliminary operating budget requests reviewed by the Town Administration and Finance 
Director with Department Heads. 

 
7. January 10, 2024: 

Finance Team presentation to Select Board and Finance Committee on FY24-28 Capital 
Improvement Plan, including supplemental FY24 Capital requests. 

 
8.  February 5, 2024: 

FY25 Town Operating Budget Overview delivered to the Select Board and Finance Committee. 
 

9. February 7 & 9, 2024: 
Department Head FY25 budget presentations to Select Board and Finance Committee. 
 

10. February 15, 2024: 
4th and Final Sea Camps Public Forum 
 

11.  February 21, 2024: 
Priority Deadline for submittal of warrant articles for inclusion on the 2024 Annual Town 
Meeting warrant. 

 
12.  March 2024:  

FY25-29 Water Department Enterprise Fund Financial Forecast presented to Water 
Commissioners. 

  



 
 

 
13.  March 22, 2024:  

     Deadline for proxy votes for private road betterments.  
 

14.  March XX, 2024 
Nauset Schools budget presentation to Select Board.   
 

15. March XX, 2024: 
Nauset Schools budget presentation to Finance Committee. 

 
16.  April 1, 2024: 

Administrative deadline to finalize warrant articles for the May 2024 Special and Annual Town 
Meetings. 

 
17.  April 8, 2024: 

Deadline for Select Board’s and Finance Committee’s recommendations on the May 2024 
Special and Annual Town Meeting warrant articles. 

 
18.  April XX, 2024: 

Deadline to send May 2024 Special & Annual Town Meeting warrants to the printer. 
 
19.  April 15, 2024: (holiday) 

Deadline to post warrants. 
 

20. April 16, 2024: 
Deadline for Select Board to place a ballot question on the Annual Town Election. 

 
21.  April 22, 2024: 

FY25 Budget and Town Meeting warrant book posted on the website for the general public and 
distributed at Town buildings and other locations.  
 

22.  Week of April 22, 2024: 
Town Meeting public information session. 
  

23.  May 6 or 11, 2024: 
2024 Special and Annual Town Meeting held at Stony Brook Elementary School. 

 
24.  May 21 or 28, 2024: 

2024 Annual Town Election.  



Select Board FY24-25 Strategic Plan

FINAL AS APPROVED 08.21.23

Vision Building Block Goal # Goal Description Timeline
Vision Plan / Local 

Comprehensive Plan 
FY23-24 SB Plan Primary Responsible Party Other Key Stakeholders

Sea Camps SC-1 Provide interim public access to and activities on both 

Sea Camps properties FY24-25 X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; Recreation Commission; 

Recreation Dept; Town Staff

SC-2 Continue community planning process, engaging 

residents and stakeholders, to develop long-term 

comprehensive plans for both Sea Camps properties

FY24-25 X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; BPPC & PPPC Liaisons and 

Representatives, and Town Staff

SC-3 Continue to explore potential partnerships and revenue 

generating opportunities that mitigate tax impacts 

and/or provide enhanced services, programs, or 

amenities for residents on both Sea Camps properties

FY24-25 X X

Town Administration and Bay & 

Pond Property Planning 

Committees

Select Board; BPPC & PPPC Liaisons and 

Representatives, and Town Staff

Governance G-1 Evaluate strategies to reduce tax burden on residents, 

including examining revenues and targeted local tax 

relief options, and managing school budgets
FY24  X Finance Team Select Board; Finance Committee

 G-2 Develop and implement communications plan, with 

focus on municipal finance and taxes, to best inform 

residents and local businesses about Town affairs

FY24-25 X Town Administration Select Board; Town Staff

G-3 Identify priority areas to increase organizational capacity 

to meet enhanced service needs and expanded project 

demands and develop long-term financing plan to fund 

necessary personnel

FY24-25 X X
Town Administration, Human 

Resources, & Finance Team
Select Board; Finance Committee; Town Staff

G-4 Conduct assessment of community recreation needs, 

develop implementation plan, and provide staffing 

supports to deliver enhanced recreation services
FY24-25 X X Town Administration

Select Board; Finance Team; Human 

Resources; Recreation Dept & Commission; 

Natural Resources Dept; Department of 

Public Works
Community Character CC-1 Complete Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion audit of Town 

policies, provide DEI training to Town officials and staff, 

and integrate DEI considerations into Town programs, 

events, and activities

FY24-25 X X Town Administration
Select Board; Human Resources Department; 

Town Staff

CC-2 Develop and implement FY24-28 Age-Friendly 

Community Action Plan based on 2023 COA community 

needs assessment

FY24-25 X X
Council on Aging Board & 

Department

Select Board; Town Administration; Social 

Services Team

CC-3 Evaluate feasibility of potential childcare subsidy 

program, and implement in equitable and sustainable 

manner

FY24-25 X Select Board
Finance Team; Finance Committee; Housing 

Department

CC-4 Evaluate impacts of short-term rentals on the 

community and consider potential policy solutions FY25
Select Board & Town 

Administration

Board of Health; Health Department; Housing 

Department; Building Department; Planning 

Department
Open Space OS-1 Develop standard criteria and process to evaluate 

potential land acquisitions and consider establishing 

municipal land acquisition committee
FY24 X X Select Board

Town Administration; Open Space 

Committee; Affordable Housing Trust; Water 

Commission; Town Staff

OS-2 Identify priority goals of 2021 Open Space and 

Recreation Plan and begin implementation, including 

making targeted accessibility improvements to Town-

owned conservation land

FY24-25 X  

Natural Resources Advisory 

Commission & Dept; Recreation 

Commission & Dept

Town Administration; Select Board; 

Conservation Commission; Water 

Commission & Dept

1



Select Board FY24-25 Strategic Plan

FINAL AS APPROVED 08.21.23

Vision Building Block Goal # Goal Description Timeline
Vision Plan / Local 

Comprehensive Plan 
FY23-24 SB Plan Primary Responsible Party Other Key Stakeholders

Housing H-1 Promote and encourage support programs that help 

residents stay in their homes FY24-25 X X Housing Dept

Select Board; Town Administration; 

Affordable Housing Trust; Human Services 

Committee; Council on Aging

H-2 Continue implementing Housing Production Plan
FY24-25 X X

Affordable Housing Trust & 

Housing Dept

Select Board; Planning Board; Housing 

Partnership; Town Administration; Planner

H-3 Continue to provide support for Millstone Community 

Housing initiative
FY24-25 X X

Town Administration & Housing 

Dept

Select Board; Affordable Housing Trust; 

Community Preservation Committee

Local Economy LE-1 Develop Guide to Doing Business in Brewster

FY25 X X Town Administration

Building Dept; Health Dept; Planning Dept; 

Natural Resources Dept; Town Clerk; 

Chamber of Commerce

Coastal Management CM-1 Identify and implement priority goals and strategies of 

Coastal Resource Management Plan (Phase I)
FY24-25 X  

Natural Resources Commission 

& Dept

Select Board; Conservation Commission; 

Town Administration

CM-2 Advance intermunicipal shoreline management plan 

initiative with Dennis and Orleans FY24-25 X Natural Resources Dept

Natural Resources Advisory Commission; 

Town Administration; Conservation 

Commission
Water Resources WR-1 Continue Integrated Water Resource Management Plan 

implementation and update as needed to reflect current 

alternatives analyses, prioritize pond water quality, and 

identify timelines 
FY24-25 X X Water Resources Task Force

Town Administration; Select Board;  Natural 

Resources Commission & Dept; Water 

Commission & Dept; Board of Health & 

Health Dept; Planning Board & Dept; Finance 

Committee; Brewster Ponds Coalition

WR-2 Continue to manage Pleasant Bay watershed permit, 

develop new watershed permits, and educate the 

community about changes to Title V regulations and 

new DEP nitrogen sensitive watershed permit 

regulations

FY24-25 X  Water Resources Task Force

Town Administration; Select Board; Board of 

Health & Health Dept; Pleasant Bay Alliance; 

Golf Commission & Dept; Brewster Ponds 

Coalition 

Community Infrastructure CI-1 Collaborate with Brewster Ladies Library Association 

Board to determine priorities for library renovations and 

possible funding options/opportunities
FY24  X

Select Board & Town 

Administration

Finance Team; Brewster Ladies Library 

Association Board & Library Dept; Community 

Preservation Committee; Finance Committee

CI-2 Lead approved capital projects through to successful 

completion and continue to communicate and engage 

with residents

FY24-25 X  Town Administration Select Board; Town staff

Climate Mitigation & 

Adaptation

CA-1 Identify and implement priority energy and climate 

mitigation/ adaptation goals and strategies consistent 

with the Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Plan, 

Green Communities Energy Reduction Plan, and Hazard 

Mitigation Plan 

FY24-25 X
Energy & Climate Action 

Committee; Energy Manager
Town Administration; Select Board 

Solid Waste Management SW-1 Establish improvement process for Department of Public 

Works and Recycling Center campus based on results of 

site assessment

FY24 X X DPW Director
Town Administration; Select Board; Recycling 

Commission

2



For Your Information (FYIs) 
January 8, 2024 

1. MassPRIM- Pension Reserves Investment Management November Report 
2. Health & Human Services Grant Reports 

a. Cape Cod Children’s Place First Half FY24 Report 
b. Family Pantry First Half FY24 Report 
c. Food 4 Kids Summer Report 

3. November 2023 Housing Coordinator Update 
4. MassDOT Sagamore Bridge Project Letter 



Your beginning net asset value for the period was:

Your change in investment value for the period was:

Your exchanges from (to) the Cash Fund for the period were:

Your ending net asset value for the period was:

Net Change in Investment Value represents the net change through investment activities as follows:

Gross Investment Income:

Less Management Fees:

Net Investment Income:

Net Fund Unrealized Gains/Losses:

Net Fund Realized Gains/Losses:

Net Change in Investment Value as Above:

State Retirees Benefits Trust Fund

Month To Date Fiscal Year To Date Calendar Year To Date

53 State Street, Suite 600

Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Deborah B. Goldberg, Treasurer and Receiver General, Chair

Michael G. Trotsky, CFA, Executive Director and Chief Investment Officer

Pension Reserves Investment Management Board

If you have any questions regarding your statement, please contact the Client Services team at clientservice@mapension.com.
A detailed statement of your account is attached to this summary sheet.

Town of Brewster

60,000.00

3,958,107.62

182,240.45

3,790,975.25

120,000.00

3,958,107.62

47,132.37

3,268,481.19

420,000.00

3,958,107.62

269,626.43

9,183.78

(2,305.72)

4,285.68

6,878.06

182,240.45

171,076.71

40,363.91

(7,921.41)

14,754.13

32,442.50

47,132.37

(64.26)

90,373.10

(17,159.50)

35,117.90

73,213.60

269,626.43

161,294.93

$3,958,107.62

3,715,867.17

November 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023

As of November 30, 2023 the net asset value of your investment in the SRBT Fund was:



Your beginning net asset value for the period was:

Your investment income for the period was:

Your ending net asset value for the period was:

Cash Investment

Month To Date Fiscal Year To Date Calendar Year To Date

53 State Street, Suite 600

Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Deborah B. Goldberg, Treasurer and Receiver General, Chair

Michael G. Trotsky, CFA, Executive Director and Chief Investment Officer

Pension Reserves Investment Management Board

If you have any questions regarding your statement, please contact the Client Services team at clientservice@mapension.com.
A detailed statement of your account is attached to this summary sheet.

Town of Brewster

0.00 0.00

$0.00

0.00

November 01, 2023 to November 30, 2023

Your total contributions for the period were:

Your total redemptions for the period were:

Your total exchanges for the period were:

Your state appropriations for the period were:

0.00 0.000.00

120,000.00 420,000.0060,000.00

0.00 0.000.00

(120,000.00) (420,000.00)(60,000.00)

0.00 0.000.00

0.00 0.000.00

As of November 30, 2023 the net asset value of your investment in the Cash Fund was:



Investment Detail

53 State Street, Suite 600

Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Deborah B. Goldberg, Treasurer and Receiver General, Chair

Michael G. Trotsky, CFA, Executive Director and Chief Investment Officer

Pension Reserves Investment Management Board

Town of Brewster

11/30/2023

Investments Units Of Participation Cost Price Market Value Unrealized Gain/Loss

PHTF90200002

Commonwealth Of Massachusetts

14,951.679 HCST OPEB MASTER TRUST 3,793,058.06 264.7266 3,958,107.62 165,049.56

Total Investment: 3,793,058.06 3,958,107.62 165,049.56



Statement of Change In Net Assets

53 State Street, Suite 600

Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Deborah B. Goldberg, Treasurer and Receiver General, Chair

Michael G. Trotsky, CFA, Executive Director and Chief Investment Officer

Pension Reserves Investment Management Board

Town of Brewster

11/30/2023

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF PERIOD 3,715,867.17 3,790,975.25 3,268,481.19

Current Period

11/1/2023     11/30/2023

Fiscal Year

7/1/2023     11/30/2023

Year To Date

1/1/2023     11/30/2023

Commonwealth Of Massachusetts

PHTF90200002

DISBURSEMENTS:

CASH FUND EXCHANGES

60,000.00 120,000.00 420,000.00

RECEIPTS:

CONTRIBUTIONS:

PARTICIPANTS 60,000.00 120,000.00 420,000.00

INVESTMENT INCOME:

UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS-INVESTMENT 171,076.71 -64.26 161,294.93

MASTER TRUST ALLOCATED EXPENSES

-103.83 -1,033.23 -2,489.12

MASTER TRUST CHANGE IN REALIZED G/L

4,285.68 14,754.13 35,117.90

MASTER TRUST INVESTMENT INCOME

9,183.78 40,363.91 90,373.10

MT ALL INVESTMENT MANAGER FEES

-2,201.89 -6,888.18 -14,670.38

UNIT EXCHANGES

60,000.00 120,000.00 420,000.00

Total Receipts 302,240.45

Total Disbursements: 60,000.00

Net Assets - End of Period: 3,958,107.62

287,132.37

120,000.00

3,958,107.62

1,109,626.43

420,000.00

3,958,107.62



STATEMENT EXPLANATION 

Below you will find a description of each item posted to your statement. 

CAPITAL ACCOUNT 

Summary of Account Activity: A summary statement produced for your investment in the State Retiree Benefits Trust Fund (SRBTF) includes both month-to-

 date and fiscal year-to-date information. This statement is also furnished to the Public Employee Retirement Administration 

Commission (PERAC).

Your beginning net asset value for the period:       The total balance of your investment as of the opening date of the statement period. 

Your change in investment value for the period:    The total increase or decrease in your investment includes net investment income, realized gains or losses, and unrealized gains  

or losses.

Your total exchanges from (to) cash fund:  Movement of funds occurring on the first business day of each month between your Cash Fund and Capital Account (SRBTF). 

Your ending net asset value for the period: The total balance of your investment as of the closing date of the statement period. 

Gross investment income:   Represents your allocable share of the SRBTF’s income associated with securities and other investments (i.e. real estate), except  

for realized and unrealized gains or losses. It is principally interest, dividends, real estate income, and private equity income. 

Management fees: Represents your allocable share of the SRBTF’s expenses related to PRIM’s investment advisors, consultants, custodian and  

operations expenses.

Net investment income:  Represents your allocable share of the SRBTF’s gross investment income, less Management Fees. 

Net fund unrealized gains/losses:  Represents your allocable share of the SRBTF’s increase or decrease in value, attributed to a change in value of securities or  

other investments held in the PRIT Fund, relative to original cost. These gains or losses are “unrealized” because the investments  

have not yet been sold.

Net fund realized gains/losses: Represents your allocable share of the SRBTF’s increase or decrease in value attributed to the PRIT Fund’s sale of securities or  

other investments (i.e. real estate property). Whether you “realize” a gain or loss depends upon the price at which the investment  

was sold in relation to its original purchase price. 

CASH FUND 

Your beginning net asset value for the period: The total balance of your investment as of the opening date of the statement period. 

Your investment income for the period:  Interest earned for the period. 

Your total contributions for the period:  Sum of all funds (i.e. wires and/or checks) sent into your SRBTF account during the statement period. Cash contributed any 

day during the month except the first business day will remain in your Cash Fund until the first business day of the following 

month, when it will then be exchanged into the General Allocation Account (SRBTF). 

Your total redemptions for the period: Sum of all funds sent by wire from the PRIT Fund’s custodian bank to your government entity during the statement period. A 

redemption made be made at any time throughout the month as long as your Cash Fund balance equals or exceeds the amount 

you wish to redeem.

Your ending net asset value for the period: The total balance of your investment as of the closing date of the statement period. 

If you have any questions regarding your statement, please contact the Client Services team at clientservice@mapension.com. 















Housing Coordinator Update November 2023 

Jill Scalise  

Ongoing Activities/ Projects  
1. Community Outreach and Education (Housing Production Plan (HPP) Strategy #14 & 15) 

 Responded to email, phone & in person requests for information and assistance, 65 total requests for 
housing information (45) or assistance (20). Open office hours Thursdays from 10-noon. 

 Quoted in Cape Cod Times article, “Race to 10%, How Cape Cod Towns are Creating, Preserving Housing” 
2. Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT) (HPP assorted strategies, Select Board (SB) Strategic Plan H-1)  

  $255,000 in CPA funds approved at Town Meeting for Trust’s Affordable Buydown Program  

 Housing Program Assistant second interviews held, and finalist identified. 

 Based on previous Trust discussions, synthesized Housing Trust priority goals for FY24-25. 

 Trust working on additional items throughout this report. 
3. Spring Rock Village- comp permit for 45 affordable rental units off Millstone (SB H-4, HPP #12 & 16)  

 Town meeting approved $500,000 in CPA funding for Spring Rock Village. 

 Discussion with Housing Assistance Corporation (HAC) & Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH) 
about Spring Rock regional CPC applications, state funding preapplication & related updated cost estimates.  

4.Comprehensive Permit Projects (HPP Strategy #16):  

Habitat for Humanity, Phoebe Way: Spoke at Community Kick-off event. ‘To be’ homeowners introduced. 

Wall Raisings held.  
5. Preservation of Housing and Related Support of Brewster Residents (SB H-3, HPP Strategies #20, 21 & 22) 

 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-  FY21 Housing Rehab extension request for one project. 

FY22/23 RFP issued for Housing Rehab subgrantee. Brewster was also asked to submit FY24 Regional 
CDBG application. 

6. Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) (HPP Strategies #21 & 22) 

 212 Yankee Drive- Pearl Construction continuing work and making great progress. Site visit with Assistant 
Town Manager Donna Kalinick and The Resource Inc. Communication with HAC about home resale 
process. Executive Office of Housing and Livable Communities (HLC) set resale price. Marketing begins 
December 1st. Letters sent to guardian and conservator regarding Barbie dolls.  

 Serenity Apartments at Brewster (27 affordable units)- Elevation Financial will provide annual 

recertification in early January 2024.  

 11 Sean Circle- Waiting for final required work to be done prior to affordable resale. 

 Continue collaboratively addressing other affordable housing concerns and potential violations. 
7. Housing Production Plan (HPP) (Select Board Strategic Plan Goal H-2) 

 ADU: Bylaw revisions approved by Town Meeting.  

 Contract executed for $65,000 grant to examine Town zoning bylaws with a focus on multi-unit and mixed -

use residential. Lead on grant and project: Town Planner, Jon Idman. 
8. Collaboration and Education (HPP Strategies #7 &15)  

 Participated in Cape Cod Commission Regional Strategy Meeting & Making the Case Call.  
 Continued library discussion about potential housing Town book theme emphasis. 
 Attended information sessions on Homes for Profit: Speculation & Investment in Greater Boston and 

Housing America’s Older Adults.  

Upcoming Events & Announcements: 
 212 Yankee Drive affordable home for sale for $237,900. Applications are available December 1.

Personnel 

 Participated in Housing Trust, Sea Camps Community Forum & Special Town Meeting. Also worked with: 
Assessors, Building, Council on Aging, CPC, Finance, Health, Housing Partnership, Human Resources, 
Library, Planning, Public Works, Town Administration, & Water.  




	Town Manager's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Council on Aging Presentation
	 Local Marijuana Facilities
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Disclaimer
	Slide 3:   An Act Relative To Equity In The Cannabis Industry  Chapter 180 of the Acts of 2022 
	Slide 4
	Slide 5:    The Cannabis Control Commission  The Act provides the CCC with enhanced authority  
	Slide 6:  Host Community Agreements 
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: THE REGULATIONS IDENTIFY THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS THAT ARE PRESUMED REASONABLE: 
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: Prohibitions:  The following terms, conditions, or clauses are prohibited in an HCA:
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15:  HCA Review and Certification
	Slide 16: If the CCC determines that the HCA does not comply, the HCA determination notice shall state:
	Slide 17: Still, the regulations allow host communities to discontinue relations …
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20:  HCA Waivers 
	Slide 21:  Complaints Alleging Noncompliance 
	Slide 22:  Community Impact Fees 
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27:  Minimum Acceptable Equity Standards Governing Municipalities and Host Communities  
	Slide 28: Mandatory transparent practices to promote and encourage full equity participation
	Slide 29: Mandatory transparent practices to promote and encourage full equity participation
	Slide 30
	Slide 31: CCC’s BEST PRACTICES FOR HCA NEGOTIATIONS
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34

	SEUI Side Letter Agreement
	SB Policy #10
	1. Memo Re. Select Board Policy Revisions (#10)
	2. Amended Select Board Policy #10
	3. Current Select Board Policy #10

	Nauset Regional School Agreement
	1. Brewster SB Letter re. Request to Nauset Regional School Committee to Initiate Amendments to Regional Agreement FINAL 05.09.23
	2. Regional Agreement Docs

	Spring 2024 Town Meeting Date
	Brewster Select Board FY24-25 Strategic Plan 
	FY24-25 Strategic Plan

	FYI Packet
	0. FYI Cover Page 1.08.24
	1. November OPEB Report
	2a. HHS Grant_Cape Cod Children's Place FY24 1st Half Report
	2b. HHS Grant_Family Pantry FY24 1st Half Report
	2c. Food 4 Kids Report
	3. November 2023 Housing Coordinator Update
	4. 1.2.2024 OML Compaint
	5. MassDOT Sagamore Bridge Project Letter


	licenseNumber: MC281275
	NAME: Cape Cod Grow Lab, LLC
	BUSINESS_ADDRESS_1: 1399 Freemans Way
Brewster, MA 02631
	licenseMetaName: Marijuana Cultivator
	expirationDate: 04/17/2024


